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Re: Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited S f;s‘\\“"

Rule 12g3-2(b) Exemption
File No.82-3990

Pursuant to Rule 12g3-2(b)(1)(iii), and on behalf of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”),
enclosed are the documents described on Annex A hereto for your attention.

These documents supplement the information previously provided with respect to the Company’s request for
exemption under Rule 12g3-2(b), which was established on 23" February 1995.

This information is being furnished with the understanding that such information and documents will not be
deemed “filed” with the SEC or otherwise subject to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), and that neither this letter nor the furnishing of such documents and
information shall constitute an admission for any purpose that the Company is subject to the Exchange Act.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned at (852) 2514 4880 in Hong Kong if you have any
questions.

Please acknowledge receipt of this letter and the enclosed materials by date-stamping the enclosed receipt
copy of this letter and please return it to Mr Daniel L.Goelzer, Baker & McKenzie, 815 Connecticut Avenue
N.W., Washington D.C.20006-4078, U.S.A.

Thank you for your attention.

Yours faithfully,

For and on behalf of ?
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited

Phyilis Ng
Company Secretary

Encl.
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Attachment to Annex A File No. 82-3990

2003 Interim Report
2003 Interim Results Announcements published in The Standard (English Version)
and Hong Kong Economic Times (Chinese Version) on 25 September 2003

Form F2 dated 2 October 2003
Board Minutes dated 29 September 2003

Announcements on Proposed Rights Issue with bonus shares in The Standard
(English Version) and Hong Kong Economic Times (Chinese Version) on 25 July
2003

Announcements on Despatch of Circular and Loan from a Director in The Standard
(English Version) and Hong Kong Economic Times (Chinese Version) on 14 August
2003 '

Announcements on Result of SGM, Despatch of Rights Issue Documents and Odd-
lot facility arrangement in The Standard (English Version) and Hong Kong
Economic Times (Chinese Version) on 2 September 2003

Announcements on Results of the Rights Issue in The Standard (English Version)
and Hong Kong Economic Times (Chinese Version) on 23 September 2003

Notice of Board dated 22 September 2003
Circular dated 14 August 2003 for Proposed Rights Issue with Bonus Shares Issue
Prospectus dated 1 September 2003 for Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue

Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice (Form 1) dated 28 August 2003 (SYH)
Individual Substantial Shareholder Notice (Form 1) dated 24 September 2003
(SYH)

Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (YKH)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 28 August 2003 (RL)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (RL)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (MBL)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 31 August 2003 (SS)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (SS)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (CML)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (BST)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 31 August 2003 (WSL)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (WSL)
Director’s/Chief Executive’s Notice (Form 3A) dated 24 September 2003 (BB)

Board Minutes dated 30 June 2003
Board Minutes dated 30 August 2003

Minutes of Special General Meeting dated 1 September 2003




File No. 82-3990

Annex A to Letter to the SEC dated
3 Oct , 2003 of
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited

The documents checked below are being furnished to the SEC to supplement information
provided with respect to the Company’s request for exemption under Rule 12g3-2, which

exemption was established on February 23, 1995:

DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT CHECK IF ENCLOSED

1. Title: Memorandum and Articles of Association
Date: Upon incorporation
Entity requiring item:
Hong Kong Companies Registry (“the Companies Registry”)

under the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong (the “Companies
Ordinance”™). N/A

2. Title: Annual Report

Date: Within four months of the end of the fiscal year and not less than
21 days before Annual General Meeting

Entity requiring item:

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKSE”) pursuant
to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

3. Title: Half Yearly Report and Preliminary Announcement
Date: Within three months of the end of half year period
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. See attached




4. Title: Notification of Changes in Officers
(Directors, Secretaries and Auditors)

Date: Immediately upon change
Entity requiring item:

(a) Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

S. Title: Notification of Changes in Registered Office or Principal Place
of Business

Date: Immediately upon change
Entity requiring item:

(a)  Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. See attached

6. Title: Notification of Changes in Rights attaching to Securities
Date: Immediately upon change
Entity requiring item:

(a)  Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A




7.

10.

Title: Notification of Material Events to Keep Market Fully Informed

Date: As soon as reasonably practicable (as a practical measure,
immediately)

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. See attached

Title: Notification of “Notifiable Transactions”

Date: As soon as possible after terms of transaction have been agreed
(as a practical measure, immediately)

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

Title: Notification of Meetings of Board of Directors at which:
(i) adividend is declared; or
(i) arecommendation to do so is made; or
(1ii) any announcement relating to profits or losses is to be
approved for publication
Date: At least three business days prior to meeting

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. See attached

Title: Notification of Reasons for Allotment of Shares

Date: Not later than morning of next business day after allotment
letters or documents of title are dispatched

Entity requiring item:

. HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A




I1.

12.

13.

14.

Title: Notification of Repurchases of Company’s Shares

Date: As soon as possible (but no later than 9:30 a.m. on business day
following repurchase)

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

Title: All Circulars Sent to Shareholders
Date: Simultaneously with dispatch to Shareholders
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. See attached

Title: Notification of Winding Up Proceedings (or Similar Actions)
Date: Immediately matter becomes known
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

Title: Notification of Annual General Meetings
Date: Within 14 or 21 days of meeting
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A




15. Title: Notification of When Shares Held by Public Fall Below
Prescribed Percentage (25%)

Date: Immediately Company becomes aware
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

16. Title: Filing of Annual Return
Date: 42 days after annual general meeting
Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. N/A

17. Title: Prospectus
Date: As required
Entity requiring item:

(a)  Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance; and

(b)  HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. See attached

18. Title: Notification of All Special Resolutions Passed (i.¢e., resolutions
of members requiring approval of 75% of votes cast at a general
meeting)

Date: Within 14 days of meeting

Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. N/A




19.

20.

21

Title: Notification of Board Approvals for:

(i) decision to make or recommend declaration of distribution
to security holders;

(1) decision not to make or recommend declaration of
distribution to security holders which would otherwise
have been expected,

(ii1) preliminary announcements of profits or losses;

(iv) proposed changes to capital structure, including
redemption of securities; and

(v) changes to general character of nature of business

Date: Immediately after meeting; however, must be during non-trading
hours '

Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

Title: Notification of Issue of Securities under Authority of General
Mandate (1.e., Placements)

Date: Next business day
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to Exchange Listing Agreement. N/A

Title: Individual substantial shareholder notices
Date: Three calendar days after reportable change in ownership
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance. See attached




22. Title: Corporate substantial shareholder notices
Date: Three calendar days after reportable change in ownership
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance. N/A

23. Title: Return of Allotment
Date: Eight weeks after allotment
Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. N/A

24. Title: Notice of Dissolution

Date: Minimum of one month prior to publication in Hong Kong
Gazette

Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. N/A

25. Title: Notification of all changes regarding the Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Company name, person authorized
to accept service, or charges over Hong Kong properties.

Date: Immediately upon change

Entity requiring item:

Companies Registry pursuant to the Companies Ordinance. N/A




26. Other:

Title: Director’s / Chief Executive’s Notices
Date: Three calendar days after reportable change in ownership
Entity requiring item:

HKSE pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance. See attached

27. Other:

Title: Lapse of Share Options See attached

Expiry of Share Options

28. Other:

Title: Rights Issue, Bonus Share Issue, General Mandate to Issue Shares See attached

KMC00998.DOC
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Unaudited interim results for the six months ended June 30, 2003

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED is a holding company with major subsidiaries engaged in the
import, marketing, distribution and after-sales service of high quality, brand-name products serving customers
in the Asian region and, in particular, the markets of mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore and
Malaysia. The products include principally air-conditioning; domestic appliances; audio-visual electrical
items including car audio; motor vehicles and accessories; and other electronic products.

UNAUDITED INTERIM RESULTS

The Directors of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the "Company ") announce that the unaudited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the "Group”) for the six months ended June 30, 2003,
along with the comparative figures for the corresponding pericd and selected explanatory notes, are as
follows:~

Condensed Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Unaudited

Six months ended June 30

- 2002

{Restated)

Notes HK$'000

Turnover 2 296,195
Cost of sales (223,661)
Gross profit 72,534
Other operating revenue 7825
Distribution costs (28,272)
Administrative expenses (46,311)
Surplus on revaluation of properties held for sale -
{Loss) profit from operations 3 5,776
Finance costs (6,653)
Investment income 59
Gain on disposal of an associate 10,641
Loss on disposal of investment properties -
Share of results of associates 3,678
(Loss) profit before taxation 13,501
Taxation 4 (1,267)
{Loss) profit after taxation 12,234
Minority interests (400}
{Loss) profit attributable to shareholders ‘-(14,'7‘,.'74'), 11,834
{Loss) earnings per share — Basic 5 : (173cents) 2.44 cents
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

. ‘Jun,é 30 December 31
12003 2002
AR (Audited and
“(Unaudited) restated)
Notes - 'HK$"000 HK$'000
Non-current assets SR e T
Investment properties 6 116,697 131,793
Property, plant and equipment 7 183,406 186,360
Interest in an associate 115,533
Investment securities 702
434,388
Current assets
Inventories 96,440
Properties held for sale, at net realisable value 88,462
Trade and other receivables 8 59,293
Amount due from an associate 319
Amaounts due from related parties 2,330
Taxation recoverable 1,282
Other investments 73
Bank balances and cash 14,382
262,581
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 9 75,332
Bills payable 42,673
Amounts due to related companies 2,840
Obligations under finance leases — due within one year 92
Borrowings — due within one year 10 74,296
195,233
Net current assets 67348
501,736
Capital and reserves
Share capital 1 77488
Reserves 259,146
336,634
Minority interests 579
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases - due after one year ; i 300
Borrowings~ due after one year 10 ioiai:154,491 153,950
Loans advanced from minority shareholders ' f:1'.,5_22ﬁ_~ 1,622
Deferred taxation #9570 8,751
165,583 164,523
e "?-*‘_{éé,?so' 501,736
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Condensed Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Six months ended June 30

2002
(Unaudited)
HK$'000
Net cash used in operating activities (2,989)
Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities (2,258)
Net cash generated from financing activities 25,924
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 20,677
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1 (16,693)
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes (3,840)
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30 144
Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
Being :
Bank balances and cash 10,394
Bank loan and bank overdrafts {10,250}
144
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

{Unaudited)

At January 1, 2003
Bonus issue of shares
Exchange difference
arising on transiation
of financial statements
of overseas operations
not recognised in
profit and loss account
Loss attributable to

shareholders

At June 30, 2003

At January 1, 2002
Effect of adopting
SSAP12 (revised) -
provided for deferred
tax liability
Capital reorganisation
Rights issue of shares
Bonus issue of shares
Exchange difference
arising on translation
of financial statements
of overseas operations
not recognised in
profit and loss account
Profit atiributable

to shareholders

At June 30, 2002

140,887 725,993 916 2,058 1434 {577,434) 293,854
- - - - - 8,440) (8,440)
(139,478} (343,642) - - - 483,020 -
1,408 47802 - - - - 49,311
4226 (4,226} - - - - -
- - - {5,745} - - (6,745}

- - - - - 11,834 11,834

7044 426,127 916 {3,687) 1,434 (91,020) 340,814
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1.  Significant accounting policies

The unaudited condensed consoclidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Statement of Standard Accounting Practice ("SSAP”) 25, "Interim financial reporting’/

issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants ("HKSA").

These condensed interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 2002 annual

financial statements.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those followed in the Group's annual financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2002, except that the Group has adopted SSAP 12
{(revised) "Income taxes"” issued by HKSA which is effective for accounting periods commencing

on or after January 1, 2003.

The significant change in the Group's accounting policies resulting from the operation of this revised

SSAP 12 is set out below :

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using liability method, on temporary differences between the
tax base of assets/(liabilities) and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Taxation rates

enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred taxation.

‘Deferred tax assets are not recognised unless it is probable that future taxable profit will be availabte

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on the temporary differences arising on investment in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
by the parent company and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

In prior years, deferred taxation was accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of timing
difference between taxable profit and accounting profit to the extent that a liability or an asset
was expected to be payable or recoverable in the foreseeable future. The change in accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively so that the comparative figures have been restated to
conform to the changed policy. Opening balances of equity at January 1, 2002 and 2003 were
reduced by HK$8,440,000 and HK$8,734,000 respectively, which represent the unprovided deferred
tax liabilities. The comparative figure in respect of taxation charges for the prior period was also
increased by HK$294,000.

6 Interim Report 2003




2.

N

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Business and geographical segments

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts, and maintenance service income during the period. An analysis of the Group’s unaudited
segment revenues and results for business segments and geographical segments for the period

is as follows :

Business segments

2003, ¢

-, Audio-visual

< andother * Crsand.

ioning.. .. efectrical - car acces-" " Propérty.

' nvestment Eliminations.

fbfr\qd»uc‘\ts';«. ‘pbr’bduycvts‘;_ sories * marketin
) HK$'000

S+ Consolidated-,
0. HKSO00 - - HKSO00. . M -

s

i‘lT_ilrndver S IR e Sl
L8692 T SBMO - ML 33867

“External salés-

Intersegment siles

Total wmover R L TR V]

.__F‘Iesu‘lts‘ Lo
iSegment results . - -

+ o83 on dispasal of

. v'invké‘_st'mer}t prope’r'ti’es’
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

2. Business and geographical segments (Continued)

Business segments {Continued)

2002
Audio- visual
Aircondit- and other Cars and
ioning electrical car acces- Direct Property
products products sories marketing investment  Eliminations  Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Turnover
External sales 102,867 49420 114,367 29,541 - - 296,195
Intersegment sales 2,096 6,427 - - - (8,523) -
Total turnovar 104,962 56,847 114,367 29,541 - 8,523 296,195
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
Results
Segment results 8,118 533 30N {2.597) 2,500 (396} 11,289
Unallocated corporate

expenses (5,513 )
Profit from aperations 5,776
Finance costs (6,653 )
Investment income 59
Gain on disposal of

an associate 10,641 - - - - - 10,641
Share of results of

associates 3027 651 - - - - 3,678
Profit before taxation . 13,501
Taxation (1,267 )
Profit after taxation 12,234
Minority interests {400)
Profit attributable to

shareholders 11,834
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

2. Business and geographical segments (Continued)

Geographical segments

Sales revenue by Contribution to
geographical market operating results
- .2003 2002 .- 2003 2002

- HK$7000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000

Hong Kong 227118 .- (7167) 9,048
Singapore 26,398 7. 416
Malaysia 8,478 325
Mainiand China 14,624 772
Macau 18,980 712
Others 597 16

267361 296,195 11,289
Unzallocated corporate expenses {5,513)
{Loss) profit from operations 5,776

3. {Loss) profit from operations
(Loss) profit from operations has been arrived at after charging :

Six months ended June 30

2002
HK$'000

Depreciation of:
Owned assets 3,81
Assets held under finance leases 90
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

4. Taxation

2002
HK$ 000
The charge comprises :
Tax for the pericd :
Hong Kong Profits Tax ~
QOverseas income tax 22
22
Deferred tax:
Current period 294
Change in tax rate -
Taxation attributable to the Company and its
subsidiaries 316
Share of taxation attributable to associates 951
1,267

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided for both periods as the Group did riot

derive any assessable profits.
Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
5. (Loss) earnings per share

The calculation of the basic {loss) earnings per share is based on the loss attributable to shareholders
of HK$14,774,000 (2002: profit of HK$11,834,000) and on the weighted average number of 852,367,051
(2002: 485,683,607) ordinary shares in issue during the period. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of basic {loss) earnings per share has been adjusted for the
bonus issue during the period (2002: has been adjusted for the share consolidation and bonus

issue approved on September 18, 2002 and the bonus issue during the period).

No diluted (loss) earnings per share has been presented because the exercise price of the Company’s

outstanding share options was higher than the average market price for share for both periods.
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

6. Investment properties
During the period, the Group had disposed certain of its investment properties situated outside
Hong Kong at HK$7,670,000. A loss of HK$8,526,000 (2002 : nil) arising on the disposal of these
investment properties has been charged to the profit and loss account.

7. Property, plant and equipment

Jline: 0‘ December 31

2002

HK$'000

Opening net book value 188,749
Exchange difference 32
Additions 6,645
Disposals (443)
Depreciation charge (8,623)
Closing net book value 186,360

8. Trade and other receivables

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers. The aged analysis of

trade receivables is as follows:

December 31

2002

HK$'000

Within 30 days 18,608
Over 30 days 9,503
Over 60 days 1,289
Over 90 days 2,108
Over 1 year 1,370
Total trade receivables 32,878
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 26,415
59,293
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

8. Trade and other payables

The aged analysis of trade payables is as follows :

December 31

2002

HK$'000

Within 30 days 5,474
Over 30 days 2,630
Over 60 days 2,621
Over 90 days 4,167
Over 1 year 1,569
Total trade payables 16,461
Customers’ deposits, accruals and other payables 58,871
75,332

10. Borrowings

December 31

2002
HK$'000
Bank loans and overdrafts
Secured 75,214
Unsecured 1,837
77051
Unsecured loans advanced from a Director (note a) 15,725
Unsecured loans advanced from related companies (note b) 4,755
Secured loan advanced from a supplier (note ¢) 130,715
228,246
The maturity of the above loans is as follows:
Within one year 74,296
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 10,924
More than two years, but not exceeding five years 6,779
More than five years 136,247
228,246
Less : Amounts due within one year shown under current liabilities (74,296)
Amounts due after one year 153,950
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

10. Borrowings {Continued)

Notes :

a. The loans advanced from a Director are unsecured. HK$15,000,000 {2002 : HK$12,000,000) of the
balance bears interest at 10% per annum and is repayable in three instalments on or before July 31,
2003, August 31, 2003 and September 30, 2003, respectively. The remaining balance has no fixed term
of repayment and is non-interest bearing.

b. The loan advanced from a related company is unsecured, has no fixed term of repayment and bears
interest at 1% above the best lending rate.

The loans advanced from related companies as at December 31, 2002 were unsecured and have no
fixed terms of repayment. HK$4,475,000 of the balance bore interest at 1% above the best lending

rate. The remaining balance was non-interest bearing.

C. The loan advanced from a supplier is secured by properties of the Group, bears interest at 2.5% per
annum and is repayable semi-annually by ten instalments commencing from June 30, 2012.

11. Share capital

Number of shares Nominal value
HK$'000
Authorised:
At January 1, 2002 of HK$0.10 each 3,500,000,000 350,000 '
Cancellation of HK$0.099 of the paid up capital
of each of 1,408,871,178 issued shares - (139,478)
Share consolidation of ten reduced issued shares ;
into one share of HK$0.01 each (1,267,984,061) - 1
Subdivision of one unissued share into ten shares
of HK$0.01 each 18,820,159,398 -
Share consolidation of ten shares into one
share of HK$0.10 each {18,946,957,804) -
Increase of authorised share capital 1,394,782,467 139,478
At January 1, 2003 and June 30, 2003 of
HK$0.10 each 3,500,000,000 350,000 |
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

11. Share capital {Continued)

Number of shares Nominal value
HK$'000
Issued and fully paid:
At January 1, 2002 of HK$0.10 each 1,408,871,178 140,887
Cancellation of HK$0.099 of the paid up capital
of each of 1,408,871,178 issued shares - (139,478)
Share consolidation of ten reduced issued shares
into one share of HK$0.01 each (1,267984,061) -
Issue of shares upon rights issue 140,887.117 1,409
Issue of shares upon bonus share issue 422,661,351 4,226
Share consolidation of ten issued shares into one
share of HK$0.10 each (633,992,027) -
Issue of shares upon bonus share issue 704,435,680 70,444
At January 1, 2003 of HK$0.10 each 774,879,138 77488
tssue of shares upon bonus share issue (Note) 77487913 7749
At June 30, 2003 of HK$0.10 each 852,367,051 85,237

Note:

Pursuant to the resolution passed on the special general meeting held on May 6, 2003, a bonus issue of
ordinary shares, on the basis of one bonus share for every ten shares of HK$0.10 each held by the shareholders
of the Company, was approved. The Company issued 77,487,313 new shares of HK$0.10 each pursuant to the
bonus issue of shares.

12. Related party transactions
During the period, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

Six months ended June 30

2002

HK$'000

Interest expenses paid to a Director 187
Interest expenses paid to a related company 234
Interest income received from a related party 20
Management and agency fee paid to a related company 1,662
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

13. Contingencies and commitments

There is no material change in the contingencies and commitment since the last annual reporting
date.

14. Pledge of assets

At the interim balance sheet date, certain of the Group’s land and building, investment properties,
properties held for sale and inventories with an aggregate net book value of HK$355,176,000
(December 31, 2002 : HK$349,952,000) and all assets of a subsidiary of HK$13,833,000 { December
31, 2002 : HK$12,617000) have been pledged to secure facilities granted by banks and a supplier
of the Group.

15. Post interim balance sheet event

Pursuant to the resolutions passed on the special general meeting held on September 1, 2003, a
rights issue of 340,946,820 shares of HK3$0.10 each at HK$0.10 per share on the basis of two
rights shares for every five shares held on the record date with the bonus shares issue on the

basis of the three bonus shares for every fuily paid rights share was approved.

The net proceeds of HK$32 million has been received and used to reduce the indebtedness and to

provide additional working capital to the Group.
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Directors have resolved not to declare the payment of an interim dividend (2002: nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

Results

Group turnover at HK$267.4 million, was HK$28.8 million {(-8.7%) down on the same period last year.
Two key factors adversely affected the businesses in Hong Kong. Firstly, the serious panic brought
about by the outbreak of the Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (“ SARS”) epidemic, significantly disrupted
the markets. And secondly, the market in Hong Kong for the sale of passenger motor vehicles was also
badly affected by the very high increases in the First Registration Tax ("FRT") introduced in the Budget
on March 5, 2003. This announcement, overnight, caused motor sales to plummet. Any sales which
were subsequently achieved were at hittle or no profit and were made at special pricing in order to
guickly reduce inventories. The products sold by the Group are at the upper range of the premium and
luxury vehicle sector and attract the highest rates of FRT which were proposed to increase from a flat
rate of 60% to a progressive rate up to 150%. In the event, intense lobbying by the motor trade and
many political, economic and market groups, as well as the Hong Kong customers, caused the Hong
Kong Government to reduce the rate of tax increases and this was done in June 2003. Between early
March to the end of June, the market for sales of new vehicles at proper pricing was almost non-

existent.

Gross profits fell by HK$14.3 million {-19.8%) to HK$58.2 million compared with the first six months of
last year. Gross margins were reduced 10 21.8% (2002: 24.5%) largely as a result of pricing power being
drained from the market by the combined effect of SARS and FRT and which domestic market was

already seriously weak and price competitive.

Both distribution costs and general administrative expenses were below the comparative costs for the

same period last year, showing a saving of 3.5% or HK$2.6 million.

The Group recorded a loss on disposal of investment properties, sold in the mainland China, in the
period of HK$8.5 million. These were three separate small investment properties which were sold to a
local property developer for redevelopment purposes at values well below book value. It was envisaged
at the end of the last financial year, that some small marginal properties may have 1o be sold below book
value and for that reason a general provision of HK$5 million was made. It was deemed appropriate,
therefore, to write-back the provision to partiaily cushion the loss realized in the period, and the net loss

effect in the results was HK$3.5 million in this period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION (CONTINUED)

Results (Continued)

The results from the one remaining mainland China joint-venture business, being a domestic appliance
manufacturing and marketing business, were significantly below last year. Also the first half of 2002
included contributions from a second manufacturing joint-venture company, which was sold in June
2002, and therefore there were no such profit contributions this year. For both reasons, the share of

profits from associates fell by HK$3.5 million.

The combined effect of the three major factors of {(a) the market disruption and gross margin impact of
the SARS epidemic and the FRT hiatus; (b) the loss on disposal of small properties; and (c) the reduction
in profit contributed by associated companies not controlied by the Group, caused an attributable loss
for the period of HK$14.8 million to be recorded (2002: HK$11.8 miilion profit).

Cash flow, liquidity and financial resources

At June 30, 2003 cash and bank balances amounted to HK$12.6 million (December 31, 2002 : HK$14.4
million) and total borrowings were HK$254.7 million (December 31, 2002 : HK$228.2 million). At the
end of the reporting period, the Group's total net debt gearing was 75.4% (December 31, 2002: 63.5%)
based on shareholders’ equity of HK$321.2 million (December 31, 2002: HK$336.6 million).

At June 30, 2003 the Group had trade finance and revolving loan facilities amounting to HK$169.1
million (December 31, 2002 : HK$166.2 million) of which HK$137.4 million had been drawn and was

outstanding.

An integral part of the Group’s risk management policy, is to hedge foreign currency transactions to
eliminate adverse currency movements on indent sales, in the normal course of the business. At June
30, 2003 the total outstanding foreign exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted to HK$15
million {December 31, 2002: HK$44 miltion).

The Group had total banking facilities amounting to HK$178.4 million at June 30, 2003 (December 31,
2002: HK$177.1 million) largely based on Hong Kong best lending rates and mainly secured by assets of
the Group. The Group had no contingent ligbilities both at June 30, 2003 and December 31, 2002.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Air-conditioning products

The business consists of marketing and distribution of the range of products from Mitsubishi Heavy

Industries of Japan ("MHI") for which the Group holds exclusive distribution rights for Hong Kong,

~ Singapore and Macau (all products) and part of the mainland China market. MHI provides a full range of

air-conditioning products both for the package commercial systems and the consumer markets. Similarly,
the Group also markets and distributes a wide range of commerciai and consumer airconditioning products
supplied under the “LG” brand ("L.G Electronics Inc” of Korea}. Both are prominent global brahds‘ The
Group also provides after-sales service and support to its customers. In addition, the Group is the sole
distributor in Hong Kong and Macau for two ranges of air-conditioning products manufactured in the
mainland China. The Group distributes products in Hong Kong under the “Galanz” brand, a leading
Chinese electrical appliances brand. The Group also has a joint-brand product distribution with the leading
"GREE" airconditioning products brand manufacturer and a range of air-conditioning products are sold
under the “"GREE-BODYSONIC” joint-label, “BODYSONIC" being an in-house brand used by the Group

for all markets other than Japan; Taiwan; Korea and Middle East.

Total sales to third-party customers for the six months amounted to HK$66.9 million which was a 35%
reduction on sales recorded in the same period last year. Sales for home air-conditioning products were
badly hit by SARS which occurred during the peak trading months of the season for such products.
Gross margins were still satisfactory although they were approximately 1.5% of sales lower than last
year. In the continuing weak market with the residential sector being badly affected by SARS this year
and given competitive product pricing pressure, the Group did well to maintain overall profitability from
the business. The commercial product sector has maintained a steady position in Hong Kong, although
business has significantly declined in the mainland China market due to severe local competition. The

Group has been increasing its marketing and distribution efforts in this key market.

The product sector is competitive, but the Group's marketing activity has strengthened and in an improving

market environment, the second half sales are expected to be increased over those achieved last year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Audio-visual and other electrical products

The audio-visua!l business markets and distributes a range of products which include "LG" branded
domestic electrical appliance products that are now well established in the market; sales of "Alpine”
and "Rogers” branded car audio and electronic products. The "Alpine” brand (from Japan) is undoubtedly
one of the top brands in the global market for car audio and visual entertainment equipment; and a
range of audio-visual products produced and sold under the Group’s in-house owned brands of “Rogers”

{from the UK) and "Bodysonic” (from Japan).

Total sales in the six months increased by 11.6% to HK$55.1 million, over the same period last year.
Despite a weak domestic market in Hong Kong, an increased range of product offerings and excellent
car product sales in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia, provided the increased business. Despite
continued and everpresent price competition gross margins were maintained and the overall results of

the business were considered satisfactory and similar to those of last year.

New products continue to be introduced (e.g., car audio and video products; plasma TVs and home
theatre systems etc) and with increased sales efforts in new export markets; with increased market
penetration in existing markets; and given rising car sales in PRC and greater OEM business being done
in Singapore, then the prospects for sales for the second half of this year are to at least be at the same

level of those of the previous year.

Direct marketing

The business involves direct retailing in consumer electronic and electrical products, in the Hong Kong

market under the "Mega Warehouse” branded outlets.

Sales to customers in the first six months this year were HK$33.9 million which showed a2 14.6%
increase over the same period last year. Obviously, the advent of the SARS epidemic seriously affected
the Hong Kong retail sector, however, the Group was able to offer very competitive products available in
an increased number of outiets which traded for the full half-year over those available last year, and
therefore total revenues increased. The business still has not reached a level of volume which will
enable profit to be earned but a programme of steady growth in outlets; improved merchandising;
increased ranges of innovative value-for-money products; and increasing brand awareness activities to

promote consumer loyalty; will all work towards achievement of that objective.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Car and car accessories

The business is the importing, marketing, sales and parts supply and after-sales servicing of the “Ferrari”
and "Maserati” vehicle franchises. The Group is the sole distributor for these two unigue premier sports

margues in Hong Kong, Macau and mainfand China.

Turnover for the first half year was HK$111.4 million which was a decline of HK$2.9 million (-2.6%) on
the same period last year. The first six months was particularly taxing because of the hiatus and disruption
to the fuxury car market caused by the large increase proposed to the top rate of 150% in First Registration
Tax announced in the budget in early March. The market for luxury car sales virtually came to a complete
stop. Any cars that were sold were done so with special pricing at no-profit in order to reduce inventories
and turn cash flow in the business. Fortunately, the lobbying by the Company together with interested
parties was successful in reducing the penal rates of tax increases which were proposed tax rates
applicable to the luxury sector still increased from a flat rate of 60% to a progressive rate to0 100%, but
customers can more readily accept these increases in difficult economic conditions. Since the new
rates were confirmed in June, the market has returned to near normality and sales in the second half
year are projected to increase substantially. Both sales and profits are forecast to recover strongly and
be well ahead of last year. Plans are being advanced for a further exciting development of the China
market and with exciting new models expected from both Maserati and Ferrari in the course of the next

six to.twelve months, it is expected that this business will show excellent growth in the coming years.
HUMAN RESOURCES

As of June 30, 2003, the Group employed 374 people (2002: 344), excluding employees of the associated
company. The market environment continued to be extremely difficult and further staff savings and cost
reductions were undertaken. However, there is only minimal room for further such exercises and the
Group looks to improvements in operating practices and staff efficiencies. The Group has maintained a
stable team of loyal, dedicated employees and looks for an improving market environment to allow it to
once more offer improved competitive remuneration packages, target related bonuses and share option
incentives based on performance and contribution. The Board is extremely pleased to record its appreciation

of its employees.
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POST INTERIM BALANCE SHEET EVENT

In the special general meeting on September 1, 2003, the Company passed resolutions for approving
the rights issue of shares at HK$0.10 per rights share on the basis of two rights shares for every five
existing shares held on September 1, 2003 (“Rights tssue”) with bonus shares issued on the basis of
three bonus shares for every fully paid rights share ("Bonus Shares Issug”}. The Directors consider that
the Rights Issue provides an opportunity for the Group to raise funds to improve its financial position
and capability to develop its franchise and distribution businesses. The proceeds of the Rights Issue will
enhance the working capital and the net asset position of the Company as a whole and improve the

financial gearing of the Company.

The Company had received 155 valid acceptances for 320,622,377 Rights Shares provisionally aliotted
under the Rights Issue and 141 valid excess applications for 521,171,807 Rights Shares, amounting to
841,794,184 Rights Shares in agaregate {representing approximately 246.89% of the total number of
Rights Shares available for subscription under the Rights Issue). Accordingly, the Rights Issue was over
subscribed by approximately 146.89%. On September 23, 2003, pursuant to the Rights Issue with
Bonus Shares Issue, the Company issued 1,363,787280 new shares of HK$0.10 each.

PROSPECTS

For special reasons of the outbreak of SARS; the continued economic malaise affecting the domestic
market of Hong Kong; and the further hit on the domestic automobile market by the high FRT, the
trading of the Group's businesses have all uniformly been adversely affected. As a consequence, a
trading and attributabie loss was recorded. However, there are signs of improved trading conditions in
the second half. The stimulus of the CEPA arrangement and the increased number of visitors from
mainland China due to relaxation of rules governing such visits, is greatly improving prospects. Excluding
any non-recurrent items, it is expected that the second six months will provide the Group with profitable
operations and improved results over the second half last year. Whilst the whole year may not be profitable,
after allowing for small non-recurrent losses, it is expected that the Group will be able to plan for improved
and increased revenues and much improved resuits, given the improved economic outlook for the regional

domestic economies.
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OTHER INFORMATION

Disclosure of directors’ interests

{a}  As at June 30, 2003, the interests and short positions of each Directors and chief executive of the

Company in the Sheares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any associated

corporation {within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (*SFO")} as

recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352

of the SFO; or are required, pursuant

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to

the Company and the Stock Exchange are as follows:

() Beneficial interest and short position in Shares as at June 30, 2003:

Number of Shares

Personal Family Corporate
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Total
Richard Man Fai LEE 12,909,380 2,591,820 450,513,734 466,014,934
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Jeff Man Bun LEE 1,815,000 - 456,074,192 457,889,192

Kam Har YUE 20,037370
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN 181,500
Notes:

1. The 2,591,820 Shares are owned by Ms. Siew Yit HOH,

{Notes 2 & 3)

450,513,734 470,651,104
{(Note 2)

- - 181,600

the spouse of Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE.

2. The 450,513,734 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower
Inc. as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr.
Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the
units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai

LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

3. Out of the 456,074,192 Shares, 5,560,458 Shares are held by Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

4. All interests in the Shares are long positions. None of the Directors held any short positien in the

Shares.
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED) ;

Disclosure of directors’ interests (Continued)

(i) Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company

as at June 30, 2003 are disclosed in the section headed “Share options” of this report:

(i) Beneficial interests and short position in shares in associated corporations as at June 30,

2003:
Number of i
shares or equity Class and/or |
Name of associated interests held or description of i
Name of Director corporation interested in  shares/interests
Wing Sum LEE Stoneycroft Estates Limited 15,750,000 non-voting
‘ deferred shares
Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,500 non-voting
deferred shares
Wo Kee Services Limited 1 non-voting
deferred shares
Kam Har YUE Wo Kee Hong Limited 400 non-voting
deferred shares
Shinwa Engineering Company, 3,850,000 non-voting
Limited deferred shares
Stoneycroft Estates Limited 340,000 non-voting
deferred shares
Forward International 34,335 non-voting
Corporation, Limited deferred shares
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Substantial shareholders’ interests

Save as disclosed below and in the section headed "Disclosure of directors’ interests’ as at June 30,
2003, so far as is known to the Directors, no other person had, or was deemed or taken to have an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under Section 336 as the SFO:

Approximate % of

Company Name Number of Shares the total issued Shares

Modern Orbit Limited 450,613,734 52.86%

Note: The 450,613,734 Shares are held by Modern Orbit Limited, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower Inc. as
trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee UnitTrust are held by a discretionary trust of
which Mr. Wing Sum LEE's family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by Skylink
International Asset Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms. Kam
Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

Share Options

1991 Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on June 22, 1991 ("1991 Scheme”) for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees and expired on June 21, 2001. The
Directors may, at their discretion, grant options to all eligible employees, including executive Directors

of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 1891 Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of
the maximum aggregate number of shares of the Company for the time being issued and issuable
under the 1991 Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.
Options are exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month from the date of acceptance

of options.
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Share options (Continued)

1991 Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of a price
being not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of

grant, and the nominal value of a share of the Company.

2001 Scheme

Another share option scheme ("2001 Scheme”) was subsequently adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on June 28, 2001 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees,

and was terminated on May 30, 2002 pursuant to a resolution passed on that date.

Under the 2001 Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any full-time employees, including executive

and non-executive Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2001 Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any point in time. The number of
shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of
the maximum aggregate number of shares of the Company for the time being issued and issuable
under the 2001 Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant.
Options are exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month from the date of acceptance

of options.

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of a price
being not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value of a share of the

Company.
Upon termination of the 2001 Scheme, no further options will be granted but in all other respects, the

provisions of the 2001 Scheme shall remain in force and all granted prior to such termination shall

continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith.
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Share options (Continued)

2002 Scheme

On August 23, 2001, the Stock Exchange has announced amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, which has come into effect on September 1, 2001. In compliance with the amendments to the
Listing Rules and the announcement of the Stock Exchange, the Company adopted a new share option
scheme (2002 Scheme”) and terminated the 2001 Scheme on May 30, 2002 pursuant to a resolution
passed on that date. The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
for their contribution to the Group and enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable 1o the Group and any companies in which the Group holds any

equity interest. The 2002 Scheme will expire on the 10th anniversary of date of adoption.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may at their discretion grant options to
the following participants of the Company, its subsidiaries and any companies in which the Group holds

any equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the Company:

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or

2. suppliers or customers; or

3. any person or entity that provides research, development or other technological support; or

4, shareholders; or

5. employees, partners or Directors of any business partners, joint venture partners, financial advisers

and legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates must be approved by the independent Non-executive Directors of the Company

(excluding any Independent Non-executive Director who is the grantee).

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. Subject to the above rule, the total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes must not in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the adoption date of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval from the Company’s

shareholders.
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Share options (Continued)

2002 Scheme (Continued)

The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any participant in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to a substantial shareholder, or an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, or any of their respective associates under the 2002 Scheme
and any other schemes in any one year in excess of 0.1% of the Company's issued share capital or with
a value, based on the closing price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of

HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 per each
grant of options. The exercise period of the share options granted under the 2002 Scheme shall be
determined by the Board of Directors when such options are granted, provided that such period shall
not end later than 6 years from the date of grant. The subscription price is determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company, and will not be less than the higher of the closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of grant, or the average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately

preceding the date of grant, or the nominal value of a share of the Company.
No Share Options were exercised or granted for the six months ended June 30, 2003.
At June 30, 2003, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained

outstanding under the 1991, 2001 and 2002 Scheme were 52,736,402, 67,464,230 and 51,475,569
representing 6.19%, 7.91% and 6.04% of the issued share capital of the Company at that date respectively.

Interim Report 2003




.

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

OTHER INFORMATION {(CONTINUED)

Movement of share options

The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s share options for the six months ended
June 30, 2003:

QOutstanding options Subscription price ;
at January 1, 2003 Outstanding per share 'l
Eligible Date of Before After Options ~ optionsat  Exercisable Before After %
persons Scheme  grant adjustment  adjustment® lapsed  June 30,2003  period adjustment  adjustment’
HKS HES |
|
Mr. Wing Sum LEE 1981 July 28,1997 6,875,687 1663255 0 7563255 August 31,1997 15858 14416 [
[Director - August 36, 2003 |
i

1991 January 19, 1998 1,650,165 1,815,181 0 1,815,181 February 22, 1998 (.6546 0.5951

- February 21, 2004

1991 December 21,1999 3575,357 3,932,892 i 3,932,892 February 11, 2000 0.4185 0.3786
- February 10, 2008

1991 February 11, 2000 1,650,165 1,815,181 0 1815181 March 21, 2000 0.971 08328 ‘
- March 20, 2006

A0 August 10, 2001 19,251,925 FARIIALY) 0 NATT - September 16, 2001 0.2975 02708
- September 15, 2007

2002 September 24, 2002 224,000 246,400 0 246,400 September 24, 2002 0.1000 0.1000°
- September 23, 2008

Mr. Richard 1991 July 28,1897 742542 8,168,316% 0 8,168,315*  August 28, 1997 15658 14416
Man Fai LEE - August 27, 2003
{Directar)

1991 January 19, 1998 1,705,170* 1,875,686* 0 1,875,685"  February 19, 1998 0.6546 0,591

- February 18, 2004

1991 June 10, 1938 550,055 605,060 0 605,080 July 24, 1998 0.3132 0.2847
- Juby 23, 2004
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Movement of share options (Continued)

QOutstanding options Subscription price {
at January 1, 2003 Qutstanding per share
Efigible Date of Before After Options optionsat  Exercisable Before After :
persons Scheme  grant adjustment  adjustment? lapsed  June 30,2003 period adjustment  adjustment’
HKS HKS
1991 December 21,1999 3665,368*  4,083,304* 0 4,053,904°  February 7 2000 0.4165 0.3786
- February 7 2006 J
1991 Fehruary 1, 2000 1,925,192 219 0 210711 March 18,2000 0.7 0888
£
- March 17, 2006
1991 May 28, 2001 2200,220 2420242 0 2420242 June 29, 2004 0.2975 0.2705

- June 28, 2007

2001 August 10, 2001 19,251,925 ARTAIH 0 N.47717 September 16, 2001 0.2875 0.2705
- September 15, 2007

2001 August 29, 2001 275,021 302,529* 0 302,529 September 30, 2001 (.2975 0.2705
- September 29, 2007

2002 September 24,2002 7748,000 8,522,800 0 8522800 September 24, 2002 0.1000 0.10008
- September 23, 2008

Mr. Sammy 1991 July 28,1997 550,055 £05,060 0 605,060 August 31,1997 15858 14416
Chi Chung SUEN - Pugust 30, 2003
{Director)

1991 December 21,1939 165,016 181,547 0 181517 February 8, 2000 0.4165 0.3786

- February 5, 2006

1991 February 11, 2000 275,027 302528 0 302,529 March 22, 2000 0.9mM 0.8828
- March 21, 2006

1991 January 18, 2001 143,014 157315 0 157315 March 6, 2001 0.287%5 0.2705
- March 5, 2007 '

2000 August 10, 200t 550,085 605,060 0 £05,060  September 19, 2001 0.2975 0.2705
- September 18, 2007

2002 June 4, 2002 2,200,220 2420242 0 2420242 June 4, 2002 0.1440 0.1309
- June 3, 2008
2002 September 24, 2002 700,000 770,000 0 770,000 September 24, 2002 0.1000 0.1000°

- September 23, 2008
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Movement of share options (Continued)

Outstanding options Subscription price
at January 1, 2003 QOutstanding per share
Eligible Date of Before After Options options at  Exercisable Before After 3
persons Scheme grant adjustment  adjustment? lapsed  June 30,2003  period adjustment  adjustment’
HKS HKS
Ms. KamHarYUE 2001 August29, 2001 75,027 302,529 0 302529 September 30, 2001 0.2975 0.2705
{Director) - September 29, 2007
Mr Jeff ManBun 2002 June 4, 2002 1,100,110 1210121 0 1210121 June 4, 2002 0.1440 0.1309 ,
LEE - June 3, 2008
{Director
2002 September24, 2002 500,000 550,000 8 550,000  September 24, 2002 0.1000 0 10008 ‘
~ September 23, 2008
Mr Raymond Cho 2002 June 4, 2002 70,077 847084 0 847084 Juned, 2002 0.1440 0.1308
Min LEE - June 3, 2008 3‘
{Director} |
2002 September 24, 2002 4,000 4400 0 4400 September 24, 2002 0.1000 0.10002
- September 23, 2008
Mr.BoonSeng 2002 Jumed, 2002 n0m 847084 0 B47084  June d, 2002 0.1440 0.1309
TAN - : - June 3, 2008
{Director)
2002 September 24, 2002 4,000 4400 0 4400  September 24, 2002 0.1000 0.1000®
- September 23, 2008
Total: 86,000,676 94,600,731 0 94600731
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Movement of share options {(Continued)

Qutstanding options Subscription price
at January 1, 2003 Outstanding per share
Eligible Date of Before After Options optionsat  Exercisable Before After
persons Scheme  grant adjustment  adjustment* lapsed  June 30,2003  period adjustment  adjustment!
HKS HKS
i
Continuous 1991 July 28,1897 1,100,110 1,210,121 0 1210121 August 28, 1997 15858 14416 1.
contract - September 10, 2003 T
employees 1991 January 19, 1998 950,430 1,045,524 18151 1027373 February 20, 1398 (.6546 05951 i;
- March 12, 2004
1991 December21,1993 724,39 196,83 27831 769,001 February 1, 2000 0.4165 0.3786 :
- Mah 21, 2008 ]
1991 February 11, 2000 181517 199,668 b 199,668 March 18, 2000 0.9711 0.8828 {
- March 21, 2006 !
1991 September8 2000 1,850,165 1,815,181 0 1815181 November 5, 2000 0.4204 0.3822 E
- November 4, 2006 ?
1991 May 28, 2001 11,001,100 12,101,210 0 12100210 June 30, 2001 0.297% 0.2706
- June 29, 2007 !
2001 August 10, 2001 19,251,925 L 0 N3771M7  September 14, 2001 0.2975 0.2705 ;
- September 13, 2007 !
2000 August 29, 2001 1,925,188 21770 0 217701 September 30, 2001 0.2975 0.2705 :
- Septerber 30, 2007 ;
2000 November23, 2001 550,055 605,060 0 605,080  December 23, 2001 0.2975 0.2705 ;
~ December 22, 2007 ]
2002 Juned, 2002 5007497 27530238 0 27830238 June 4, 2002 0.1440 0.1309 |
- June 3, 2008 “
2002 September 24,2002 7748,000 8,522,800 0 8522800 September 24, 2002 0.1000 0.1000% |

- September 23, 2008

Total: 70,110,433 1121452 45,382 17,075,470

Grand Total: 156,111,108 171,722,183 45962 171,676,200
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OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Movement of share options {Continued)

* Share options granted to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE's spouse were included. |

# The number of share options granted under 1991, 2001 and 2002 Schemes and their respective subscription
prices have been adjusted for the Bonus Share Issue taken place in May 2003. Calculation of the adjustments
has been verified by the auditors of the Company.

@ The exercise price of these share options have been adjusted to HK$0.10, being the nominal value of a Share
as it is not legally permissible to issue new Shares at below the nominat value of HK$0.10.

Purchase, sale or redemption of securities

During the six months ended June 30, 2003, the Company and its subsidiaries have not repurchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities.

Corporate governance

None of the directors of the Company is aware of any information that would reasonably indicate that
the Company is not, or was not during the six months ended June 30, 2003, in compliance with the
Code of Best Practice as set-out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except in relation to guideline 7; as
non-executive directors of the Company are appointed for a term expiring upon their retirement by

rotation as required by the Company's Bye-Laws.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee has reviewed with directors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters related to the preparation of
the unaudited condensed financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2003. The Audit Committee
was content that the accounting policies of the Group are in accordance with the current best practice

in Hong Kong. The Interim Results have not been audited.
By Order of the Board of Directors
Richard Man Fai LEE

Executive Chairman & CEQ

Hong Kong, September 24, 2003
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

2003 INTERIM RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

WO KEE HOVG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED is a holdmg company with major subsidiaries engaged in the

import, marketiz + distribution and after-sales service of high quality, brand-name products serving ‘ . andother  Carssad "
customers in the ~sian region and, in particular, the markets of Mainland People’s. Republic of China M”“"d‘”;“'“,g ""g"‘:" “" “m &':"n‘( : m“’"::"; Eliminotions Consolldated
(PRC), Hong Xong, Macau, Singapore and Malaysia. The products include principally air-conditioning; Z’;‘fgp;‘ eson ";;l",’so,zo'; prat 3 ,:;“,0;0 kS on0 K000 -
domestic appliances; audio- wsual electrical ltcms mcludmg car audio; motor vehmles and accessories; and . 4 ’ ' :
other electronic products.” Loss on disposal of o
investment propetties \ . (8,526}
RESULTS Share of resultofan  ° , . »
The Directors of Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited (the “Company") announce that the unaudited associate ST e - - - - 159
consglidated results of the Campany and itg subs:dlarles {the "Group") for the six months ended June 30, Los$ before (axation - (14,518)
2003' are as follows Taration e _ 9
Unaudited “,_ Loss sRer taxation o N (15353)
Six months ended June 30 Minority interests 579
2003 (Restgtosodz) Lags attributable to
sharcholders 14,774)
" Notes HK3'000 HK$'000 ELALM |
e . . 2002 . v
Turnover ) 2 267,361 296,195 e ! Audio-visval
Cost of sales . (209,153) (223,661) and other
! a——— —_ Air-conditioning . efectrical Cars and car Direct Property i
Gross profit 58,208 72,534 products . products accessories.  markeling  investmen( Eliminations Consolidaled '
Other operating revenue “ 7,341 7,825 HK$000 | HKE00D, MK$'000 | HK$'000 . HKEOGO  HREUG0  HK3000
Distribution costs (27,032} (28,272) Turnover ) L o . .
‘Adrinistrative cxpenges (44.930) (46,311 Exicenal sales fozg67 49420 (14367 29341 - = 16098
Surplus on revaluation of properties hcld for sale 5,000 - Inter-segment sales 2,096 6,427 - - - (8,523) -
. (Loss) profit from Uperaﬁons 3 (1,413) 5,776 Total turnover 104 961 55,847 114,367 29,541 - 15,523) 296,195
ﬁ:g:;:;ﬁi‘:wme . (s’gz) » (6’623) inter-segrment sales are charged at prcvalhng markel rates, I
, . : . Its |
Gain on disposal of an associate : - 10,641 Resu .
: X ‘ ! 59 g1 1397 2,50 396 11269 .
Loss on disposal of investment properties (8,526) - Segment resuls éﬁ =3 3=[ - &) =% e :
Share of results of associates 159 3,678 Unallpcated corporate P !
—— ————— expenscs (5,513
{Loss) profit before laxatlon (14,518) 13,501 i - e
‘Taxation -« ¢ 4 835 1,267 Profit from operations R
. ) ) ’ .—-(.—) . _-—(-.—) Finance cosls (6,653)
(Loss) profi after taxatioh (15,353) 12,234 Investment income 59
“Minefity interests - 570 t400) Gain nn dispoinl of an :
- v i 10,641 - - - - - 10,641
(Loss) profit attributable to shareholders (14,774) 11,834 Share of results of .
L i hare - Bas! 5 173 cents) 244 o el Bl B B N ) 278
0ss) earnings per share — Basic \73 cents Ad cents ——
( ) . g' 4 . : i(z e Profit before taxation ! 13,501
Na!c; ’ Taxation ! (1,267
<1, Significant a:wuntlng policies. Profit after taxation , 12234
" Lt The yhaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Minority interests ! (400):
.. Statemenl of Standard Accounting Prachce ("SSAP™) 25, “Interim financial reporting”, tysued by the Hong Kong Profit attributable to :
- Seciety of Accountants ("HKSA™). . ) . . shareholders ! 11,834
The condensed interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 2002 snnual financial statements. -
o - e . . . . N Geographical segments
. The dceounting policies adopted are consistent with those followed in the Group's annual financial statements for the ibuth
year cnded December 31, 2002, excepl (hil the Group has adupied SSAP 12 (revised) “Income taxes™ issued by Sales ",""“‘ by Contrlbution to
. HKSA which is effective for accounting periods commencing on ar afler Janvary 1, 2003, } 23;6735""” cal "’"k;(;m logge'”“"g "’”“’2002
. ﬁlcbsxlgmﬁcanl change in the Group's accoummg policies resulting from the operation of this revised SSAP 12 is set ~ HE$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HES000 »
iyt Ut pelaw: b : Hong Kong . 18913 27,118 167 9,048 |
' Deferrcd taxation is prcvxdzd in full, usmg habx]lly method, on temporary difTerences between the tax base of assets/ . Singapore 15,366 . 16,398 1 416
(liabililies) and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Taxalion rates enacted or subsiantially enacted by Malaysia : ' '“‘555 8:478 680 325
; the balance sheel date ate used lo determine deferred (axation. PRC : 25,167 14,624 5,274 72
) ’.r", ' Deferred tax asses are not recognised unless it is probable that future taxable proﬁl witl be avallable against wh»ch Macau 10,282 18980 206 712
.« the lemporary differences can be utilised. Others oo 3,678 597 89 16,
i*. Deferfed taxation is provided on the lémporary differences arising on investtient in sub:vdlanes ahd associales, exeepl [P 267,361 - 296,195 (666) 11,289 ,
« where thé-liming of the reversal of the temporary difTerences can be controlied by the parenl company and it iy : Sme— ——— :
. probable that the temporary difference will riot reverse in the foreseeable future. Unallocated corporate expenses (747) 5,513

In prior years, deferted laxation was accounted for af (ke current taxation rale in respect of timing difTerence between
* taxable profit and accounting profit to the exten! that a liability or an asset was expected to be payable or recoverable
:in the foreseeable future, The change in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively so that the comparative
+ figures have been restated to conform to the changed policy. Opening balances of equity at January 1, 2002 and 2003
were reduced by HK$8,440,000 and HKS$8,734,000 respectively, which represent the unprovided deferred tax
{iabifitics. The comparative figure {n respect of {axation charges for the prior period was afso increased by
HK$294,000. . .
1, Business and geographfcal sugmenu .
- Turngver represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, afler allowances for returns and trade discounts, and
', maintenance service income during the period. An anglysis of the Group's unaudited segment revenues and results fot
business segments and geographical segments for the period is as follows:

Busingss segments

2003
Audio-visual
and other Cars and
Alr-conditioning electrical ' car Direct Property
: *products - " products  accessories  marketing  Investment Eliminations Consolidated
HK$000 - HKS'000 HEKS'000 HKE'000 - HKS$'000 - - HKE'000 HKS'000
" Turnover'” o C ' ) ;
External fales | {66,929 35,140 111,435 13,887 - - 267361
!nlcr-scgmcmsalcs . 98l. . 6778 - 151 - (7.910) . -
To(ﬂl mrnnvu ; 67,910 61,518 111,438 34 008. - 57910) 267,361
~onter -segment salcs are charged at prevailing market rates. :
Resulls .
Segment resulls !31) 601 3003 (3,57 7,489 - {666)
Unallocated corparate - ) .
tipensed - (747)
Lass from operutions (1413
Finance costs {5.2712)

(Losg) profit from operations .

(Loss) profit from opetations

Audlo-visual ©

(Loss) profit from operations h.as been atrived al after charging:

Depreciation ar
Owned assels

Assels heid under finance leases

Taxation

The charge comprises:

Tax for the period; |
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Overscas income tax

. Deferred tax:

Current period
Change intat rale |

Taxation altributablé to the Cc‘npany and it

subsidiaries

Share of taxation attribulable to assoclales .

(1,413) - 5,776
N il e

151z months ended Jure 30 .

1003 2002
HKS$'000 HK$'000
3,941 3,811

- 90

Six months ended June 30

2003 2002
HK$'000 HKS 000

RN T BN 2
16 i 22

- 294

819 -, -

835 16

- 951,

838 1,267,

maa—

N provisian of Hong Kcng Plor l: Tax ha: becn arawded far bolh penods s the Orcup did not detive ary sssessable

profits,
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8 (Loss) earnings per share

The caleutation of the basic (loss) earnings per share is based on the loss attcibutable to shareholders of

HK$ 14,774,000 (2002: profit of HKS11,834,000) and on' the weighted sverage number of 852,367,051 (2002 |
485,683,607) ordinary shares in issue during the period. The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the . -

purposes of basic (toss) earnings per share has been adjusted for the bonus issue during (he period (2002: has been

© period).

No dituted (loss) earnings per share has been presented because the exercise price of the Company’s outstanding share

options was higher than the average marke! price for share for both periods. - R

~INTERIM DIVIDEND

" The Directors have resolved not (o declare the payment of an interim dividend (2002: nil).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND
FINANCIAL CONDITION

Results

Group turnover at HK$267.4 million, was HK$28.8 million (-9.7%) down on the same period last year. Two
key factors adversely affecled the businesses in Hong Kong. Firstly, the serious panic brought about by the
outbreak of the Severe Acute Regpiratory Syndsome (“SARS") epidemic, significantly distupted the
markets. And secondly, the market in Hong Kong for the sale of passenger motor vehicles was also badly

i+ affected by the very high increases in the First Registration Tax (FRT") introduced in the Budget bn March

5y 2003, This announcement, overnight, caused motor sales to p\ummel Any sales which were subsequently
achieved were a little or no profit and were made at special pricing in order to quickly reduce inventories.
The products seld by the Group ate at the upper range of the premium and luxury vehicle sector and attract

* the highest rates of FRT which were proposed to increase from a flat rate of 60% to a progressive rate up to

150%. In the event, intense lobbying by the motor trade and many politica!, economic and market groups,

* a8 well as the Hong Kong customers, caused the Hong Kong Government to reduce the rate of tax increases

and this was done in June 2003. Between early March to the end of June, the market for sales of new

! vehicles-at-proper pricing was-almosl non-existent,
RIM

* ‘Gross profits Tell by HKS14.3 million (-19.8%) to HK$58:2 miltion compared with the first six-months of
ladl year. Gross margins were teduced ta 21.8% (2002: 24.5%) largely as a result of pricing power being
. drained from the market by the combined cffect'of SARS and FRT and which domestic market was already

erioubly weak and price competitive. I

N Both distribution costs and ganeral administrative expenses were below the comparative costs for the same

pehod fast year, showing a saving of 3.5% ot HK$2.6 million.

E The Group recorded a loss on disposal ofmvestmen{ properties, sold in the mainland China, in the period of

; HKS$8.5 millign. These were three separate simall investment properties which were s0ld to a local property

developer for redevelopment purposes at values well below book value. It was envisaged at the end of the

" last financial year, that some small marginal properties may have to be sold below book value and for that

fedson a general provision of HK$S million was made. [t was deemed appropriate, therefore, to write-back
the provision to partinlly cushion the Toss realized in the period, and the net loss effect in the results was
HKSJ 5 million in this period.

The ‘fesults from the one remaining mainfand China joint-venture business, being a domestic appliance
manufaclurmg and marketing business, were significantly below last year. Also the first half of 2002
{hcluded contributions from a second manufacturing joint-venture company, which was sold in June 2002,
and therefore there were no such profit contributions this year. For both reasons, the share of profits from

’aSso;ia_tes FeU by HK$3.5 milijon.

i Thé combined effect of the three major factors of (a) the market disruption and gross margin impact of the

SARS epidemic and the FRT hiatus; (b) the loss on disposal of small properties; and (c) the reduction in

" profit contributed by associated companies not controlled by the Group, caused an attributable loss for the
i period of HKSM § million to-be recorded (2002: HK$11.8 million profit).

: C‘nsh ﬂow Nquidfty and Fnancmi resources

' A( June 30, 2003 cash and bank balances amounted to HK$12.6 million (Decembet 31, 2002: HK§i4.4

miilioh) and total bortowings were HK$254.7 million (December 31, 2002: HK3$228.2 million). At the end

i of the reporting period, the Group's total net debt gearing was 75.4 per cent (December 31, 2002: 63.5 per
" ¢eént) based on sharcholders’ equity of HK$321.2 million (December 31, 2002: HK$336.6 million).

" At June 30, 2003 the Group had trade finance and revoiving loan facilities amounting to HK$169.1 miltion
+ (Détentber 31,2002 HK$166.2 million) of which HK$137.4 million had been drawn and was outstanding.

" An integral part of the Group’s risk management policy, is to hedge foreign currency transactions to
i eliminate adversé currency movements on indent sales, 'in the normal course of the business. At June 30,

2003 the total outstanding foreign exchange contracts purchased with banks amounted to HK$15 million

* (December 31, 2002: HK$44 million).

. The Group had total banking facilities amounting to HK$178.4 million at June 30, 2003 (December 31,

2002 HKS$177.1 million) largely based on Hong Kong best lendmg rates and mainly secured by assets of

. the Group. There is no material change in value of assets pledged since the {ast annual reporting date. The
" Group had no contingent liabilities at June 30, 2003 (December 31, 2002: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

ir-condltioning products

Total §ales to third-party customers for the six months amounted to HK$66.9 million which was a 35%
- reduction. on sales recorded in the same period fast yeat. Sales for home air-conditioning products were

badly hit by SARS which occurred during the peak trading months of the season for such products. Gross
margings were still satisfactory although they were approximately 1.5% of sales lower than last year. In the
tontinuing weak market with the residential sector being badly affected by SARS this year and given
tompetitive product pricing pressure, the Group did well to maintain overall profitability from the business.

| The commercial product sector has maintained a steady position in Hong Kang, although business has

sxgmhcantly declined in the maintand China market due to severe local competmon The Group has been
mcraasmg its market m%nd dlstnbuuon eflorts in this key market.

T s

Dl

T‘ne product sector is compe{ltwe but the Group's marketing activity has strengthened and in an improving
market environment, the second half sales are expected to be increased over those achieved last year.

Audlo visual and other e\ectrlcal products

Tota ales in the six months increased by 11.6% to HK$55.1 million, over the same period last year.
Déspite a weak domestic tarket in Hong Kong, an increased range of product offerings and excelient car
Product sales in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia, provided the increased business. Despite continued

- &fid ever-present price competition gross margins were maintained and the overall results of the business

adjusted for the share consolidation and bonus issue approved on September 18, 2002 and the borus issuc dur!ng the '

" New products continue to be introduced (e.g., car audio and video products; plasma TV and home theatre

$ystems etc) and with increased sales efforts in new export markets; with increased market penetralion in
existing markets; and given rising car sales in PRC and greater OEM business being done in Singapore,
then the prospects for sales for the second half of this year are (o at least be dt the same fevel of those of the

prcvxous year,
!

Dlrcc( markcl(ng

The business involves direct retailing in consumer electronic and electrical products, in the Hong Kong

markel under the “Mega Warehouse branded outle(s

‘ Sales to customm in the ﬂrst six monlhs thls year were HK$33.9 million which showed a 14.6% increase

over thie sathe period last year: Ob¥inusly, the advent of the SARS epidemic seriously affected the Hong
Kong retail sector, however, the Group was able to offer very competitive products available in an increased
number of outlets which traded for the full half-yeat over those available last year, and therefore total
revenues increased. The business still has not feached a level of volume which will enable profit to be
earned but a programme of steady growth in outlets; improved merchandising; increased ranges of

- innovative vaiue-for-money producis; and increasing brand awareness activities to promote coﬂsumer

loyaity; will all work towards achmvemen( of that ObJECthe
Car and car accessories

The business is the importing, marketing, sales and parts supply and after-sales servicing of the “Ferrari”
and “Maserati” vehicle franchises. The Group is the sole dwmbutor for these two unique premier sports
marques in Horig Kong, Macau and mamland Chma

Turnover for the first halfyear was HKSI 11, 4 millich whlch was & declme of HK$2.9 million (-2.6%) on
the same period last year. The first six months was partictlarly taxing because of the histus and drsruptmn
to the luxury car market caused by the large increase proposed to the top rate of 150% in First Registration
Tax announced in the budget in eatly March. The market for luxitry car $alés vittually came to & complete
stop. Any cars that were sold were done so with special pticing at no-profit in order to teduce invéntories
and turn cash flow in the business. Fortunately, the lobbying by the Company together with interested
patties was successful in reducing the penal ratés of tax incteases which were proposed tax rates applicable
to the tuxury sector stiil increased from o flat rate of 60% to-a progressive taté to 100%, but customers can
maore readily accept these increases ir difficult economic-conditions. Since the-new rates were confitmed in
June; Lhe market has returned to near normality and sales in the second half year are projected to ihcrease
substantially, Both sales and profits a’e forecast to recover strongly and be well ahead of fast year. Plans are
being advanced for a further exciting development of the China market and with exciling new models
expected from both Maserati and Fetrari in the course of the next six to twelve months, it is expected that
this business will show excellent grovith in the coming years. .

HUMAN RESQURCES

As of June 30, 2003, the Group empioyed 374 people (2002: 344), éxcluding employees of the assbcmtcd
company. The Board is extremely pleased to record its appteciation of ils employees.

POST INTERIM BALANCE SHELT EVENT

In the special general meeting on September 1, 2003, the Company passed tesolutions for approving the
tights isstie of shares at HK$0.10 per rights sharc on the basis of two rights shares for every five ekisting
shares neld on Septemiver I, 2003 (“Rights Issue™) with bonus shares issued on iie basis uf three bonus
shares for every fully paid rights share ("Bonus Shares Issue”). The Directors consider that the Rights lssue
provides an opportunity for the Group to raise furids to improve its financial position and capability to
develop its franchise and distribution businesses. The proceeds of the Rights Issue will enhance the working
capitaf and the net asset position of the Company as a whole and improve the financial gearing of the
Company.

The Company had received 155 valid acceptances for 320,622,377 Rights Shares provlsionally alotted
under the Rights [ssue and-141 valid excess applications for 521,171,807 Rights Shares, amounting to
841,794,184 Rights Shares in aggregate (representmg upprcxlma\ely 246 89% of the total number of Rights
Shares available for subscription undar the Rights Issue). Accordingly, the Rights 13sue was ovet-subscribed
by approximately 146,89%. On Septf'mber 23, 2003, pursbant to the Rights 1ssue with Bonus Shares Issue,
the'Company issued 1,363, 787 280 new sharcs of HKSO 10 each, .

PROSPECTS

For special reasons of the outbreak of SARS; the continued econgmic malaise affecting the domestic
market of Hong Kong; and the further hit on the domestic automobile market by the high FRT; the trading
of the Group’s businesses have all uniformly been adversely affected. As 8 consequence, 2 lradmg and
attributable loss was recorded. Hoivever, there are signs of improved ttading conditions in the second half.
The stimulus of the CEPA arrangement and the increased number of visitors from mainland China due to
relaxation of rulés governing such visits, is greatly improvirig prospects, Excluding sny non:tecuttent
items, it is expected that the second six months will provide the Group with profitable opérations and
improved results over the second half fast year, Whilst the whole year may not be profitable, after allowing
for smail non-recurrent losses, it is expected that the Group will be able to plan for imptoved and incteased
revenues and much improved results, given the improved economic outlook for the regional domestic
economies. , .

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMP TION OF SECURITIES

During the six months ended June 30 2003, the Company and its subsldmnes have not repurchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s secutities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Nae of the directdry of the Compatty is aware of any information that would reasoriably indicate that the
Company is not, or was not during the six months ended June 30, 2003, in compliance with the Code of
Best Practice as set-out in Appendix (4 of the Listing Rules zxcep( in relation to guideline 7; as non.
executive directors of the Company are appointed for a term expmng upon their retirement by rotation s
required by the Company’s Bye-Lawy, .

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed Jwith directors the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters telated to the preparation of the
unaudited condensed financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2003. The Audit Committee
was content that the accounting policies of the Group are in accordance with the current besl practice it
Hong Kong. The Interim Results havs not been audited.

PUBLICATION OF FURTHER INFORMATION
All information required by paragraphs 46(1) to 46(6) of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules will be
published on the Stock Exchange's website in due course.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Richard Man Faf LEE
' Executive Chairman & CEQ

Unnn Uane Qantamher 74 7001
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Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Minutes of an Executive Board Meeting of the Company held at 10/F., Block B, Wo Kee
Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong on
29 September 2003 .

Present M1 Richard Man Fai LEE

Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN %‘}

/
-

Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE //f

1.  Chairman /

Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE took the chair of the Meeting.
- 2. Qubrum
The necessary quorum of the Meeting was present.

3.  Change of Registered Office -

It was reported that, due to the fact that the Company’s service agent, A. S. & K.
Services Ltd. would be moving their office from Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda to Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda with effect from 1 October 2003 and, accordingly, the Registered Office
of the Company will have to change to the new address.

It was RESOLVED that, with effect from 1 October 2003, the Registered Office of
the Company be changed to Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda, and that the Resident Representative be authorised to file with the
Registrar of Companies the Form 13 (Notice of Address of Registered Office).

4. Termination

There being no further business, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed.

Chairman

;—
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes.no responsibility for the

ais of this aano
exgressly disclaims any liabitity whatsoever for any loss howsaever arising from ar in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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WO KEE HON G gHOLDIN GS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited (iahiiity)

PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSUE ON THE BASIS OF TWO RIGHTS SHARES

makes no represenlation as to its accuracy or completeness and

FOR EVERY FIVE EXISTING SHARES HELD B )

WITH BONUS SHARES TO BE ISSUED ON THE BASIS OF
THREE BONUS SHARES FOR EVERY FULLY PAID RIGHTS SHARE

DESPATCH OF CIRCULAR -
LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR o

Sharchoiders on 14 August 2003,
On 7 November 2002, the C.

‘provision of Ruie 14 24(R) with regard 1o the Loan,

The circular accompanying the notice for convening the SGM for approving, among other things, the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares [ssue \wH be despatched to

pany and 3 Director entered int0’s loan-agreement in. respect of 2 term loan forthe amount of HKS$15,000.000 at the interest mate of

10% per annum 2nd repayable in three inguaimants an or before 30 September 2003, The Directors (including the independent non-execulive Direciors) are of the
view that the Loas falls within Rule 14.24(8) and is not subject 1o any disclosure and/or sharcholders approval requirements under the Listing Rules. The Lasl'mg
Division may not agree to the view of the Directors and has requested {or further information to consider whelh:r or not the Company was catitled to the :xemptlon

Reference is- made to the anno made by the C. y dated 24 July 2083
(the “Announcemeat ™). Unless otherwise defined, terms used herein shall have the
same asinthe A

_Despatceh of SGM circular . . .

The circular accompanying the notice for convening the SGM for approving,
among other things, the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue will be
despatched to Sharchoiders on 14 August 2003. The SGM will be heid-at 9130 a.m.
at Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong on Monday, | September 2003,

", Loan frem a Director . . .
It was stated in the paragraph headed “Reasons {or the Rights Issue and use of

proceeds”™ in the Announcement that a Director agreed 10 advance a loan in the
principal amount of HKS13 million to the Company in November 2002 (the
“Loan"). At the request of the Stock Exchange, the Directors set out below further
dewails regarding the Loaa.

Oun 7 November 2002, the Company and a Director entered into a laa.n agreement
in respect of a term loan for the amount of HK$15,000,000 at the interest rate of
10% per annum and repayable in three instalments on or before 31 July 2003, 3t
August 2003 and 30 September 2003, The Loan was drawn down in three tranches
of HK$5.000,000, HK3$7,000,000 and HK$3.000,000, respectively in November
2002, December 2002 and January 2003, The Loan has been fully utilised as
general working capital of the Group during the period from November 2002 to
January 2003. As at 30 June 2003, the outstanding balance of the Loan was
approximately HKS$15.1 mitlion. Details of the Loan has been set out in the
paragraph headed “Directors” interests in contracts™ in the Directors’ Report in the
2002 anaual report of the Company.

The Directors (including the independ: ive Directors) having regard
to the following factors are of the view that Loan was on normal commercial (or
better) terms-and falls within Rule 14.24(8) and is not subject to any disclosure
and/or sharchoiders approval requirements under the Listing Rulcs:

- during 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, the Company approached more
than ten financial institutions for term loans and/or general banking
facilities. No proposal was made by any of these financial institutions as
they would only affer secured lending and the Group has no available
unpiedged assets in Hong Kong. None of these financial institutions would
provide general banking facilities, other than those aiready granted to the
Group,

~ the Company had ooumed advice from an independent financial adviser in
relation to: () the existing banking facilities of the Group and the pledged
asset coverage; (b) that no other banks that the Company had approsched
before had offered any additional or increased fac»lmes and (<) the po:slble
alternatives (as stated below) for raising the reg funds. The indep

new loans and the due dates for repaymentof existing bank loans for which
new loans were required; the then financial position of the Group: the
reluctance of financial institutions 1o grant aew unsecured banking facilities
to the Group: and the other fund raising alternatives, advised the Company
that the terms of the Loan offered by the Dirsctor was on normai commercial
terms and fair and reasonable in the then circumstances!

The Company has also obtained legal advice from its counsels and was
advised that, based on the conclusion of the independent financial adviser

;- dispasai’Ef cerain assets of the Group: the ‘Directors considered that this

financial adviser, after taking into acgount the time constraints for obtaining ~

that the Loan was on narmal commercial (or better) terms, the Loan falls
within the scope of Rule 14.24(8) of the Listing Rules; ) _
- all short-term overdrafts were fully utilised and some trust receipts loans
were due for repayment. Part of the short-term overdrafts amounting to
approximately HKS4 million is incurring interest at 8% per annum above the
best lendingrate or approximately (3% per annum curreatly, The remaining

short-term overdrafts and the trust receipls are incurring interest at 1.25% to i
2.0% above the best lendmg rate and 0._‘% to 1.0% above the bes( tending
rate, respectively; and . 3

- to ensure thar the loan advanced from the Director was prooerly documen(cd.
proper loan documentations were prepared by the lawyers.

The Directors had considered several passible fund taising alternatives for fund
ramng to suengthen the financial posmon of the Group, including:

- issue-of unsecured convertible notes: the Company had approacbed a placing
agent for-a possible issue of unsequred coavertibie nates. However, the
interest rale quoled by the placing agent was approximately 13.5% per
annum, which -was higher than the intcrest rate of the loan offered by the
Director and the placing agent only proposed 1o place on 3 best effort basis
instead of on a fully underwritten basis in light of the weak markest after the
“penny stock™ fiasco in July 2002, Therefore, the Direciors did not consider
that the issue of unsecurcd convertible notes as feasible given the high
jnlerest rate payable and reluctance of the placing agent to fully underwrite
the unsscured convertible notes, which meant the Company may not be able
to raise the amount of funds it desired;

- private placement: no placement was possible during that moment given the
low liquidity of tradintg of the Shares and alsa the fact that the trading price
was well below par value as the stock market has yet recovered from the July
2002 “peany stock” saga, and

alternative is time consuming since prolonged discussions may be required

for the parties to reach terms which are acceptabte to both buyers and the

Company and therefore it was not considered as a suitable aiternative at the

time when the Company was in need of general working capitai. The

Company continued to seek buyers for certain of the Grodp s assets bul no

material disposal has been made 5o far.
Based on the above factors, the Directors, including the independent non—executive
Directors, after due and careful consideration, were of the view that the loan from
the Dirsctor was for the benefit of the Company and its Sharchoiders as 3 whole
and the terms were fair and reasonable.
n light of the above, the Stock Exchange had not been notified of the loan
advanced from the Director ai the time the Joan was entered into and the Stock
Exchange has requested the Company to provide further information in this
regard. The Company was informed that the Listing Division may not agree to the
view of the Directors. The Stock Exchange has indicated that it will review the
terms of the Loan, and in particular, whether the loan was granted on normal
commercia! (or betier) terms, and consider whether or not the Companv was
entitled to the exempnon provision of Rule |4.24(8).

- - By Order of the Soacd of
WQ KEE-HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong SAR, 13 August 2003
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The Stock Ecchange nf Hong King Limited ivkes no responyibilicy jur the contents of this unnnuncement,
Mukes no representulion ds o ity accuracy or u)mp{e'ene\'v and expressly disclaims any luability
whutsoever Jur ary lusy Auwsoever urising jrom or in ~eliance upon che whnle or Qny purt of the contents

nf this announcement.

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
{incorpnrated in Bermuda with {imited {ichilicy)
Result of SG¥,
Despatch of Rights Issue Documents
and
Odd-lot facility arrangement

The Directors are pleased 0 2anounce that all the ordinary resotuticns proposed at the STGM
held on | Sepiember 2003 have beesa duly passed by the Sharsholders. The Righes [ssue
Documenis have been despaiched to the Qualifying Sharehoiders on | September 2003,

[a order to alleviate the difficuitiss acising from the sxecrcise (i any) of odd-lois of the
Shares as a result of the Rights {ssuz aand the Bonus Shares [ssue. the Company has ac'ree(. o
arocure South China Securitties Limitad 10 stand in thé macket to provids matching sarvices
on 2 f f

y best effort basis for the 'noldcrs of odd-lots of the Shares during the oeriad from
Thursday, 15 September 2003 te Faday, 24 Octeber 2005 (both daies inclusive).
Dealings in the Rights Shares in their nil-paid form are esxpected to take place from

Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to Thursday, 1l September 2003 (both dates inclusive). It
the conditions of the Rights Issue acre not fulfilled, the Rights Issue will not proceed.

is made to thz circular issued by WO KEE HONGC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED (the
Co'*r*ar/ "y dat :d I4 August 2003 {the “Circular”) and the announcement dated made by the
Company 24 Jul y 2003, Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used in this announcement
>mll have the same mzanings as those defined in the Circular.

R“sult of \G\I and despatch.of Rights Issue Documents. . .

The Directors are pleased to announce that atl the ordinary resolutions oropowd for approving
the Rights {ssug with the Boaus Shaces {ssue, Bonus Shares [ssue and the granting of General
Mandate were duly passed by the Shareholders present and voun in person or by proxy at the
SCM held on | September 2003.

Dealings in the Rights Shares in their nil-paid-form ar Z expe
Yednesday, 3 Sepiember 2063 to Thursday, 11 September 2003 (bo
conditinns of the Rights Issue are not fuifilled, the Rights {ssue will not proce

: usive). If the
d.

~ 0
o
o
L
~
«
“
m:l
oo

Odd-iot facility arrangement
In order 0 alleviate the difficulties arising from the exercise {if any) of odd-iots of the Shares as
a resuit of the Rights Issue and the Benus Shares [ssue, the Company has agresd o procurs South
China Securtiies Limiied to stand in the market 0 provide matc‘un: sgrvices on a best effore
basis f{or the heldees of odd-lots of the Shares during the period from Thursday. 25 September
2003 to Friday, 24 Octooer 20035 (both dates inclusive). Holders o7 odé lozs of the Sharss who
wish to dispose of thie odd-lots of Shares or (0 top up o board lots of 2,000 Shares, may contact
Me Francis Wu aad Me Victor Chaa of South China Securities Limited at 28/F, Bank of China
Tower, { Garden Road. Cenrtral, Hong Kong at tetephone number (3325 2343 85836 during the
geriod from Thucsday, 25 Sepiember 2003 to Friday, 24 October 20035 (both dates inciusive).
Sharehotders should note that successful matching of sale and purchasing of odd lots of
Shares traded on the Stock Exchange is not guaranteed.

8y Order of the Board

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard ¥lan Fai LEE
Executive Chairmun and Chief Executive Officer

Hany Kong, t September 2003
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this announcement, makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and

expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss hawsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the

of this

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

RIGHTS ISSUE
OF 340,946,820 RIGHTS SHARES OF HK$0.10 EACH
; AT HK$0.10 PER RIGHTS SHARE
ON THE BASIS OF TWO RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FIVE EXISTING SHARES
HELD ON THE RECORD DATE WITH THE BONUS SHARES ISSUE
ON THE BASIS OF THREE BONUS SHARES
FOR EVERY FULLY PAID RIGHTS SHARE

RESULTS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE
Finaacial adviser to WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Kingsway Capital Limited

nurmber of Rights Shares available for subscription under the Rights Issue).

The Directors announce that as at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September 2003, the Company has received 155 valid acceptances for 320,622,377 Rights Shares
provisionally allotted under the Rights 1ssue (representing approximately 94.03% of the total number of Rights Shares available for subscription under the
Rights Issue) and 141 valid excess applications for 521,171,807 Rights Shares (representing approximately 152.86% of the total number of Rights Shares
» available for subscription under the Rights lssus), amounting to 841,794,184 Rights Shares in aggregate (representing approximately 246.89% of the total

The Rights Issue has become unconditional at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 22 September 2003.

Share certificates in respect of the Rights Shares and refund cheques in respect of wholly or partially unsuccessful applications for excess Rights Shares will be
despatched on Tuesday, 23 September 2003. Dealing in the fully paid Rights Shares will commence on Thursday, 25 September 2003,

Reference is made 1o the Company’s prospectus (the “Prospectus™) dated 1
September 2003 in respect of the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.
Unless otherwise stated, capitalised terms used in this announcement shall have

‘the same meanings as defined in the Prospectus.

RESULTS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

The Directors announce that as at 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September 2003,
being the latest time for payment and acceplance of Rights Shares, the Company
has received 155 valid acceptances for 320,622,377 Rights Shares provisionally
allotted under the Rights Issue (representing approximately 94.03% of the total
number of Rights Shares available for subscription under the Rights lssue) and

141 valid excess applications for 521,171,807 Rights Shares {representing

approximately-152.86% of the total number of Rights Shares available for
subscription under the Rights Issue), amounting to 841,794,184 Rights Shares in
aggregate (representing approximatcly 246.89% of the total number of Rights
Shares available for subscription under the Rights Issue). Accordingly, the
Rights Issue is over-subscribed by approximately 146.89%.

The Controlling Sharcholders together with their respective associates and Mr.
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN (en executive Director) have taken up itsthisiher
provisional allotment of 197,443,704 Rights Shares (representing approximately
57.91% of the total aumber of Rights Shares available for subscription under the
Rights Issue). No excess applications for Rights Shares have been made by the
Controlling Sharcholders together with their respective associates and Mr.
Semuiy Chi Chung SUEN. :

As the Rights Issue is over-subscribed, the Underwriters will not be called upon
to subscribe for under the Underwriting Agreement.

The Rights Issue has become unconditional at 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 22
September 2003.

EXCESS APPLICATIONS -

The Directors have resclved to aliot the 20,324,443 Rights Shares available for
the excess applications on an equitable basis to top up odd lots into full board
lots with the remiaining excess Rights Shares allocated on the basis set out
below:

Approzimste

percentage of the

Number of excess allocation of excess

Rights Shares Number of valid Rights Shares

applied for applications Basis of atlotment applied for

(%)

1-1,999 18 fully allotted 100.00

2,000-51,999 37 2,000 each 7.36
§2,000-103,999 - 11 2,000 Rights Shares each and
additional 2,000 Rights Shares

for 9 out of 11 applicants 4.05
104,000-159,999 4 4,000 Rights Shares each and
additional 2,000 Rights Shares

for 2 aut of 4 applicants 4.05

160,000-249,999 10 8,000 Rights Shares each 4.01

250,000-299,999 1 10,000 Rights Shares each 4.00
300,000-399,99% 2 12,000 Rights Shares each and
additional 2,000 Rights Shares

) for 1 out of 2 applicants 4.9

400,000-599,99% 13 20,000 Rights Shares each 4.00

600,000-749,99% I 28,000 Rights Shares each 4.2

750,000-899,999 2 32,000 Rights Shates each 4.01

500,000-989,999 1 38,000 Rights Shares each 4.03

990,000-1,099,99% - 6 40,000 Rights Shares each 4.00

1,100,000-1,199,99% H 46,000 Rights Shares each 4,04

1,200,000-1,799,999 2 48,000 Rights Shares each 3.99

1,800,000-1,999,999 2 70,000 Rights Shares each 3.89

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of excess aliocation of excess

Rights Shares Number of valid Rights Shares
applied for applications Basis of allotment applied for

(%)
2,000,000-2,499,999 1 78,000 Rights Shares cach 3.90
2,500,000-2,699,999 3 98,000 Rights Shares each 3.92
2,700,000-2,769,99% 1 106,000 Rights Sharus each 393
2,800,000-2,999,999 1 110,000 Rights Shaes each 393
3,000,000-3,179,999 3 {18,000 Rights Shares each 393
3,180,000-3,999,999 ! 124,000 Righes Shares cach 380
4,000,000-4,799,999 3 156.000 Rights Shares each 3.50
4,800,000-4,899,999 1 188,000 Rights Shates each 392
4,900,000-4,999,999 1 192,000 Rights Shares each ’ 392
5,000,000-5,899,999 5 194,000 Rights Shares each 3.88
5,900,000-6,899,999 1 230,000 Rights Shares cach 3.0
6,900,000-7,499,999 { 268,000 Rights Shares cach 3.88
1,500,000-9,989,959 I 292,000 Rights Shares each 3.89
9,990,000-19,999,999 2 388,000 Rights Shares each 3.88
20,000,000-34,999,999 1 776,000 Rights Shares each 3.88
35,000,000-37,999,999 1 1,354,000 Rights Shares each 3.87
38,000,000-97,999,999 1 1,468,000 Rights Shares each 3.86
98,000,000-179,999,999 1 3,780,000 Rights Shares each 3.86
180,000,000-200,000,000 1 7,238,636 Rights Shares each 386

The Directors consider that the 20,324,443 Rights Shares available for ¢xcess
applications have been allovated on a fair and reasonable basis. -
SHAREHOLDINGS OF THE COMPANY

To the best knowledge of the Directors, immediately before and after the
completion of the Rights Issue, the shareholding structure of the Company will
be as follows:

Immediately before Immediately after
completion of the completion of the
Rights fsue Rights fisue
Shares Approximately  Shares Approximately
~ % %
Controlling Shareholders together :
with theit respoctive associates
{excluding Modem Orbif) 42,914,028 50 111,576472 5.03
Modern Orbit 450,513,734 . 5286 1,471,335,706 52.86
Mr. Sammy
Chi Chung SUEN 181,500 0.02 471,900 002
Sub-totak: 493,609,261 5191 1.283,384,078 5191
Other Shareholders 358,757,789 4209 932,770,253 42.09
Kingsway SW Securities 0 - 0.0 0 00
Total: - 852,367,051 100.00 2,216,154,331 100.0

GERTIFICATES AND DEALINGS
Share certificates in respect of the fully-paid Rights Shares and the Bonus
Shares and refund cheques in respect of wholly or partially unsuccessful
applications for excess Rights Shares will be despatched by ordinary post to
those entitied thereto at their own risk by the Hong Kong branch share registrar
of the Company on Tuesday, 23 September 2003, Dealings in the fully peaid
Righis Shares and Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchange will commence on
Thursday, 25 September 2003
By order of the Boatd
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 September 2003
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Vo Kee Hong {H )‘,wﬁum Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

To Mr Wing Sum LEE
Mt Richard Man Fai LEE
M1 Sammy Chi Chung SUEN
Mr Jeff Man Bun LEE
Mr Raymond Cho Min LEE
Mr Boon Seng TAN
Mdm Kam Har YUE

Sc.C Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT

Notice 15 hereby given that a Meeting of the Directors of the Company will be held at the Board
Room, 10/F, Block B, Wo Kee Hong Building, 385-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwat Chung, New

IaVs

Territones, Horw Kong on 24" September 2003 at 10:30 am. for the following purposes: -

AGENDA

) To approve the unaudited consolidated interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30" June 2003.

(2) To consider the payment of an interim dividend for the six months ended 30" June 2003, if
any.
(3) To approve the draft press announcement of the interim resulis and the draft interim report

for the six months ended 30 June 2003,
(4)  To authorize the release of the taterim results.

(3) To review the actual performance of the Group against the Management Plan for the period
ending 31" December 2003.

(6) To note the list of documents under seal approved for the period ended 20™ June 2003
(7 To report on the results of the Rights Issue and Bonus Issue of shares.

() To confirm the role of Executive Chatrman compliant with S.4(h) of the Special Act and
Bye-Law 119 of the Company’s Bye-Laws,

(9) To transact any other business.

Dated this the 22" day of September 2003,




THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your licensed securities dealer,
bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED, you should at once hand this circular with the
accompanying form of proxy to the purchaser(s) or transferee(s) or to the licensed securities dealer, bank or other agent through whom the
sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser(s) or transferee(s).

This circular is addressed to the shareholders of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED for information in connection with a special
general meeting of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED to be held on Monday, 1 September 2003. This circular is not and does not
constitute an offer, nor is it calculated to invite offers for, shares in or other securities of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited take no responsibility for the contents of
this circular, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

#

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSUE ON THE BASIS OF
TWO RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FIVE EXISTING SHARES HELD
WITH BONUS SHARES TO BE ISSUED
ON THE BASIS OF
THREE BONUS SHARES FOR EVERY FULLY PAID RIGHTS SHARE

Financial adviser to WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

= Kingsway Capital Limited

Independent Financial Adviser

EEERRSFBEERAF
'* Quam Capital Limited

Financial Services Group FMember of Quam Growp

It should be noted that the Underwriters may terminate their obligations set out in the Underwriting Agreement by notice in writing
given by Kingsway SW Securities (for itself and on behalf of the other Underwriter) to the Company at an{ time if, prior to 5:00 p.m.
on the third Business Day after the date on which the latest time for acceptance of the Rights Shares falls, which is expected to be
Monday, 22 September 2003, there shall develop, occur, exist or come into effect: (a) any new law or regulation or any change in
existing laws or regulations or any change in the interpretation or application thereof by any court or other competent authority in
Heong Kong or any other place in which any member of the Group conducts or carries on business; or (b) any change in, or any event
or series of events resulting or likely to result in any change in, local, national or international financial, political, military,
industrial, economic, currency or (whether or not sui generis with any of the foregoing) market conditions; or (¢) any change in the
conditions of local, national or international securities markets (including but without limitation, the impesition of any moratorium,
suspension or materjal restriction on trading in securities generally on the Stock Exchange due to exceptional financial
circumstances or otherwise), which: (1) has or will have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Group or the Rights Issue;
or (2) has or will have a material adverse effect on the success of the Rights Issue or the level of Rights Shares taken up; or (3) makes
it inadvisable or inexpedient for the Company to proceed with the Rights Issue. Accordingly, if the Underwriters exercise their rights
to terminate the Underwriting Agreement, the Rights Issue will not proceed. This means that any persons contemplating sellin
purchasing Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the period in which they may be traded on the Stock Exchange, whic
expected to be from Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to Thursday, 11 September 2003, and Shares, which are expected to be dealt in on
an ex-rights basis from Menday, 25 August 2003, bear the risk that the Rights Issue may not proceed.

Any shareholders or other persons contemplating selling or purchasing Shares and/or Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during
the period when the conditions to which the Rights Issue is subject remain unfulfilled or during which the Underwriters have the
right to terminate their obligations for force majeure events or otherwise and who are in any doubt about their position are
recommended to consult their professional advisers.

A notice convening a special general meeting of the shareholders of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED to be held at 9:30 a.m. at
Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panga Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on Monday, 1 September 2003 is set
out on pages 54 to 57 of this circular. Whether or not you intend to be present at the meeting, you are requested to complete and return the
enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and depeosit at the principal office of the Company at 10th Floor,
Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Roaé), Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong as soon as possible but in any event
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not
preclude you from attending and voting in person at the special general meeting or any adjournment thereof, should you so wish.

14 August 2003
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, there are no other facts not contained in this circular, the omission of which would
make any statement herein misleading.




TERMINATION OF THE UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

The Underwriters may terminate their obligations set out in the Underwriting
Agreement by notice in writing given by Kingsway SW Securities (for itself and on behalf
of the other Underwriters) to the Company at any time if, prior to 5:00 p.m. on the third
Business Day after the date on which the latest time for acceptance of the Rights Shares
falls, which is expected to be Monday, 22 September 2003, there shall develop, occur, exist
or come into effect:

(a) any new law or regulation or any change in existing laws or regulations or any
change in the interpretation or application thereof by any court or other
competent authority in Hong Kong or any other place in which any member of
the Group conducts or carries on business; or

(b) any change in, or any event or series of events resulting or likely to result in any
change in, local, national or international financial, political, military, industrial,
economic, currency or (whether or not sui generis with any of the foregoing)
market conditions; or

(¢) amny change in the conditions of local, national or international securities
markets (including but without limitation, the imposition of any moratorium,
suspension or material restriction on trading in securities generally on the Stock
Exchange due to exceptional financial circumstances or otherwise),

which:

(1) has or will have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Group or the
Rights Issue; or

(2) has or will have a material adverse effect on the success of the Rights Issue or
the level of Rights Shares taken up; or

(3) makes it inadvisable or inexpedient for the Company to proceed with the Rights

Issue.

Save for all reasonable costs, charges and expenses which may be incurred in
connection with the Rights Issue, upon the giving of notice of termination, all obligations
of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement shall cease and no party shall
have any claim against any other parties in respect of any matter or thing arising out of or
in connection with the Underwriting Agreement. If the Underwriters exercise such right,
the Rights Issue will not proceed.




SUMMARY OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

The following information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the full
text of this circular.

Number of Shares in issue 852,367,051 Shares as at the Latest Practicable
Date
Basis of the Rights Issue (Note) 2 Rights Shares for 5 existing Shares held on

the Record Date

Basis of issue of Bonus Shares (Note) 3 Bonus Shares for every fully-paid Rights
Share

Number of Rights Shares to be issued not less than 340,946,820 Rights Shares

Number of Bonus Shares to be issued not less than 1,022,840,460 Shares

Amount to be raised by the Rights Issue approximately HK$34.1 million before expenses

Right of excess applications Qualifying Shareholders will be entitled to
apply for any unsold entitlements of the Non-
Qualifying Shareholders and any Rights Shares
provisionally allotted but not accepted or
otherwise subscribed for by transferees of nil-
paid Rights Shares

Non-Qualifying Shareholders Arrangements will be made for Rights Shares
which would otherwise have been provisionally
allotted to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders to
be sold in the market in their nil-paid form as
soon as practicable after dealings in the nil-
paid Rights Shares commence, if a premium
(net of expenses) can be obtained. The proceeds
of such sale, less expenses, of HK$100 or more
will be paid pro rata to the Non-Qualifying
Shareholders. The Company will retain
individual amounts of less than HK$100

Note: As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are outstanding Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
171,676,201 Shares. Amongst the Share Option holders, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Ms.
Siew Yit HOH, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, Mr. Raymond Cho
Min LEE and Mr. Boon Seng TAN, all of whom are Directors or their associates, in aggregate, are entitled to
subscribe for 94,600,731 Shares pursuant to the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the respective
Share Options, have given Irrevocable Undertakings to the Company and the Underwriters not to exercise the
subscription rights attaching to their respective Share Options on or before the Acceptance Date.

If the remaining outstanding Share Options are exercised in full on or before the Record Date, a further
30,830,188 Rights Shares and a further 92,490,564 Bonus Shares will be issued under the Rights Issue and the
Bonus Shares Issue.

—3_




EXPECTED TIMETABLE

2003
Last day of dealing in Shares on a cum-rightsbasis ..................... Friday, 22 August
First day of dealings in Shares on an ex-rights basis.................... Monday, 25 August
Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares. ................ 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, 26 August
Register of members closed (both dates inclusive) ................ Wednesday, 27 August to

Monday, 1 September

Latest time for return of proxy forms for SGM . ......... .. 9:30 a.m. on Saturday, 30 August
Date of SGM ... 9:30 a.m. on Monday, 1 September
Record Date .. ... ... ... i . Monday, 1 September
Despatch of the Rights Issue Documents . .............. ... .. ... .. Monday, 1 September
Register of members re-0pens ... ... oottt e Tuesday, 2 September
First day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares ................... Wednesday, 3 September
Latest time for splitting nil-paid Rights Shares ........... 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 8§ September
Last day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares..................... Thursday, 11 September

Latest time for payment for and

acceptance of Rights Shares..................... 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September
Rights Issue expected to become unconditional.......... 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 22 September
Announcement of results of acceptance of the Rights Issue........... Tuesday, 23 September

Despatch of refund cheques in respect of wholly or
partially unsuccessful applications for excess
Rights Shares........ ... .. i, Tuesday, 23 September

Certificates for fully-paid Rights Shares and
Bonus Shares expected to be despatched on or before ............. Tuesday, 23 September

First day of dealings in the fully-paid Rights Shares and
the Bonus Shares......... ... . e ~Thursday, 25 September




DEFINITIONS

In this circular (other than in the notice of the SGM), the following expressions have the

meanings respectively set opposite them unless the context otherwise requires:

“Acceptance Date”

“Announcement”

“associate(s)”
“Board”

“Bonus Shares”

“Bonus Shares Issue”

“Business Day”
“CCASS”
“C()de”

“Company”

“Controlling Shareholders”

Wednesday, 17 September 2003, or such other date as the
Underwriters may agree in writing with the Company as
the latest date for acceptance of, and payment for, the
Rights Shares

the announcement made by the Company dated 24 July
2003, in relation to the proposed Rights Issue with
Bonus Shares Issue

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
board of Directors

not less than 1,022,840,460 new Shares to be allotted
and issued by way of bonus to the first registered holders
of the fully-paid Rights Shares on the basis of 3 Shares
(credited as fully-paid) for every fully-paid Rights Share

the issue of Bonus Shares to the first registered holders
of the Rights Shares, credited as fully paid, on the basis
of 3 Bonus Shares for every Rights Share

any day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities

the Central Clearing and Settlement System, established
and operated by HKSCC

the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and
Share Repurchases

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

Modern Orbit, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Ms. Kam Har
YUE, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE and Fisherman Enterprises
Inc. together with their respective associates




DEFINITIONS

“Director(s)”

“General Mandate”

“Groupn

“Hong Kong”

“HKSCC”

“Independent Board Commuittee”

“Independent Shareholders”

“Irrevocable Undertakings”

“Issue Price”

“Kingsway Capital”

director(s) of the Company, including the executive
directors, non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors

the general mandate proposed to be granted to the
Directors at the SGM, for the issue and allotment of such
number of Shares, as representing not more than 20% of
the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the Rights Shares and the Bonus Shares;

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

an independent committee of the Board comprising Mr.
Boon Seng TAN and Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE, both
of whom are independent non-executive Directors to
advise the Independent Shareholders on the proposed
Rights Issue including the issue of the Bonus Shares
with the fully paid Rights Shares

Shareholders other than the Controlling Shareholders
and their associates

the irrevocable undertakings given by each of Modern
Orbit, Fisherman Enterprises Inc., Mr. Wing Sum LEE,
Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, Mr.
Raymond Cho Min LEE, Mr. Boon Seng TAN and Ms.
Siew Yit HOH to the Company and the Underwriters in
respect of their Shares and/or outstanding Share Options

Price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share

Kingsway Capital Limited, a deemed Licensed
Corporation, financial adviser to the Company in relation
to the Rights Issue and a fellow subsidiary of Kingsway
SwW Securitiés




DEFINITIONS

’

“Kingsway SW Securities’

“Last Trading Day”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Licensed Corporation”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Modern Orbit”

“Non-Qualifying Shareholder(s)”

“PRC”

“Prospectus”

“Prospectus Posting Date”

Kingsway SW Securities Limited, a deemed Licensed
Corporation, one of the Underwriters of the Rights Issue
and a fellow subsidiary of Kingsway Capital

Friday, 18 July 2003 being the last trading day before the
suspension of the trading of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange pending the publication of the Announcement
on Friday, 25 July 2003

8 August 2003, being the latest practicable date prior to
the printing of this circular for the purpose of ascertaining

certain information for inclusion in this circular

a party falling within the definition of “licensed

‘corporation” in the SFO

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Modern Orbit Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and holds 450,513,734 Shares,
representing approximately 52.86% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable
Date and one of the Underwriters of the Rights Issue

Shareholder(s) other than the Qualifying Shareholders
The People’s Republic of China which for this purpose of
this circular shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau and

Taiwan

the prospectus to be issued by the Company in relation to
the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue

date of despatch of the Prospectus, which is expected to
be 1 September 2003




DEFINITIONS

“Qualifying Shareholder(s)”

“Quam Capital”

“Record Date”

“Rights Issue”

“Rights Issue Documents”

“Rights Share(s)”

“SFO”

“SGM” 7

“Share(s)”

“Share Options™

“Shareholder(s)”

Shareholder(s) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on the
Record Date and whose address(es) as shown in the
register of members of the Company on that date is/are
in Hong Kong

Quam Capital Limited, a deemed Licensed Corporation
and the independent financial adviser to the Independent
Board Committee in relation to the Rights Issue with the

Bonus Shares Issue

the date by reference to which entitlements to the Rights
Issue are to be determined, which is expected to be
Monday, 1 September 2003

the proposed issue of the Rights Shares with Bonus
Shares at a price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share on the
terms and conditions described in this circular and the
Rights Issue Documents

the Prospectus, the provisional allotment letter and the
form of application for excess Rights Shares

not less than 340,946,820 new shares to be allotted and
issued under the Rights Issue

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

the special general meeting of the Company to be held at
9:30 a.m. at Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panda Hotel, 3
Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong
Kong on Monday, 1 September 2003 to consider and, if
thought fit, pass ordinary resolutions for approving the
Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue, Bonus Shares
Issue and the granting of General Mandate, the notice of
which is set out on pages 54 to 57 of this circular

share(s) of a nominal value of HKS$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 22
June 1991, 28 June 2001 and 30 May 2002, respectively

holder(s) of Share(s)




DEFINITIONS

“Stock Exchange”

“Underwriters”

“Underwriting Agreement”

“HK$”

“%”

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Modern Orbit and Kingsway SW Securities, whose
obligations shall be several (and not joint or joint and
several)

the agreement dated 18 July 2003 entered into between
the Company and the Underwriters in relation to the
underwriting and certain other arrangements in respect
of the Rights Issue

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

per cent.
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Executive Directors: Registered office:
Wing Sum LEE (Honorary Chairman) Cedar House
Richard Man Fai LEE 41 Cedar Avenue

(Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) Hamilton HM12
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN Bermuda

Jeff Man Bun LEE
Principal office in Hong Kong:

Non-executive Director: 10th Floor, Block A,

Kam Har YUE Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road

Independent non-executive Directors: Kwai Chung

Boon Seng TAN New Territories

Raymond Cho Min LEE Hong Kong

14 August 2003
To the Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSUE ON THE BASIS OF
TWO RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FIVE EXISTING SHARES HELD
WITH BONUS SHARES TO BE ISSUED
ON THE BASIS OF
THREE BONUS SHARES FOR EVERY FULLY PAID RIGHTS SHARE

INTRODUCTION

It was announced on 24 July 2003 that, subject to the satisfaction of the conditions as
mentioned in the section headed “Conditions of the Rights Issue” below, the Company
proposed to raise approximately HK$34.1 million, before expenses, by way of a rights issue of
not less than 340,946,820 Rights Shares at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share.
The Company will provisionally allot 2 Rights Shares in nil-paid form for 5 existing Shares
held by the Qualifying Shareholders on the Record Date, and will issue bonus shares by way of
3 Bonus Shares for every fully-paid Rights Share.
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In connection with the Rights Issue, Kingsway Capital has been appointed as the financial
adviser to the Company and Quam Capital has been appointed as the independent financial
adviser to the Independent Board Committee. Both Kingsway Capital and Quam Capital are
independent third parties not connected with the directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates.

The purpose of this circular is to (1) provide you further information regarding amongst
other things, the Rights Issue, including the issue of the Bonus Shares with the fully-paid
Rights Shares, and the granting of the General Mandate; (ii) to set out the recommendations of
the Independent Board Committee to the Independent Shareholders with regard to the Rights
Issue based on the advice of Quam Capital; and (iii) to give you notice of the SGM to be
convened for the purpose of considering, among others, and, if thought fit, approving the
ordinary resolutions for the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, Shareholders’ approval will be required for the Rights Issue
including the issue of the Bonus Shares with the fully-paid Rights Shares. The Controlling
Shareholders will abstain from voting on the ordinary resolution to approve the Rights Issue
with the Bonus Shares Issue.

ISSUE STATISTICS
Basis of the Rights Issue : 2 Rights Shares for 5 existing Shares held on the Record

Date, issued with 3 Bonus Shares for every fully-paid
Rights Share

Number of Shares in issue : 852,367,051 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date
Number of Rights Shares :  not less than 340,946,820 Rights Shares
Subscription price for :  HKS$0.10 per Rights Share

Rights Shares

Number of Bonus Shares :  not less than 1,022,840,460 Shares

Note: As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are outstanding Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
171,676,201 Shares. Amongst the Share Option holders, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man Fai
LEE, Ms. Siew Yit HOH, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN,
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE and Mr. Boon Seng TAN, all of whom are Directors or their associates, in
aggregate, are entitled to subscribe for 94,600,731 Shares pursuant to the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the respective Share Options, have given Irrevocable Undertakings to the Company
and the Underwriters not to exercise the subscription rights attaching to their respective Share Options
on or before the Acceptance Date.

If the remaining outstanding Share Options are exercised in full on or before the Record Date, a

further 30,830,188 Rights Shares and a further 92,490,564 Bonus Shares will be issued under the
Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.
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TERMS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE
Basis of provisional allotment

2 Rights Shares for every 5 existing Shares held by a Qualifying Shareholder on the
Record Date at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share, payable in full on
acceptance.

In conjunction with the Rights Issue, the Company proposes to issue Bonus Shares to the
first registered holders of fully-paid Rights Shares on the basis of 3 Bonus Shares for every
fully-paid Rights Share subscribed for. The Rights Issue is not available to Non-Qualifying
Shareholders.

Subscription price for the Rights Shares

HK$0.10 per Rights Share, payable in full when a Qualifying Shareholder accepts the
relevant provisional allotment of Rights Shares or applies for excess Rights Shares, or when a
transferee of nil-paid Rights Shares applies for Rights Shares.

Taking into account the Bonus Shares being issued with the fully-paid Rights Shares, the
effective price for each Rights Share is HK$0.025 which represents:

(1) a discount of about 62.69% to the closing price of HK$0.067 per Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the Last Trading Day;

(i1) a discount of about 61.77% to the average closing price of HK$0.0654 per Share for
the last 10 trading days up to and including the Last Trading Day;

(111) a discount of about 39.02% to the theoretical ex-rights price of approximately
HK$0.041 per Share based on the closing price of HK$0.067 per Share on the Last
Trading Day;

(iv) a discount of about 93.83% to the net asset value per share of HK$0.405 (based on
the Company’s audited consolidated net asset value of approximately HK$345,368,000
as at 31 December 2002);

(v) a discount of about 39.02% to the closing price of HK$0.041 per Share as quoted on
the Stock Exchange on the Latest Practicable Date;

(vi) a discount of about 39.61% to the average closing price of HK$0.0414 per Share for
the last 10 trading days up to and including the Latest Practicable Date; and
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(vii) a discount of about 19.35% to the theoretical ex-rights price of approximately
HK$0.031 per Share based on the closing price of HK$0.041 per Share on the Latest
Practicable Date.

The subscription price was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the
Company and the Underwriters. The Directors consider the terms of the Rights Issue to be fair
and reasonable and in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Status of the Rights Shares and the Bonus Shares

The Rights Shares (when issued and fully paid) and the Bonus Shares (when issued and
credited as fully-paid) will rank pari passu with the then existing Shares in all respects. Holders
of fully-paid Rights Shares and Bonus Shares will be entitled to receive all future dividends
and distributions which are declared, made or paid after the date of allotment and issue of the
Rights Shares and the Bonus Shares.

Certificates for Rights Shares and Bonus Shares

Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions of the Rights Issue, certificates for all fully-
paid Rights Shares and Bonus Shares are expected to be posted on or about Tuesday, 23
September 2003 to those who have accepted and (where applicable) applied for, and paid for,
the Rights Shares at their own risk.

Qualifying Shareholders

The Company will send the Rights Issue Documents to the Qualifying Shareholders and
the Prospectus, for information only, to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders.

To qualify for the Rights Shares, a Shareholder must:—
1.  be registered as a member of the Company on the Record Date; and

2. have an address in Hong Kong which appears on the register of members of the
Company on the Record Date.

In order to be registered as members on the Record Date, Shareholders must lodge any
transfers of Shares (together with the relevant share certificates) with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong by 4:00 p.m. Tuesday, 26 August 2003. The Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong is Standard Registrar Limited of G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Rights of Non-Qualifying Shareholders

The Rights Issue Documents will not be registered or filed under the applicable securities
legislation of any jurisdictions other than Hong Kong and Bermuda. As the Directors are of the
view that the offer of Rights Issue to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders would or might, in the
absence of compliance with registration or other special formalities in such other jurisdictions,
be unlawful or impracticable. Therefore, no Rights Shares will be offered to the Non-
Qualifying Shareholders. The Company will send the Prospectus to the Non-Qualifying
Shareholders for their information only and will not send provisional allotment letters or
application forms for excess Rights Shares to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, the Non-Qualifying Shareholders were interested in an aggregate of
21,987 Shares, representing approximately 0.0026% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Arrangements will be made for Rights Shares which would otherwise have been
provisionally allotted to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders to be sold in the market in their nil-
paid form as soon as practicable after dealings in the nil-paid Rights Shares commence, if a
premium (net of expenses) can be obtained. The proceeds of such sale, less expenses, of
HK$100 or more will be paid pro rata to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders. The Company will
retain individual amounts of less than HK$100.

Application for excess Rights Shares

Qualifying Shareholders who have accepted in full the Rights Shares provisionally
allotted to them are entitled to apply for any unsold entitlements of the Non-Qualifying
Shareholders and any Rights Shares provisionally allotted but not accepted or otherwise
subscribed for by transferees of nil-paid Rights Shares. The fully-paid Rights Shares issued
pursuant to excess applications will also be issued with Bonus Shares on the basis of 3 Bonus
Shares for every Rights Share so issued.

Applications may be made by completing the application forms for excess Rights Shares
and lodging the same with a separate remittance for the excess Rights Shares being applied for.
The Directors will allocate the excess Rights Shares at their discretion, but on a fair and
reasonable basis, and will give preference to topping-up odd lots to whole board lots.

UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENTS
Irrevocable Undertakings

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Controlling Shareholders together With their
respective associates are interested in 493,427,762 Shares, representing approximately 57.89%

of the issued share capital of the Company and have irrevocably undertaken to the Company
and the Underwriters to take up their provisional entitlements under the Rights Issue for an
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aggregate of 197,371,104 Rights Shares. Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, an executive Director,
is interested in 181,500 Shares, representing approximately 0.02% of the issued share capital of
the Company has irrevocably undertaken to the Company and the Underwriters to take up his
provisional allotment of 72,600 Rights Shares.

The Directors and their associates, who in aggregate hold 94,600,731 Share Options, have
irrevocably undertaken not to exercise the subscription rights attaching to the Share Options
pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertakings on or before the latest time for acceptance and
payment of the Rights Shares under the Rights Issue.

Underwriting Agreement
Date o 18 July 2003

Underwriters : (1) Modern Orbit
(2) Kingsway SW Securities

Commission : 2.5% of the total subscription price of the Rights Shares
underwritten by the Underwriters

Underwriting Fee : an additional lump sum in the amount of HK$325,000 payable to
Kingsway SW Securities

The Underwriters have fully underwritten all of the Rights Shares to be issued under the
Rights Issue on a several basis not less than 143,503,116 Rights Shares in aggregate, other than
the 197,443,704 Rights Shares which pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertakings referred to
above are to be taken up by the Controlling Shareholders and their associates and Mr. Sammy
Chi Chung SUEN, an executive Director. Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, Modern
Orbit and Kingsway SW Securities will underwrite on a several basis in the proportion of
65.16% and 34.84% of the total unsubscribed Rights Shares, respectively. Therefore, on the
basis of the abovementioned proportion, each of Modern Orbit and Kingsway SW Securities
Limited will underwrite not less than 93,506,630 Rights Shares and 49,996,486 Rights Shares
severally.

Termination of the Underwriting Agreement
The Underwriters may terminate their obligations set out in the Underwriting
Agreement by notice in writing given by Kingsway SW Securities (for itself and on behalf

of the other Underwriters) to the Company at any time if, prior to 5:00 p.m. on the third
Business Day after the date on which the latest time for acceptance of the Rights Shares
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falls, which is expected to be Monday, 22 September 2003, there shall develop, occur, exist

or come into effect:

(a) any new law or regulation or any change in existing laws or regulations or any
change in the interpretation or application thereof by any court or other
competent authority in Hong Kong or any other place in which any member of
the Group conducts or carries on business; or

(b) any change in, or any event or series of events resulting or likely to result in any
change in, local, national or international financial, political, military, industrial,
economic, currency or (whether or not sui generis with any of the foregoing)
market conditions; or

(¢) - any change in the conditions of local, national or international securities
markets (including but without limitation, the imposition of any moratorium,
suspension or material restriction on trading in securities generally on the Stock
Exchange due to exceptional financial circumstances or otherwise),

which:

(1) has or will have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Group or the
Rights Issue; or »

(2) has or will have a material adverse effect on the success of the Rights Issue or
the level of Rights Shares taken up; or

(3) makes it inadvisable or inexpedient for the Company to proceed with the Rights
Issue.

Save for all reasonable costs, charges and expenses which may be incurred in
connection with the Rights Issue, upon the giving of notice of termination, all obligations
of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement shall cease and no party shall
have any claim against any other parties in respect of any matter or thing arising out of or
in connection with the Underwriting Agreement. If the Underwriters exercise such right,
the Rights Issue will not proceed.

CONDITIONS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE

The Rights Issue is conditional upon, amongst other things, each of the following
conditions being fulfilled:

1. the passing at the SGM of the resolutions to be proposed for the approval by the
Shareholders, by way of an ordinary resolution, of the Rights Issue with the Bonus
Shares Issue;
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2. the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting, or agreeing to grant, the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares, in their nil-paid and fully-
paid forms, and granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Bonus Shares
by not later than the first Business Day after the Prospectus Posting Date;

3. the registration of all relevant documents in relation to the Rights Issue by the
Company with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong, and the filing of the same
with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda, on or prior to the Prospectus Posting
Date;

4. compliance of the Irrevocable Undertakings by Modern Orbit, Fisherman Enterprises
Inc. and the Directors and their respective associates; and

5. the obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement becoming
unconditional and the Underwriting Agreement not being terminated in accordance

with its terms or otherwise.
REVIEW OF OPERATION AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in the import, marketing and distribution of air-
conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and electronic

products, motor vehicles and car accessories and other electronic and electrical products.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the Group recorded a loss from operations of
approximately HK$9.06 million compared to a loss from operations of approximately
HK$76.48 million for the year 2001. The significant decrease in the amount of loss from
operations of approximately HK$67.42 million was mainly attributable to: (a) improvement in
cost control subsequent to the reorganisation of Group’s operating units which led to a
reduction of administrative expenses from approximately HK$140.18 million to approximately
HK$97.18 million; (b) no impairment loss was recognised in respect of intangible assets for the
financial year ended 31 December 2002; and (c) decrease in the amount of write-down resulted

~from the revaluation of investment properties and other properties in 2002.

The cars and car accessories and air-conditioning marketing franchise business were the
major source of revenue for the Group and constituted approximately 68.8% of the Group’s
total sales in 2002. Turnover for most of the core businesses of the Group have remained stable
compared to the financial year 2001 except for the direct marketing business. Sales of the
Group’s chain of retail outlets “Mega Warehouse Outlets” jumped by approximately 84.3%, due
to the opening of additional “Mega Warehouse Outlets” during the year of 2002. However, sales
by the motor group decreased by approximately 11.8% under the difficult market conditions in
the Hong Kong market.
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The Group recorded an audited net profit attributable to Shareholders of approximately
HKS$6.01 million compared to a net loss attributable to Shareholders of approximately
HK$99.51 million for the year 2001. This was mainly attributable to the exceptional profits
derived from the disposal or liquidation of subsidiaries of the Company in Singapore and
Malaysia (approximately HK$27.7 million) and an associate of the Group in PRC (approximately
HK$10.9 million), amounting to a total of approximately HK$38.6 million.

In 2002, the Group undertook a capital reorganisation to eliminate all the accumulated
losses, and a rights issue with a bonus issue mainly to raise fund for repayment of part of the
short-term indebtedness of the Group. Upon completion of the exercise, the financial position
of the Group has improved and its gearing ratio decreased from approximately 107.4% as at 31
December 2001 to approximately 61.9% as at 31 December 2002.

The details of the fund raising exercises undertaken by the Group during the two financial
years ended 31 December 2002 are set out below:

(i) in January 2001, the Company raised approximately HK$500,000 by way of a private
placement of 5,000,000 Shares at HK$0.10 each, the proceeds were used as the
general working capital of the Group. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 17 January 2001; and '

(i) in early 2002, the Company raised approximately HK$49.3 million by way of a rights
issue. The net proceeds of approximately HK$46.8 million was used:

. — as to approximately HK$15 million to repay the amounts due to a subsidiary of
the Company;

—  as to approximately HK$20 million to repay the bank loans;
~ as to approximately HK$10 million to develop the Group’s franchise and
distribution business, specifically in the motor car business and air-conditioning

marketing franchises; and

~  asto remaining of approximately HK$1.8 million as additional working capital
of the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement, circular and prospectus of the Company
dated 1 February 2002, 20 February 2002 and 15 March 2002, respectively.

The Directors confirm that the fund raised from the previous fund raising exercises as
stated above have been fully utilized and applied in the manner as stated as the intended use of
proceeds in the various announcements.
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The Group will continue to focus on the development of its air-conditioning and electrical
appliance marketing franchises business; direct marketing business; and motor car and

accessories distribution business.

The Directors believe that the air-conditioning products market will continue to be very
competitive, and they are of the view that the Hong Kong market will remain weak in 2003.
Although the Directors anticipate the PRC market to show a growth in demand, over-supply in
the PRC will exert downward pressure on prices and therefore profit margins. The Directors
believe that the accession of the PRC to the World Trade Organisation will offer more
favourable trading conditions for foreign enterprise including gradual reduction of import
tariffs and increased market and business opportunities. The Group will focus on the
commercial products sector of the PRC which provides higher margins due to the relatively
lesser competition because of the limited product ranges available from domestic produced
products.

The Group has actively engaged in the re-development of its direct marketing business by
opening six Mega Warehouse Outlets in different districts in Hong Kong in 2002 and has
successfully positioned itself as a significant retail chain stores operation with a total of nine
stores in Hong Kong. To differentiate the merchandising mix of Mega Warehouse from other
retail chain stores, it had successfully established a new merchandising channel to import audio
and video products directly from the PRC which were all sold at competitive prices. In 2003,
the Group will continue to expand its retail network; consolidate certain retail locations; offer a
wider range of product categories in order to maintain the growth and competitive edge against
other consumer electronic and electrical retail shops.

_ The Group is the sole distributor of the premier brand sports cars “Ferrari” and “Maserati”
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. The Directors anticipate that the demand for luxury sports
cars in the PRC will continue to increase and plan to establish sales and service centres in key
strategic cities in the PRC including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Dalian. The
Directors believe that the motor cars and accessories, distribution and servicing business will
generate significant revenue to the Group in the future.

REASONS FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE AND USE OF PROCEEDS

In view of the current market conditions; the current tight liquidity position of the Group
and the significant ameunt intended to be raised; the Directors consider that the Rights Issue
provides an opportunity for the Group to raise funds to improve its financial position and
capability to develop its franchise and distribution businesses. The proceeds from the Rights
Issue will also enhance the working capital and the net asset position of the Company as a
whole and therefore improve the financial gearing of the Group.
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The estimated net proceeds of the Rights Issue (net of expenses and assuming none of the
outstanding Share Options is exercised on or before the Record Date) are approximately
HK$32.0 million. The Directors intend to apply such proceeds as follows:

. as to approximately HK$15.1 million to repay the outstanding amounts of a loan

advanced from a Director;

. as to approximately HK$4.6 million to repay part of the outstanding amounts of a
loan advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a company wholly owned by a
Director;

. as to approximately HK$5.0 million to repay part of the bank overdrafts of the
Group; and

. as to approximately HK$7.3 million to provide additional working capital to the
Group.

To the extent that the net proceeds of the Rights Issue are not immediately used for the
above purposes, it is the present intention of the Directors that the net proceeds of the Rights
Issue will be placed on short-term deposit.

As at 30 June 2003, the outstanding balance of a loan advanced from Fisherman
Enterprises Inc. amounted to approximately HK$5.1 million which is unsecured. The term of
the loan advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc. commenced in November 2001, and has
been fully utilized as the general working capital of the Group. Interest at the rate of
approximately 6% per annum (1% above the best lending rate) was charged for the loan
advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc. The Directors, including the independent non-
executive Directors, after due and careful consideration, were of the view that the loan
advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc. was for the benefit of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole and that the terms were fair and reasonable.

As at 30 June 2003, the outstanding balance of a loan advanced from a Director amounted
to approximately HK$15.1 million. On 7 November 2002, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with a Director. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Director agreed to make
available to the Company a term loan facility of up to HK$15 million for use as general
working capital. The loan was drawn down in three tranches of HK$5 million, HK$7 million
and HK$3 million, respectively in November 2002, December 2002 and January 2003. The loan
is unsecured and bears interest at 10% per annum, repayable in three instalments on or before
31 July 2003, 31 August 2003 and 30 September 2003, respectively. Full amount of the loan
was drawn down by the Company before 15 January 2003 and has been fully utilised as the
general working capital of the Group. Details of the loan has set out in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ interests in contracts” in the Directors’ Report in the 2002 annual report of the
Company.
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Having regard to the following factors, the Directors (including the independent non-
executive Directors) considered that the terms of loan advanced from the Director was granted
on normal commercial terms:

—  during 2002 and the first quarter of 2003, the Company approached more than ten
financial institutions for term loans and/or general banking facilities. No proposal
was made by any of these financial institutions as they would only offer secured
lending and the Group has no available unpledged assets in Hong Kong. None of
these financial institutions would provide general banking facilities, other than those
already granted to the Group;

—  the Company had obtained advice from an independent financial adviser in relation
to: (a) the existing banking facilities of the Group and the pledged asset coverage; (b)
that no other banks that the Company had approached before had offered any
additional or increased facilities; and (c) the possible alternatives (as stated below)
for raising the requisite additional funds. The independent financial adviser, after
taking into account the time constraints for both obtaining new loans and the due
dates for repayment of existing bank loans for which new loans were required; the
then financial position of the Group; the reluctance of financial institutions to grant

new unsecured banking facilities to the Group; and the other fund raising
alternatives, advised the Company that the terms of the loan offered by the Director
was on normal commercial terms and fair and reasonable in the then circumstances;

The Company has also obtained legal advice from its counsels and was advised that,
based on the conclusion of the independent financial adviser that the loan advanced
from the Director was on normal commercial (or better) terms, the loan falls within
the scope of Rule 14.24(8) of the Listing Rules.

—  all short-term overdrafts were fully utilised and some trust receipts loans were due
for repayment. Part of the short-term overdrafts amounting to approximately HK$4
million is incurring interest at 8% per annum above the best lending rate or
approximately 13% per annum currently. The remaining short-term overdrafts and
the trust receipts are incurring interest at 1.25% to 2.0% above the best lending rate
and 0.5% to 1.0% above the best lending rate, respectively;

—  to ensure that the loan advanced from the Director was properly documented, proper
loan documentations were prepared by the lawyers.
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The Directors had considered several possible fund raising alternatives for fund raising to
strengthen the financial position of the Group, including:

—  issue of unsecured convertible notes: the Company had approached a placing agent
for a possible issue of unsecured convertible notes. However, the interest rate quoted
by the placing agent was approximately 13.5% per annum, which was higher than the
interest rate of the loan offered by the Director and the placing agent only proposed
to place on a best effort basis instead of on a fully underwritten basis in light of the
weak market after the “penny stock” fiasco in July 2002. Therefore, the Directors did
not consider that the issue of unsecured convertible notes as feasible given the high
interest rate payable and reluctance of the placing agent to fully underwrite the
unsecured convertible notes, which meant the Company may not be able to raise the
amount of funds it desired;

—  private placement: no placement was possible during that moment given the low
liquidity of trading of the Shares and also the fact that the trading price was well
below par value as the stock market has yet recovered from the July 2002 “penny
stock” saga; and

—  disposal of certain assets of the Group: the Directors considered that this alternative
is time consuming since prolonged discussions may be required for the parties to
reach terms which are acceptable to both buyers and the Company and therefore it
was not considered as a suitable alternative at the time when the Company was in
need of general working capital. The Company continued to seek buyers for certain
of the Group’s assets but no material disposal has been made so far.

Based on the above factors, the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors, after due and careful consideration, were of the view that the loan from the Director
was for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as a whole and the terms were fair and
reasonable. Therefore, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors)
believed that the loan from the Director was granted on normal commercial (or better) terms
and falls within Rule 14.24(8) and is not subject to any disclosure and/or shareholders approval
requirements under the Listing Rules.

In light of the abové, the Stock Exchange had not been notified of the loan advanced from
the Director at the time the loan was entered into and the Stock Exchange has requested the
Company to provide further information in this regard. The Company was informed that the
Listing Division may not égree to the view of the Directors. The Stock Exchange has indicated
that it will review the terms of the loan, and in particular, whether the loan was granted on
normal commercial (or better) terms, and consider whether or not the Company was entitled to
the exemption provision of Rule 14.24(8).
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As at 30 June 2003, the outstanding balance of such bank overdrafts amounted to
approximately HK$15.0 million. The Company was charged interest at the rates of approximately
6.25% (1.25% above the best lending rate) for the bank overdrafts of HK$10 million and 13.0%
per annum (8% above the best lending rate) for the bank overdrafts of approximately HK$5
million respectively. The bank overdrafts were fully utilized and used as the general working
capital of the Group.

The Directors consider the repayment of the loan advanced from a Director and Fisherman
Enterprises Inc. and part of the bank overdrafts of for aggregate of approximately HK$24.7
million could improve its financial gearing from approximately 61.9% before the Rights Issue
to approximately 50.6% immediately after the Rights Issue (based on the audited financial
information as at 31 December 2002) and the annual savings on interest expenses of
approximately HK$2 .4 million would provide the Group with additional working capital.

The Directors have considered a number of alternatives to raise funds for the Group, such
as the placing of new Shares and bank borrowings. In view of the unfavourable market
conditions, the recent economic climate and the higher gearing ratio that would result from
bank borrowings, the Directors consider that it is more prudent to finance the Group’s long
term growth with long term funding, preferably in the form of equity. In addition, raising funds
by way of a rights issue is preferred as it enables the Group to obtain additional resources
through capital contribution by existing Shareholders rather than private placement of new
Shares which would result in a dilution of existing Shareholders’ interests in the Company. As
the Rights Issue allows all Shareholders to maintain their respective pro-rata holdings in the
Company, the Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole, to raise capital through the proposed Rights Issue.

BOOK CLOSURE, LISTING AND DEALINGS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 27 August 2003
to Monday, 1 September 2003, both dates inclusive. No transfer of Shares will be registered
during this period.

The Company will apply to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares, in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms, and
the Bonus Shares.

No part of the share capital of the Company is listed or dealt in on any stock exchange
other than the Stock Exchange and no application is being made or is currently proposed or
sought for the securities of the Company to be listed or dealt in on any other stock exchange.

Subject to the granting of listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares (in both
their nil-paid and fully-paid forms) and the Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchange, and subject
to compliance with the stock admission requirements of HKSCC, the Rights Shares (in both
their nil-paid and fully-paid forms) and the Bonus Shares will be accepted as eligible securities
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by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and settlement in CCASS with effect from the relevant
commencement dates of dealings in the Rights Shares (in both their nil-paid and fully-paid)
and the Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchange or such other dates as determined by HKSCC.
Settlement of transactions between participants on the Stock Exchange on any trading day is
required to take place in CCASS on the second trading day thereafter. All activities under
CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures in
effect from time to time.

For the purpose of trading on the Stock Exchange, a board lot for the Rights Shares, in
both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms, and for the Bonus Shares, will be 2,000 Shares, which
is the same as the board lot size for the existing Share trading on the Stock Exchange.

Dealings in the Rights Shares, in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms, and the Bonus
Shares registered in the branch register of the Company in Hong Kong will be subject to the
payment of stamp duty in Hong Kong.

WARNING OF THE RISKS OF DEALINGS IN SHARES AND RIGHTS SHARES

Existing Shares are expected to be dealt in on an ex-rights basis from Monday, 25
August 2003, Dealings in the Rights Shares in their nil-paid form are expected to take
place from Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to Thursday, 11 September 2003 (both dates
inclusive). If the conditions of the Rights Issue are not fulfilled, the Rights Issue will not
proceed.

Any Shareholders or other persons contemplating selling or purchasing Shares and/
or Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the period in which they may be traded on
the Stock Exchange, which is expected to be from Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to
Thursday, 11 September 2003 (both dates inclusive) who are in any doubt about their
position are recommended to consult their professional advisers. Any Shareholders or
other persons dealing in Shares up to the date on which all the conditions to which the
Rights Issue is subject are fulfilled and any persons dealing in the nil-paid Rights Shares
during the period in which they may be traded on the Stock Exchange will accordingly
bear the risk that the Rights Issue may not become unconditional or may not preceed.

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE EXERCISE PRICES OF THE SHARE OPTIONS

Holders of the Share Options will be informed of any adjustment to the exercise prices of
the Share Options which will be verified by independent professional adviser in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Company’s share option schemes, adopted on 22 June
1991, 28 June 2001 and 30 May 2002, respectively. Further details will be disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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GENERAL MANDATE

It is proposed that a general and unconditional mandate to issue shares of the Company be
granted to the Directors. At the SGM, an ordinary resolution will be proposed to grant to the
Directors a mandate to allot and issue shares representing up to 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of the issued share capital of the Company upon completion of the Rights Issue and the
Bonus Shares Issue. The General Mandate will expire on the earliest of the date of the next
annual general meeting, the date by which the next annual general meeting of the Company is
réquired to be held by law or the bye-laws of the Company, or the date upon which the
authority under the General Mandate is revoked or varied by ordinary resolution of the
Company in general meeting.

SGM

Notice to the Shareholders to convene the, SGM to be held at 9:30 a.m. at Crystal Room,
3rd Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the ordinary resolutions to
approve the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue and the General Mandate is set out on
pages 54 to 57 of this circular.

You will find enclosed in this circular a form of proxy for use in connection with the
SGM. Whether or not you intend to be present at the meeting, you are requested to complete
and return the form of proxy to the principal office of the Company at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo
Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, as
soon as possible but in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the
holding of the SGM. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from
attending and voting in person at the SGM or any adjournment thereof should you so wish.

The Controlling Shareholders shall abstain from voting on the ordinary resolution to be
proposed at the SGM for approving the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares pursuant to the
Listing Rules. All Shareholders shall vote on the ordinary resolutions for approving the Bonus
Shares Issue and the General Mandate.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Your attention 18 drawn to the letter from the Independent Board Committee set out on
pages 27 to 28 of this circular, which contains its recommendation to the Independent
Shareholders as to voting at the SGM regarding the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue.
Your attention is also drawn to the leiter received from Quam Capital which contains its advice
to the Independent Board Committee as regards the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue.
The text of the letter from Quam Capital is set out on pages 29 to 39 of this circular. Quam
Capital has considered the terms of the Rights Issue and is of the opinion that the terms of the
Rights Issue with Bonus Shares Issue are fair and reasonable so far as the Shareholders are
concerned and are in the interests of the Company and the Sharcholders as a whole.
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The Independent Board Committee has considered the terms of the Rights Issue with the
Bonus Shares Issue and the advice given by Quam Capital and is of the opinion that the terms
of the Rights Issue with Bonus Shares Issue are fair and reasonable so far as the Independent
Shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, the Independent Board Committee recommends
Independent Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolutions to be proposed at the
SGM in relation to the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue.

Having considered the reasons set out herein, the Directors consider that the Rights Issue
with the Bonus Shares Issue is in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole. Accordingly, the Directors recommend that Shareholders should vote in favour of all the
relevant resolutions to be proposed at the SGM.

The Directors consider that the General Mandate will give them flexibility to issue and
allot new Shares when it is appropriate and in the interests of the Group as a whole to do so.
The Directors consider the General Mandate to be in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders and recommend the Shareholders to vote for the ordinary resolution for approving
the grant of the General Mandate.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Subject to, amongst other things, the passing of the ordinary resolutions relating to the
Rights [ssue with the Bonus Shares Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue, it is expected that the
‘Rights Issue Documents will be despatched to the Qualifying Shareholders on Monday, 1
September 2003. Your attention is drawn to the information set out in the appendix to this
circular.

By Order of the Board
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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O

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Registered office:
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Principal office in Hong Kong:
10th Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

14 August 2003
To the Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSUE ON THE BASIS OF
TWO RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FIVE EXISTING SHARES HELD
WITH BONUS SHARES TO BE ISSUED
ON THE BASIS OF
THREE BONUS SHARES FOR EVERY FULLY
PAID RIGHTS SHARE

We refer to the letter from the Board set out on pages 10 to 26 of the circular (the
“Circular”) which contains details of, amongst other matters, the Rights Issue with the Bonus
Shares Issue and the Underwriting Agreement and in which this letter is to be included. Terms
defined in this circular shall have the same meanings in this letter.

Under the Listing Rules, the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue is required to be
approved by the Independent Shareholders at a general meeting of the Company pursuant to
Rule 7.21(2) of the Listing Rules, as the Rights Issue is partly underwritten by Modern Orbit, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. We, as the independent non-executive Directors, have
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been appointed by the Board to constitute the Independent Board Committee to consider the
terms of the Rights Issue and to advise the Independent Shareholders in relation to them. The
Independent Board Committee has appointed Quam Capital as the independent financial
adviser to advise the Independent Board Committee as to whether the terms of the Rights Issue
are fair and reasonable so far as the Shareholders are concerned.

We wish to draw your attention to the letter from Quam Capital containing its advice
regarding the Rights Issue, as set out on pages 29 to 39 of the Circular. Having considered the
terms of the Rights Issue and the advice given by Quam Capital, the Independent Board
Committee is of the opinion that the terms of the Rights Issue are fair and reasonable so far as
the Shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, the Independent Board Committee recommends
Independent Shareholders to vote in favour of the resolution to be proposed at the SGM to
approve, amongst other matters, the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue.

Yours faithfully, Yours faithfully,

Boon Seng TAN Raymond Cho Min LEE °

Member of the Member of the
Independent Board Committee Independent Board Committee
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The following is the text of a letter of advice from Quam Capital, the independent
financial adviser to the Independent Board Committee, which has been prepared for the
purpose of incorporation into this circular, setting out its advice to the Independent Board

Committee in connection with the Rights Issue.

% Quam Capital Limited EEEBREFRERR A A
Financial Services Group == o Group

FAPAMETN16-20N B ILXN2301-23028
2301-2302, Alexandra House, 16-20 Chater Road, Central, Heng Kong

14 August 2003

The Independent Board Committee

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
106th Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Building

585-609 Castle Peak Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

Dear Sirs,
PROPOSED RIGHTS ISSUE AND BONUS SHARES ISSUE
INTRODUCTION

We refer to our appointment as the independent financial adviser to the Independent
Board Committee in respect of the proposed Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue. Details
of the proposed Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue are set out in the Letter from the
Board contained in the circular issued by the Company to the Shareholders dated 14 August
2003 (the “Circular”), of which this letter forms part. Terms used in this letter shall have the
same meanings as defined in the Circular unless the context otherwise requires.

The Company proposes to raise approximately HK$34.1 million (before expenses) by way
of the Rights Issues at the Issue Price of HK$0.10 each. The Company will provisionally allot
two Rights Shares, in nil-paid form for every five Shares held by the Qualifying Shareholders
on the Record Date and will issue Bonus Shares in the proportion of three Bonus Shares for
every fully paid Rights Share. The net proceed from the Rights Issue will be used (i) as to
approximately HK$15.1 million to repay the outstanding amounts on a loan advanced from a
Director; (i1) as to approximately HK$4.6 million to repay part of the outstanding amounts on a
loan advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc. (“FEI”); (iii) as to approximately HK$5.0
million to repay part of the bank overdrafts of the Group; and (iv) as to approximately HK$7.3
million as working capital to the Group.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, Independent Shareholders approval will be required for the
Rights Issue including the issue of the Bonus Shares with the fully paid Rights Shares. As at
the Latest Practicable Date, the Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates, who
together are interested in an aggregate of 493,427,762 Shares, representing approximately
57.89% of the existing issued share capital of the Company, have irrevocably undertaken to the
Company and the Underwriters to take up their provisional entitlements under the Rights Issue
for an aggregate of 197,371,104 Rights Shares. Mr. Sammy Chi Chung Suen, an executive
Director who is interested in 181,500 Shares, representing approximately 0.02% of existing
share capital of the Company, also has irrevocably undertaken to the Company and the
Underwriters to take up his provisional allotment of 72,600 Rights Shares. Mr. Wing Sum Lee,
Mr. Richard Man Fai Lee, Ms. Siew Yit Hoh, Mr. Jeff Man Bun Lee, Ms. Kam Har Yue, Mr.
Sammy Chi Chung Suen, Mr. Raymond Cho Min Lee and Mr. Boon Seng Tan, all of whom are
Directors or their associates and in aggregate hold 94,600,731 Share Options, have irrevocably
undertaken to the Company and the Underwriters not to exercise the subscription rights
attaching to the Share Options on or before the latest time for acceptance and payment of the
Rights Shares. The Underwriters have fully underwritten all the Rights Shares to be issued
under the Rights Issue on a several basis other than those taken up by the Controlling
Shareholders and Mr. Sammy Chi Chung Suen.

The Controlling Shareholders will abstain from voting on the resolution to approve the
Rights Issue at the SGM. Messrs. Boon Seng Tan and Raymond Cho Min Lee, both
independent non-executive Directors, have been appointed to form the Independent Board
Committee to consider and advise the Independent Shareholders on the terms of the Rights
Issue. We have been appointed as the independent financial adviser to the Independent Board
Committee to give an independent opinion as to whether the terms of the proposed Rights Issue
with the Bonus Shares Issue are, or are not fair and reasonable as far as the Independent
Shareholders are concerned.

In formulating our opinion, we have relied on the information and facts supplied to us by
the Company and its advisers. We have assumed that all the information and representations
contained or referred in the Circular concerning the Group, which has been provided by the
Directors and for which they are wholly responsible, were true and accurate in all respect at the
date thereof and may be relied upon. We have also assumed that all statements contained and
representations made or referred to in the Circular were true at the time they were made and
continue to be true at the date of the Circular. We have no reason to doubt the truth, accuracy
and completeness of the information provided, and representations made, to us by the
Directors, and we have sought and received confirmation from them that no material factors
have been omitted from the information supplied and referred to in the Circular.

We consider that we have reviewed all currently available information and documents
which are available under the present circumstances to enable us to reach an informed view and
to justify our reliance on the information provided so as to provide a reasonable basis of our
opinions. We have not, however, conducted an independent investigation into the business and
affairs of the Group.
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PRINCIPAL FACTORS AND REASONS CONSIDERED

In arriving at our opinion in respect of the proposed Rights Issue, we have considered the
following principal factors and reasons:

Reasons for the Rights Issue and use of proceeds

The purpose of the Rights Issue is to raise funds for the Group to improve its financial
position and capability to develop its franchise and distribution businesses and to enhance the
working capital and asset position of the Company as a whole and therefore improve the
financial gearing of the Group. The estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue are
approximately HK$32.0 million (assuming none of the outstanding Share Options is exercised
on or before the Record Date) and will be applied (i) as to approximately HK$15.1 million to
repay the outstanding amounts on loan advanced from a Director; (i1) as to approximately
HK$4.6 million to repay part of the outstanding amounts on a loan advanced from FEJ; (iii) as
to approximately HK$5.0 million to repay part of the bank overdrafts of the Group; and (iv) as
to approximately HK$7.3 million as additional working capital for the Group.

The Group is principally engaged in the import, marketing and distribution of air-
conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car andio and electronic
products, motor vehicles and car accessories and other electronic and electrical products.
Operating loss from operations for the year ended 31 December 2002 was reduced to
approximately HK$9.1 million from a loss of approximately HK$76.5 million in the year ended
31 December 2001. The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$6.0 million compared to v
a loss of approximately HK$99.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2001. Such profit
was, however, mainly due to a gain arising upon liquidation of certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the disposal of an associated company during the year.

As stated in the Letter from the Board, part of the outstanding balances of loans advanced
from a Director and FEI amounted to approximately HK$15.1 million and HK$5.1 million
respectively as at 30 June 2003 and the outstanding balance of the bank overdrafts due to a
bank amounted to approximately HK$15.0 million were fully utilized and used as the general
working capital of the Group. Details of the terms of the above loans advanced from a Director
and FEI and the bank overdrafts are set out in the Letter from the Board.

Cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31 December 2002 were approximately
HK$14.4 million and indebtedness of the Group amounted to approximately HK$351.0 million.

According to the Company’s annual report for the 'year 2002, amounts of cash generated
both from operations and financing activities were used to pay down debt, which at times
adversely affected the Group’s operation by restricting levels of business activity and the ability
of businesses to take advantage of incremental sales, particularly at the time of peak seasonal
trading. As the Group intends to continue to develop its franchise and distribution businesses,
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the Directors consider that it is prudent to finance the Group’s long term growth by means of
long term funding, preferably in the form of equity, after considering the financial burden of
servicing interest and the effect of debt financing on the Company and the Group’s present

financial position.

Having considered the current financial position of the Group and the reasons mentioned
above, we concur with the Board’s view that the Rights Issue is an appropriate means to
strengthen the financial position of the Group.

Issue Price

The Company will provisionally allot two Rights Shares for every five Shares held by the
Qualifying Shareholders on the Record Date and will issue Bonus Shares on the basis of 3
Bonus Shares for every fully paid Right Share. Accordingly, taking into account the Bonus
Shares being issued with the fully paid Right Shares, the effective price (“Effective Price”) for
each Rights Share is HK$0.025 and represents:

. a discount of approximately 62.69% to the closing price of HK$0.067 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Last Trading Day;

. a discount of approximately 61.77% to the average closing price of HK$0.0654 per
Share for the last ten trading days up to and including the Last Trading Day;

. a discount of approximately 39.02% to the theoretical ex-entitlement price of
approximately HK$0.041 per Share based on the closing price of HK$0.067 per
Share on the Last Trading Day;

. a discount of approximately 93.83% to the net asset value per Share of HK$0.405
(based on the Company’s audited consolidated net asset value of approximately
HK$345,368,000 as at 31 December 2002);

»  a discount of approximately 39.02% to the closing price of HK$0.041 per Share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Latest Practicable Date;

. a discount of approximately 39.61% to the average closing price of HK$0.0414 per
Share for the last 10 trading days up to and including the Latest Practicable Date;
and

*  adiscount of approximately 19.35% to the theoretical ex-rights price of approximately
approximately HK$0.031 per Share based on the closing price of HK$0.041 per
Share on the Latest Practicable Date.

As set out in the Letter from the Board in the Circular, the subscription price was
determined after arm’s length negotiations between the Company and the Underwriters. The
Directors consider the terms of the Rights Issue to be fair and reasonable and in the best
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.
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In view of the prevailing market conditions and in order to increase the attractiveness of
the Rights Issue and engage the Qualifying Shareholders to participate in the future
development of the Group, the Directors consider that a discount of approximately 62.69%
based on the Effective Price to the closing price of HK$0.067 per Share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on the Last Trading Day is appropriate. We have reviewed the issue prices of, to the
best of our knowledge, all the rights issues of companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange since January 2003 as summarised below:

Discount of

Discount of
issue price to

issue price to the theoretical
the average ex-entitlement

Discount of closing price price
issue price to for the ten calenlated
the last trading trading days up  based on the
day prior to the toand  closing price

Date of Effective suspension of including the on the last

Company announcement issue price trading last trading day trading day
(HKS) (%) (%) (%)
Cheuk Nang 28 January 2003 0.011 21.43 20.86 15.38
(Holdings)
Limited
Hon Kwok Land 12 February 2003 1.00 32.4 29.9 16.1
Investment .
Company,
Limited
Wing Lee 14 February 2003 1.50 47.92 46.88 38.02
Holdings Limited
ren ren Holdings 3 March 2003 0.018 43.75 40.00 28.00
Limited
Lai Fung 11 March 2003 0.10 23.10 27.00 20.00
Holdings Limited
Pacific 18 March 2003 0.30 18.90 31.00 13.50
Challenge
Holdings Limited
Bossini 24 March 2003 0.22 5.17 6.78 3.51
International
Holdings Limited
Yoshiya 6 May 2003 0.01 71.43 73.47 45.36
International
Corporation,
Limited
Start Technology 9 May 2003 0.1125 64.84 63.59 26.95
Company Limited
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Discount of

Discount of issue price to
issue price to the theoretical
the average ex-entitlement

Discount of closing price price

issue price to " for the ten calculated

the last trading trading days up  based on the

day prior to the toand  closing price

Date of Effective suspension of including the on the last

Company announcement issue price trading last trading day trading day

(HKS) (%) (%) (6)

Leaptek Limited 13 May 2003 0.01 85.71 87.26 75.00

Lifetec Group 27 May 2003 0.10 2592 0.00 18.9

Limited

Oriental Union 28 May 2003 0.30 53.13 48.28 36.17
Holdings Limited

Highest 85.71 87.26 75.00

Lowest 5.17 0.00 3.51

Median 38.08 35.50 23.48

Mean 41.14 39.59 28.07

The Company 24 July 2003 0.025 62.69 61.77 39.02

As illustrated in the table above, the discounts of the issue price of these recent issues are
highly divergent. The discounts of the Effective Price are within such ranges and are higher
than both the mean and median of these recent issues. Therefore, we concur with the Directors’
view that the subscription price offers an incentive to attract participation by the Qualifying
Shareholders in the Rights Issue and is fair and reasonable so far as the Independent

Shareholders are concerned.
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Performance of the Share price and liquidity
Share price performance
The table below summarised the monthly highest and lowest daily closing prices and the

average daily closing prices of the Share since January 2003 and up to the Latest Practicable
Date (the “Review Period”):

Highest closing Lowest closing Average daily
price price closing price
(HK$) (HKS$) (HK3)
2003
January’ 0.048A 0.036A 0.043A
February® 0.059A 0.035A 0.043A
March® 0.057A 0.041A 0.047A
April” 0.044A 0.034A 0.040A
May 0.073 0.041 0.052
June 0.069 0.055 0.061
July 0.072 0.038 0.058
August
{up to the Latest
Practicable Date) 0.044 0.041 0.042

Source: www.hkex.com.hk
' ‘A’ denotes that the share price has been adjusted according to a bonus share issue
undertaken by the Company in April 2003.

As shown above, the Shares have been traded above the Effective Price during the Review
Period. The average adjusted closing price of Shares has remained stable at between HK30.043
in January 2003 to HK$0.040 in April 2003. The trading price of the Shares began to rise
gradually in May 2003 but dropped significantly after the Company announced the proposed
Rights Issue on 24 July 2003. We noted that the share price of all, but one company whose
share price remained unchanged, of the companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, which have undertaken rights issues since January 2003, immediately dropped on
the first trading day after the companies announced the intention to raise fund through rights
issue. Therefore, we consider that the decrease in share price is not an unusual reaction from
public investors to an announcement of a fund raising exercise such as the Right Issue.
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It 1s noted that during the period from May 2003 to the Last Trading Day, the Company
has not undertaken any major corporate activities which required disclosure under the Listing
Rules. Furthermore, there was no price sensitive information relating to the Company during
the same period which would warrant the making of a public announcement, other than the
Announcement. In light of the foregoing, we are of the view that the fluctuation in the
performance of the Share price since May 2003 and before issue of the Announcement has been
purely due to the then prevailing market forces in play rather than as a reaction to any news
about the Company.

The highest and lowest closing price per Share quoted on the Stock Exchange during the
Review Period and as adjusted according to a bonus share issue undertaken by the Company in
April 2003, was HK$0.073 in May 2003 and HK$0.034 in April 2003 respectively. The
Effective Price represents a material discount to the adjusted prices of the Shares during the
Review Period. As the Rights Issue will, when allotted, issued and fully paid, rank pari passu in
all respects with the Shares then in issue and holders of such Rights Shares will receive all
future dividends and distribution which are declared, made or paid after the date of allotment of
the Rights Shares, Independent Shareholders are thus not disadvantaged by subscribing the
Rights Shares. Independent Shareholders who wish to subscribe for the Right Issue should,
however, note that that if the prevailing trading price of Shares is lower than the Effective
Price, it will be more appropriate to purchase such number of Shares in the market than to
subscribe for the Rights Issue.

Alternative fund raising methods

The Directors have considered other alternatives to raise funds for the Group, such as
bank borrowings and placing of new Shares to third parties. In view of the unfavourable market
conditions, the recent economic climate and the higher gearing ratio that would result from
bank borrowings, the Directors consider that it is more prudent to finance the Group’s long
term growth with long term funding, preferably in the form of equity. The Directors consider
that raising funds by way of a rights issue is preferred to the placement of new Shares as it
enables the Group to obtain additional resources through capital contribution by existing
Shareholders rather than private placement which would result in a dilution of existing
Shareholders’ interests in the Company.

As the Rights Issue allows all Shareholders to maintain their respective pro-rata
shareholding interests in the Company and provides them equal opportunity to participate in
the further development of the Group, we concur with the Directors’ view that the Rights [ssue
is a reasonable fund raising method to strengthen the Group’s financial position and to enlarge
its capital based without diluting existing Shareholders’ interests in the Company.

Dilution effect on shareholdings

Attributable equity interests in the Company of those Qualifying Shareholders who do not
subscribe in full their provisional allotments under the Rights Issue will be diluted after
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completion of the Rights Issue up to a maximum dilution of approximately 61.5%. On the other
hand, Qualifying Shareholders who wish to increase their shareholdings in the Company
through the Rights Issue may, subject to availability, acquire additional nil-paid Rights Shares
or apply for excess Rights Shares.

Financial effects
Net tangible assets

The table below sets out the pro forma consolidated net tangible asset value of the Group
based on the audited net tangible assets of the Group as at 31 December 2002:

HK3’ 000

Audited consolidated net tangible assets of the Group

as at 31 December 2002 345,368
Add: Estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue 32,000
Pro forma consolidated net tangible assets immediately after

the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue 377,368
Audited consolidated net tangible asset value per Share

immediately prior to the completion of the Rights Issue and

the Bonus Shares Issue based on 852,367,051 Shares in issue HK$0.405
Pro forma consolidated net tangible asset value per Share

immediately following the completion of the Rights Issue and

the Bonus Shares Issue based on 2,216,154,331 Shares in

issue upon completion HK$0.170

Net assets of the Group will be increased upon completion of the Rights Issues and the
Bonus Shares Issue. The Group’s net asset value per Share however is expected to decline from
approximately HK$0.405 per Share to approximately HK$0.170 per Share upon completion of
the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue. This decline is due to the fact that the Effective
Price of HK$0.025 per Share is significantly lower than the Group’s net assets per Share of
HK$0.405 as at 31 December 2002.

In view of the foregoing, we consider the Rights Issue has the advantage of improving the
Group’s financial position while all Shareholders will be able to maintain their interests in the
Company if they take up their entitlements fully under the Rights Issue as they are being
offered the same right to participate in the Rights Issue.
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- Gearing Ratio and working capital

As at 31 December 2002, the Group had outstanding borrowings totalling approximately
HK$228.2 million. After completion of the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue, the
gearing ratio (defined as outstanding borrowings less cash and bank balances to equity) of the
Group will decrease from approximately 61.9% to approximately 50.6%.

Cash and bank balances of the Group as at 31 December 2002 were approximately
HK$14.4 million. HK$24.7 million of the estimated net proceeds of the Rights Issue will be
applied to repay part of the indebtedness of the Group. The remaining amount will increase the
Group’s working capital by approximately HK$7.3 million and the annual savings on interest
expenses of approximately HK$2.4 million as detailed in the Letter from the Board would
provide the Group with additional working capital.

The Rights Issue will improve the Group’s financial position as well as lower the gearing
ratio of the Group. The working capital position will also be enhanced after the Rights Issue.
Therefore, we concur with the Directors’ view that the Rights Issue is in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders.

RECOMMENDATION

Having taken into account the principal factors and reasons as detailed above, and in
particular the following:—

. the current financial position of the Group and the reasons for the Rights Issue and
use of proceeds;

. as illustrated in the paragraph headed “Issue Price” above, the discounts of the
Effective Price are within the range of other recent rights issues and are higher than

both the mean and median of such recent issues;

J the Effective Price represents a material discount to the adjusted prices of the Shares
during the Review Period; ‘

. the potential dilution effect on shareholdings and the rights and entitlements of
Shareholders under the Rights Issue; and

. the financial effects on the Group;
we are of the opinion that the proposed Rights Issue is overall beneficial to the Group. As such,

we are of the view that the terms of the Rights Issue are fair and reasonable so far as the
Independent Shareholders are concerned.
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Accordingly, we advise the Independent Board Committee to recommend the Independent
Shareholders to vote in favour of the resolution to be proposed at the SGM to approve the
Rights Issue.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of
Quam Capital Limited
Richard D. Winter
Managing Director
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1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This circular includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
circular and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge
and belief, there are no other facts not contained in this circular, the omission of which would
make any statement herein misleading.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised and issued share capital of the Company following completion of the
Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares will be as follows:

Authorised. HKS$

3,500,000,000  Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date 350,000,000.00

Shares issued and to be issued as fully-paid or credited:

852,367,051 Shares in issue as at the Latest Practicable Date 85,236,705.10

340,946,820  Shares to be issued under the 34,094,682.00
Rights Issue (Note)

1,022,840,460 Shares to be issued under the 102,284,046.00
Bonus Shares Issue (Note )

2,216,154,331  Shares in issue immediately 221,615,433.10
following the completion of the
Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares
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(Note): As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are outstanding Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 171,676,201 Shares. Amongst the Share Options holders, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man
Fai LEE, Ms. Stew Yit HOH, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung
SUEN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE and Mr. Boon Seng TAN, all of whom are Directors, or their
associates, in aggregate, are entitled to subscribe for 94,600,731 Shares, have given lrrevocable
Undertakings to the Company and the Underwriters not to exercise the subscription rights attaching
to their respective Share Options on or before the Acceptance Date.

If the remaining outstanding Share Options are exercised in full on or before the Record Date, a
further 30,830,188 Rights Shares and a further 92,490,564 Bonus Shares will be issued under the
Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.

3. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Name Address

Wing Sum LEE (Honorary Chairman) Flat A1, 17th Floor
Villa Monte Rosa
41A Stubbs Road
Hong Kong

Richard Man Fai LEE
(Executive Chairman, Chief

2nd Floor, 1C Shiu Fai Terrace
Stubbs Road

Executive Officer)

Sammy Chi Chung SUEN

Jeff Man Bun LEE

Non-executive Director

Kam Har YUE

Hong Kong

Flat C-5, 8 Seymour Road
Hong Kong

Flat A1, 17th Floor
Villa Monte Rosa
41A Stubbs Road
Hong Kong

Flat A1, 17th Floor
Villa Monte Rosa
41A Stubbs Road
Hong Kong
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Name Address
Boon Seng TAN 25B, Po Garden
9 Brewin Path
Hong Kong
Raymond Cho Min LEE House F, 102 Repulse Bay Road

Repulse Bay
Hong Kong

The qualifications and experience of the Directors are set out below:
Executive Directors

Wing Sum LEE, aged 76, is the founder and the honorary chairman of the Company.
He has 58 years’ experience in the distribution of consumer products. He has been
involved in the marketing and strategic planning of the Group since its inception. He is a
director of the Radio Association of Hong Kong, and an honorary chairman of the Hong
Kong and Kowloon Electrical Appliances Merchants Association Limited.

Richard Man Fai LEE, BSB, MBA, aged 46, the executive chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company, is the son of Mr. Wing Sum LEE and Ms. Kam Har
YUE. He has 23 years’ experience in marketing consumer products. He has a bachelor’s
degree and a master’s degree in business administration from the University of Minnesota.
He was also elected and had served for two consecutive terms as the chairman of the
Radio Association of Hong Kong, the trade association of audio visual business in Hong
Kong. He has been with the Group for 19 years.

Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, MBA, aged 56, is a director of Appliances Business
Group of Wo Kee Hong Limited and director of Technorient Limited. He has 31 years’
experience in general management, sales and marketing of cars, electrical appliances and
air-conditioning products. He has been with the Group for about 7 years.

Jeff Man Bun LEE, BSc, MSc, University of Michigan, MSc, Standford University,
aged 44, 1s a Director of the Company and was appointed in January 2002. He is the son
of Mr. Wing Sum LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE and the younger brother of Mr. Richard
Man Fai LEE. He is responsible for the strategic planning and the development of new
projects of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he was a system software specialist of
Research and Development Department of the Apple Computer International Limited for
5 years. He had been actively involved in the Group’s business from 1991 to 1997 prior to
his current appointment.
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Non-executive Director

Kam Har YUE, aged 70, is the wife of Mr. Wing Sum LEE and was involved in the
policy making of the Group from 1962 to December 1989. She has been a non-executive
Director of the Company since then. She has over 28 years’ experience in trading and

distribution of consumer products.
Independent non-executive Directors

Boon Seng TAN, M.A., Cambridge University, aged 47, Mr. TAN has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April 1999 and he is the
chairman and managing director of Lee Hing Development Limited. He is also the
executive director of IGB Corporation Berhad, a listed company in Malaysia and is a
director of South China Holdings Limited, South China Brokerage Company Limited,
South China Industries Limited and Star Cruises Limited, all listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He also holds directorships in many other companies.

Raymond Cho Min LEE, Ed.M, Harvard University, aged 47, is the chairman and
managing director of HY & HT Lee Bros. & Co., Ltd. He is also the chairman of the U.S.-
based East West Enterprises Co. Ltd. and the Oasis Development Enterprises Group of
real estate development and investment companies. In addition, he is the founder and
director of the East West Institute of International Studies at Gordon College (USA) and
over the years has served on the boards of various community and charitable organisations.

4. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND PARTIES INVOLVED

Registered office Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Principal office in Hong Kong 10th Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

Authorised representatives Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN

Auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
26th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong
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Financial adviser to the Company Kingsway Capital Limited
Sth Floor
Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central
Hong Kong

Underwriters | Kingsway SW Securities Limited
5th Floor
Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central
Hong Kong

Modern Orbit Limited
P. O. Box 3340

Road Town, Tortola
British Virgin Islands

Independent financial adviser Quam Capital Limited
2301-2302 Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

Legal adviser to the Company Morrison & Foerster
and the Rights Issue 21/F., Entertainment Building
as to Hong Kong Law 30 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Legal adviser to the Company Appleby Spurling & Kempe
as to Bermuda Law 5511, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central
Central
Hong Kong

Hong Kong branch share registrar Standard Registrars Limited
and transfer office G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
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5. DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

(a) As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of each Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO) or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

(i) Beneficial interest and short position in Shares as at the Latest Practicable

Date:
Number of Shares
Personal Family Corporate
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Others Total
Richard Man Fai LEE 12,909,380 2,591,820 450,513,734 - 466,014,934
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Jeff Man Bun LEE 1,815,000 - 456,074,192 - 457,889,192
(Notes 2 & 3)
Kam Har YUE 20,037,370 - 450,513,734 - 470,551,104
(Note 2)
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN 181,500 - - - 181,500
Notes:

I. The 2,591,820 Shares are owned by Ms. Siew Yit HOH, the spouse of Mr. Richard Man Fai
LEE.

2. The 450,513,734 Shares are held by Modern Orbit, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower
Inc. as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are
held by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE’s family members including Ms.
Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries.
The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by Skylink International
Asset Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms.
Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE.

3. Out of the 456,074,192 Shares, 5,560,458 Shares are held by Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Jeff Man Bun
LEE.

4. All interests in the Shares are long positions. None of the Directors held any short position
in the Shares.
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(ii) Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date:

Date of Number of Subscription
option Shares in Exercise price per
Name of Director granted the options period Share
HK3
Wing Sum LEE 28 July 1997 7,563,255 31 August 1997- 1.4416
30 August 2003
19 January 1998 1,815,181 22 February 1998- 0.5951
21 February 2004
21 December 1999 3,932,892 11 February 2000~ 0.3786
10 February 2006
11 February 2000 1,815,181 21 March 2000- 0.8828
20 March 2006 :
10 August 2001 21,177,117 16 September 2001- 0.2705
15 September 2007
24 September 2002 246,400 24 September 2002- 0.0909

23 September 2008

Richard Man Fai LEE 28 July 1997 8,168,315* 28 August 1997- 1.4416
27 August 2003

19 January-1998 1,875,686* 19 February 1998- 0.5951
18 February 2004

10 June 1998 605,060 24 July 1998- 0.2847
23 July 2004

21 December 1999 4,053,904* 7 February 2000~ 0.3786

6 February 2006

11 February 2000 2,117,711 18 March 2000- 0.8828
17 March 2006

28 May 2001 2,420,242 29 June 2001- 0.2705
28 June 2007

10 August 2001 217,117 16 September 2001~ 0.2705
15 September 2007

29 August 2001 302,529* 30 September 2001- 0.2705
29 September 2007

24 Septémber 2002 - 8,522,800 24 September 2002- 0.0909
23 September 2008

* Share Options granted to the spouse of Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE were included in the
interests of Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
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Date of Number of Subscription
option Shares in Exercise price per
Name of Director granted the options period Share
HKS
Jeff Man Bun LEE 4 June 2002 1,210,121 4 June 2002- 0.1309
3 June 2008
24 September 2002 550,000 24 September 2002- 0.0909
23 September 2008
Sammy 28 July 1997 605,060 31 August 1997- 1.4416
Chi Chung SUEN 30 August 2003
21 December 1999 181,517 6 February 2000- 0.3786
S February 2006
11 February 2000 302,529 22 March 2000~ 0.8828
21 March 2006
18 January 2001 157315 6 March 2001- 0.2705
5 March 2007
10 August 2001 605,060 19 September 2001 0.2705
18 September 2007
4 June 2002 2,420,242 4 June 2002- 0.1369
3 June 2008
24 September 2002 770,000 24 September 2002~ 0.0909
23 September 2008
Kam Har YUE 29 August 2001 302,539 30 September 2001~ 0.2705
29 September 2007
Raymond 4 June 2002 847,084 4 June 2002- 0.1309
Cho Min LEE 3 June 2008 '
24 September 2002 4,400 24-September 2002- 0.0909

23 September 2008

Boon Seng TAN 4June 2002 . 847,084 4 June 2002- 0.1309
, 3 June 2008

24 September 2002 4,400 24 September 2002- 0.0909
23 September 2008
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(iif) Beneficial interest and short position in shares in associated corporations
as at the Latest Practicable Date:

Number of shares Class and/or

Name of associated or equity interests description of

Name of Director corperation  held or interested in shares/interests
Wing Sum LEE Stoneycroft Estates Limited 15,750,000 non-voting
deferred shares

Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,500 non-voting

deferred shares
Wo Kee Services Limited I non-voting

deferred shares

Kam Har YUE Wo Kee Hong Limited 400 non-voting
deferred shares

Shinwa Engineering 3,850,000 non-voting

Company, Limited deferred shares

Stoneycroft Estates Limited 340,000 non-voting

deferred shares

Forward International 34,335 non-voting

Corporation, Limited deferred shares

As at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interest or held any short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation(s) (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein, or which are
required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

None of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest in any assets which had been
acquired or disposed of by or leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired, disposed of by or
leased to any member of the Group since 31 December 2002 (being the date to which the latest
published audited accounts of the Company were made up).

There is no contract or arrangement subsisting at the date of this circular in which any of

the Directors is materially interested and which is significant in relation to the business of the
Group taken as a whole.
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6. PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST OR SHORT POSITION WHICH IS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER DIVISIONS 2 AND 3 OF PART XV OF THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the
Directors (i) no other person had, or was deemed or taken to have an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; and (ii) no other person (excluding any member of the Group) was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group or has any
option in respect of such capital:

Approximate % of the

Company Number of total issued Shares as at the
Name Shares Latest Practicable Date
Modern Orbit 450,513,734 52.86%

Note: The 450,513,734 Shares are held by Modern Orbit, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower Inc. as
trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE’s family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr.
Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units
of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE.

7. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

In the two years immediately preceding the date of this circular, the following contracts,
not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, were entered into by the
Company or its subsidiaries and are or may be material:

(a) an agreement dated 21 September 2001 entered into between ebuystore (B.V.I)
Limited (“ebuystore BVI”) as purchaser and Racer Profits Limited (“Racer Profits™)
as vendor for the acquisition of 45% interest in Mega Warehouse (B.V.I) Limited
(“Mega”) for a consideration of HK$351;

(b) a deed of assignment dated 21 September 2001 entered into between Racer Profits
and ebuystore BVI in respect of the assignment of a shareholder’s loan due and
owing from Mega to Racer Profits in the sum of HK$4,045,739 for a consideration
of HK$1.00;

—49—




APPENDIX GENERAL INFORMATION

()

(d)

(e)

%

(2

(h)

0)

an agreement dated 21 September 2001 entered into between ebuystore BVI as
purchaser and Rich Destiny Holdings Limited as vendor for the acquisition of 25%
interest in ebuystore.com Limited for a consideration of HK$195;

a deed of assignment dated 21 September 2001 entered into between Mr. Richard
Man Fai LEE and ebuystore BVI in respect of the assignment of a director’s loan due
and owing from ebuystore.com (H.K.) Limited to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE in the
sum of HK$777,650 for a consideration of HK$1.00;

an agreement dated 9 November 2001 entered into between the Company and
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries (“MHI”) relating to the settlement of the entire amount
due from the Group to MHI;

a deed of assignment dated 18 December 2001 entered into between Wo Kee Hong
(Singapore) Pte Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as assignor and
Eroklsir Auto Services Pte Ltd. as assignee, relating to the assignment of a property
located at the Republic of Singapore for a consideration of S$7 million;

an agreement dated 31 December 2001 entered into between Wo Kee Hong (B.V.I)
Limited as vendor and Mr. Wing Sum LEE as purchaser for the sale of the entire
issued share capital of Golden City Equities Limited for a consideration of
HK$1,300,000;

an underwriting agreement dated 30 January 2002 entered into amongst the
Company, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr.
Jeff Man Bun LEE, Fisherman Enterprises Inc. and Unit Cosmo International
Limited and Kingsway SW Securities as underwriter in respect of a rights issue with
bonus shares issue;

a sale and purchase agreement dated 27 June 2003 entered into between ltalian
Motors (Sales & Service) Limited (“IMSS”) as vendor and Auto [talia Limited
(“Auto Italia”) as purchaser, both of which are subsidiaries of the Company relating
to the sale of the business of IMSS to Auto Italia as part of a' group reorganisation
exercise; and

a deed of settlement dated 28 June 2002 entered into amongst MHI, Wo Kee Hong
Limited (“WKHL”), Stoneycroft Estates Limited (“Stoneycroft”), Metro Global
Limited (*Metro Global”) and Ever Rising Investments Limited (“Ever Rising”) in
relation to the settlement of a debt in the amount of US$26,247,346.27 (equivalent to
approximately HK$204,829,040.82) due from WKHL to MHI in respect of goods
provided by MHI to WKHL;
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(k) a deed of charge dated 28 June 2002 entered into amongst Stoneycroft as charger,
MHI as the chargee and the Company in respect of car parking spaces and Block A
on 2nd Floor of Wo Kee Hong Building located at No. 585-609 Castle Peak Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong;

(1) a deed of charge dated 28 June 2002 entered into amongst Ever Rising as charger,
MHI as the chargee and the Company in respect of Block B on 2nd Floor of Wo Kee
Hong Building located at No. 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong;

(m) aloan agreement dated 28 June 2002 entered into among MHI as lender, WKHL as
borrower and the Company as guarantor in respect of a loan for the principal amount
of US$17,039,689.38 (equivalent to approximately HK$133 million);

(n) a land use right transfer agreement dated 17 April 2003 entered into between
Dongguan Changxing Refrigeration Equipment Co. Ltd. as transferor, Zhongshan
City Tongfeng County Real Estate Development Company Limited as transferee and
Mr. Zhu Xin Kwat as guarantor to the transferee in relation to three pieces of land
with a total area of 48.33 mu located at Zhongshan City Dong Feng Town for a
consideration of RMB5,800,452; and

(o) the Underwriting Agreement
8. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Review of operation and prospects” in the
letter from the Board in this circular, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not
aware of any material adverse change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31
December 2002, being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Group
were made up.

9. LITIGATION

. As at the Latest Practicable Date, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

10. SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not

determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

—51-




APPENDIX GENERAL INFORMATION

11. CONSENT OF EXPERT

The following are the qualifications of the expert which has given its opinion or advice
which is contained in this circular:

Name Qualifications
Quam Capital deemed Licensed Corporation

Quam Capital has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue of this
circular with the inclusion of its letter of advice and references to its name in the form and

context in which it appears.

Quam Capital also confirms that it does not have any shareholding in the Company or any
of its.subsidiaries or any right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to
nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of the Group, nor did it have any
direct or indirect interest, in any assets which have been, since 31 December 2002 (being the
date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Company were made up), acquired or
disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group, or are proposed to be acquired or
disposed of by or leased to any member of the Group.

12. MISCELLANEOUS

1. The registered office of the Company is at Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton
HM 12, Bermuda.

2. The principal office of the Company in Hong Kong is at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo
Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

3. The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Phyllis NG, who is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

4.  The branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong is Standard Registrars
Limited, at G/F, BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

5. The expenses in connection with the Rights Issue and Bonus Shares Issue, including
the financial advisory fee, underwriting commission, printing, registration, translation,
legal and accounting charges, are estimated to amount to approximately HK$2.1
million and will be payable by the Company.

6. The English text of this circular shall prevail over the Chinese text in the case of
inconsistency.
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13. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies -of the following documents are available for inspection at the corporate head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609
Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong during normal business hours on

any weekday (public holidays excepted) up to and including the date of SGM:

(i) the annual report of the Company for the two financial years ended 31 December
2001 and 2002;

(ii) the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2002;
(iii) the memorandum of association and the bye-laws of the Company;

(iv) the letter of advice from Quam Capital, the text of which is set out on pages 29 to 39
of this circular; and

(v) the material contracts referred to in paragraph 7 of this Appendix; and

(vi) the written consent referred to in paragraph 11 of this Appendix;
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W

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

NOTICE is hereby given that a special general meeting of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS)
LIMITED (the “Company”) will be held on 9:30 a.m. at Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panda Hotel,
3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on Monday, 1 September 2003
for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, passing the following ordinary resolutions:

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1. “THAT, conditional upon the passing of Resolution Number 2 as set out in the notice
convening this meeting (of which this Resolution forms part), the allotment and issue by
way of a rights issue of not less than 340,946,820 shares (the “Rights Shares”) of
HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company (“*Shares”) and not more than 371,777,008
Rights Shares with not less than 1,022,840,460 Shares and not more than 1,115,331,024
Shares credited as fully paid (the “Bonus Shares”) to be issued to the first registered
holders of the Rights Shares to sharcholders of the Company whose addresses are in Hong

Kong as shown on the register of members of the Company as at 1 September 2003 (the
“Qualifying Shareholders”) (i) on the basis of two Rights Shares for every five Shares
then held by the Qualifying Shareholders with three Bonus Shares for every Rights Share;
and (ii) on and subject to the terms and conditions set out in a rights issue prospectus, the
provisional allotment letter and the excess application forms for the Rights Shares, all of
which are to be dated 1 September 2003 (together the “Rights Issue Documents”) (the
“Proposed Rights Issue”) and to be sent to the Qualifying Shareholders, with the Proposed
Rights Issue fully underwritten on a several basis in the proportion of 34.84% and 65.16%
by Kingsway SW Securities Limited and Modern Orbit Limited, a substantial shareholder

of the Company, respectively pursuant to an underwriting agreement dated 18 July 2003
(the “Underwriting Agreement”), the terms and conditions of the Proposed Rights Issue
and the Underwriting Agreement having been set out in a circular dated 14 August 2003
(the “Circular”) of which the notice convening this meeting forms part and copies of the
Rights Issue Documents, the Underwriting Agreement and the Circular having been
submitted to the meeting marked “A” and signed by the Chairman of this meeting for the
purpose of identification, be and i1s hereby approved and the entering into of the
Underwriting Agreement by the Company be and is hereby confirmed and ratified and the
directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to issue and allot such Rights
Shares and Bonus Shares on and subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Rights

Issue Documents.”
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“THAT, conditional upon the passing of Resolution Number 1 set out in the notice

convening this meeting (of which this Resolution forms part), the directors of the

Company be and are hereby authorized to apply an amount of not more than
HKS$111,533,102.40 standing in the credit of the contributed surplus account to credit the
Bonus Shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Proposed Rights Issue as fully paid

up Shares in the capital of the Company.”

“THAT:—

@

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise by the directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to
allot, issue or otherwise deal with any unissued shares in the capital of the Company
and to make or grant offers, agreements and/or options which may require the

exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in addition to any other authorization
given to the Directors and shall authorise the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements and/or options which may

require the exercise of such power after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of unissued shares in the capital of the Company
which may be allotted, issued or otherwise dealt with by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period pursuant to paragraph (i) above, otherwise than
pursuant to a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined) or the exercise of subscription
rights attaching to any warrants issued by the Company, shall not exceed the
aggregate of 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of shares in the capital of the
Company in issue as enlarged by the Rights Shares (as the term is defined in
Resolution Number 1 as set out in the notice convening this meeting (of which this
Resolution forms part)) and the Bonus Shares (as the term is defined in Resolution
Number 1 as set out in the notice convening this meeting (of which this Resolution
forms part)) to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Proposed Rights Issue (as the
term is defined in Resolution Number 1 as set out in the notice convening this
meeting (of which this Resolution forms part)) or the aggregate nominal value of the
share capital of the Company in issue on the date of the passing of this Resolution
Number 3 in the event the Proposed Rights Issue lapsed;

for the purpose of this Resolution:-

(a) “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest ofi—

(1) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(2) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting
of the Company is required by law or the bye-laws of the Company to be
held; and
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(3) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this resolution by

an-ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company in general

meeting; and

(b) “Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the capital of the Company open for

a period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares in the

capital of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members on a

fixed record date in proportion to their holdings of shares (subject to such

exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem

necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to

any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any

recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong

Kong).”

By order of the Board

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Phyllis NG
Compary Secretary

Hong Kong, 14 August 2003

Registered office:
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

Principal office in Hong Kong:
10th Floor, Block A

Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

Notes:

(1)  Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the special general meeting is entitled to appoint

one or more proxies to attend and subject to the provisions of the bye-laws of the Company, vote instead of

him. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

— 56—




NOTICE OF THE SGM

@

3)

)

&)

In order to be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under
which it is signed or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited with the principal office of the
Company at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong in accordance with the instructions printed thereon as soon as possible but in any

event not less than 48 hours before the time of the special general meeting, or any adjournment thereof.

Where there are joint registered holders of any Shares, any one of such persons may vote at the special general
meeting, either personally or by proxy, in respect of Shares as if he/she were solely entitled thereto, but if
more than one of such joint holders be present at the special general meeting personally or by proxy, that one
of the said person so present whose name stands first on the register of members of the Company in respect of

such Shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.
The delivering of an instrument appointing a proxy shall not preclude a member of the Company from
attending and voting in person at the meeting or on the poll concerned and, in such event, the instrument

appointing a proxy shall be deemed to be revoked.

A form of proxy for use in connection with the special general meeting is enclosed.
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THIS PROSPECTUS IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt about this prospectus or as to the action to be taken, you should consult your licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor,
professional accountant or other professional adviser.

1f you have sold or transferred all your shares in WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED, you should at once hand this prospectus to the purchaser(s) or
transferee(s) or to the licensed securities dealer, the bank, or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission to the purchaser(s) or
transferee(s).

Dealings in the shares of the Company may be settled through the Central Clearing and Settlement System (“*CCASS”) and vou should consult your licensed
securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other professional adviser for details of those settlement arrangements and how such
arrangements may affect your rights and interests.

A copy of this prospectus, together with copies of the provisional allotment letter and the form of application for excess Rights Shares, have been registered with
the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong as required by Section 342C of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong). A copy of this
prospectus. together with copies of the provisional atlotment letter and the form of application for excess Rights Shares, have been filed with the Registrar of
Companies in Bermuda in accordance with the Companies Act 198] of Bermuda. The Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong, the Registrar of Companies in
Bermuda and the Securities and Futures Commission take no responsibility as to the contents of any of the documents referred to above.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (*HKSCC™) take no responsibility for
the contents of this prospectus, the provisicnal allotment letter or the form of application for excess Rights Shares, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this
praspectus, the provisional allotment letter or the form of application for excess Rights Shares.

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

RIGHTS ISSUE
OF NOT LESS THAN 340,946,820 RIGHTS SHARES OF HK$0.10 EACH
AT HK$0.10 PER RIGHTS SHARE
ON THE BASIS OF TWO RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FIVE EXISTING SHARES
HELD ON THE RECORD DATE WITH THE BONUS SHARES ISSUE
ON THE BASIS OF THREE BONUS SHARES
FOR EVERY FULLY PAID RIGHTS SHARE

Financial adviser to WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

Kingsway Capital Limited

It should be noted that the Underwriters may terminate their obligations set out in the Underwriting Agreement by notice in writing given by Kingsway
SW Securities (for itself and on behalf of the other Underwriter) to the Company at any time if, prior to 5:00 p.m. on the third Business Day after the date
on which the latest time for acceptance of the Rights Shares falls, which is expected to be Monday, 22 September 2003, there shall develop, occur, exist or
come into effect: (a) any new law or regulation or any change in existing laws or regulations or any change in the interpretation or application thereof by
any court or other competent authority in Hong Kong or any other place in which any member of the Group conducts or carries on business; or (b) any
change in, or any event or series of events resulting or likely to result in any change in, local, national or international financial, political, military,
industrial, econemic, currency or (whether or not sui generis with any of the foregoing) market conditions; or (c) any change in the conditions of local,
national or international securities markets (including but without limitation, the imiposition of any moratorium, suspension or material restriction an
trading in securities generally on the Stock Exchange due to exceptional financial circumstances or otherwise), which: (1) has or will have a material
adverse effect on the Company or the Group or the Rights Issue; or (2) has or will have a material adverse effect on the success of the Rights Issuve or the
level of Rights Shares taken up; or (3) makes it inadvisable or inexpedient for the Company to proceed with the Rights Issue. Accordingly, if the
Underwriters exercise their rights to terminate the Underwriting Agreement, the Rights Issue will not proceed. This means that any persons contemplating
selling or purchasing Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the peried in which they may be traded on the Stock Exchange, which is expected to be
from Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to Thursday, 11 September 2003, bear the risk that the Rights Issue may not proceed. .

Any shareholders or other persons contemplating selling or purchasing Shares and/or Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the period when the
conditions to which the Rights Issue is subject remain unfulfilled or during which the Underwriters have the right to terminate their obligations for force
majeure events or otherwise and who are in any doubt about their position are recommended to consult their professional advisers.

Subject to the granting of the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms and the Bonus Shares on the Stock
Exchange, and subject to compliance with the stock admission requirements of HKSCC, the Rights Shares in their nil-paid and fuily-paid forms and the Bonus
Shares will be accepted as eligible securities by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and settlement in CCASS with effect from the respective commencement dates of
dealings in the Rights Shares in their nil-paid and fully-paid forms and the Bonus Shares, or such other dates as determined by HKSCC. Settlement of transactions
between participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading day is required to take place in CCASS on the second trading day thereafter. All activities under
CCASS are subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures in effect from time to time.

No provisional allotment of Rights Shares has been made to Shareholders with addresses outside Hong Kong on the register of members of the Company on 1
September 2003, being the record date, being the Non-Qualifying Shareholders.

The latest time for acceptance and payment for the Rights Shares is 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September 2003. The procedure for acceptance and/or transfer of
the Rights Shares is set out on pages {4 to 15 of this prospectus.

1 September 2003
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FORCE MAJEURE

1t should be noted that the Underwriters may terminate their obligations set out in

the Underwriting Agreement by notice in writing given by Kingsway SW Securities (for
itself and on behalf of the other Underwriter) to the Company at any time if, prior to 5:00

p-m. on the third Business Day after the date on which the latest time for acceptance of
the Rights Shares falls, which is expected to be Monday, 22 September 2003, there shall
develop, occur, exist or come into effect:

(a)

(b)

(©

which:

(1)

(2)

3

any new law or regulation or any change in existing laws or regulations or any
change in the interpretation or application thereof by any court or other
competent authority in Hong Kong or any other place in which any member of
the Group conducts or carries on business; or

any change in, or any event or series of events resulting or likely to result in any
change in, local, national or international financial, political, military, industrial,
economic, currency or (whether or not sui generis with any of the foregoing)
market conditions; or

any change in the conditions of local, national or international securities
markets (including but without limitation, the imposition of any meratorium,
suspension or material restriction on trading in securities generally on the Stock
Exchange due to exceptional financial circumstances or otherwise),

has or will have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Group or the
Rights Issue; or

has or will have a material adverse effect on the success of the Rights Issue or
the level of Rights Shares taken up; or

makes it inadvisable or inexpedient for the Company to proceed with the Rights
Issue.

Accordingly, if the Underwriters exercise their rights to terminate the Underwriting

Agreement, the Rights Issue will not proceed. This means that any persons contemplating

selling or purchasing Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the period in which they

may be traded on the Stock Exchange, which is expected to be from Wednesday, 3
September 2003 to Thursday, 11 September 2003, bear the risk that the Rights Issue may
not proceed.




SUMMARY OF THE TERMS OF THE RIGHTS ISSUE AND
THE BONUS SHARES ISSUE

The following information is derived from, and should be read in conjunction with, the
full text of this prospectus.

Number of Shares in issue (Note) ... ... 852,367,051 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date

Basis of the Rights Issue ............. two Rights Shares for every five existing
’ Shares held on the Record Date

Basis of issue of Bonus Shares ........ three Bonus Shares for every
fully-paid Rights Share

Number of Rights Sharesto........... not less than 340,946,820 Rights Shares
be issued (Note)

Number of Bonus Sharesto........... not less than 1,022,840,460 Bonus Shares
be issued (Note)

Amount to beraised by............... approximately HK$34.1 million
the Rights Issue before expenses
Right of excess applications. .......... Qualifying Shareholders will be

entitled to apply for any unsold entitlements
of the Non-Qualifying Shareholders and
any Rights Shares provisionally allotted

but not accepted or otherwise subscribed
for by transferees of nil-paid Rights Shares

Non-Qualifying Shareholders ......... Arrangements will be made for Rights
Shares which would otherwise have
been provisionally allotted to the
Non-Qualifying Shareholders to be
sold in the market in their nil-paid form
as soon as practicable after dealings in
the nil-paid Rights Shares commence,
if a premium (net of expenses) ¢an be obtained.
The proceeds of such sale, less expenses, of
HK$100 or more will be paid pro rata to the
Non-Qualifying Shareholders. The Company
will retain individual amounts of less than HK$100




SUMMARY OF THE TERMDS OF 1THE RIGHTS IDSUE AND
THE BONUS SHARES ISSUE

Note: As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are outstanding Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
171,676,201 Shares. Amongst the Share Option holders, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Ms.
Siew Yit HOH, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, Mr. Raymond Che
Min LEE and Mr. Boon Seng TAN, all of whom are Directors or their associates, in aggregate, are entitled to
subscribe for 94,600,731 Shares pursuant to the exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the respective
Share Options, have given Irrevocable Undertakings to the Company and the Underwriters not to exercise the
subscription rights attaching to their respective Share Options on or before the Acceptance Date.

If the remaining outstanding Share Options are exercised in full on or before the Record Date, a further
30,830,188 Rights Shares and a further 92,490,564 Bonus Shares will be issued and allotted under the Rights
Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.




EXPECTED TIMETABLE

2003

Record Date . ... .. Monday, 1 September
Despatch of the Rights Issue Documents ........................... Monday, | September
Register of membersre-opens ......... ... i Tuesday, 2 September
First day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares ................ ... Wednesday, 3 September
Latest time for splitting nil-paid Rights Shares ........... 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 8 September
Last day of dealings in nil-paid Rights Shares ..................... Thursday, 11 September
Latest time for payment for and

acceptance of Rights Shares ............... ... ... 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September
Rights Issue expected to become unconditional .......... 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 22 September
Announcement of results of acceptance of the Rights Issue ........... Tuesday, 23 September
Despatch of refund cheques in respect of wholly or

partially unsuccessful applications for excess .

Rights Shares ....... .. ... ... ... . .. ... ... e Tuesday, 23 September
Certificates for fully-paid Rights Shares and

Bonus Shares expected to be despatched on or before ............. Tuesday, 23 September
First day of dealings in the fully-paid Rights Shares and

the Bonus Shares ......... ... . . e Thursday, 25 September




DEFINITIONS

In this prospectus, the following expressions have the meanings respectively set opposite

them unless the context otherwise requires:

“Acceptance Date”

“Announcement”

“associate(s)”
“Board”

“Bonus Shares”

“Bonus Shares Issue”

“Business Day”

“CCASS”

“Code”

“Company”

“Companies Act”

Wednesday, 17 September 2003, or such other date as the
Underwriters may agree in writing with the Company as

the latest date for acceptance of, and payment for, the
Rights Shares

the announcement made by the Company dated 24 July
2003, in relation to the proposed Rights Issue with
Bonus Shares Issue

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules
board of Directors

not less than 1,022,840,460 new Shares to be allotted
and issued by way of bonus to the first registered holders
of the fully-paid Rights Shares on the basis of three
Shares (credited as fully-paid) for every fully-paid
Rights Share

the issue of Bonus Shares to the first registered holders
of the Rights Shares, credited as fully paid, on the basis
of three Bonus Shares for every fully paid Rights Share

any day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the
business of dealing in securities

the Central Clearing and Settlement System, established
and operated by HKSCC

the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and

" Share Repurchases

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED, an exempted
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
and the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended)




DEFINITIONS

“Controlling Shareholders”

“Director(s)”

“EAF(S)”

“General Mandate”

“Group”

“Hong Kong”

“HKSCC”

“Irrevocable Undertakings”™

“Issue Price”

“Kingsway Capital”

“Kingsway SW Securities”

Modern Orbit, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Ms. Kam Har
YUE, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE and Fisherman Enterprises
Inc. together with their respective associates

director(s) of the Company, including the executive
directors, non-executive director and independent non-

executive directors
application form(s) for excess Rights Shares

the general mandate granted to the Directors at the SGM,
for the 1ssue and allotment of such number of Shares, as
representing not more than 20% of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by the Rights Shares
and the Bonus Shares;

the Company and its subsidiaries

The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
PRC

Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited

the irrevocable undertakings given by each of Modern
Orbit, Fisherman Enterprises Inc., Mr. Wing Sum LEE,
Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chuﬁg SUEN, Mr.
Raymond Cho Min LEE, Mr. Boon Seng TAN and Ms.
Siew Yit HOH to the Company and the Underwriters in
respect of their Shares and/or outstanding Share Options

the price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share

Kingsway Capital Limited, a deemed Licensed
Corporation, financial adviser to the Company in relation
to the Rights Issue and a fellow subsidiary of Kingsway
SW Securities

Kingsway SW Securities Limited, a deemed Licensed
Corporation, one of the Underwriters of the Rights Issue
and a fellow subsidiary of Kingsway Capital




DEFINITIONS

“Last Trading Day”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Licensed Corporation”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Modern Orbit”

“Non-Qualifying Shareholder(s)”

“PAL(s)”

“PRC”

“Qualifying Shareholder(s)”

“Record Date”

Friday, 18 July 2003 being the last trading day before the
suspension of the trading of the Shares on the Stock

Exchange pending the publication of the Announcement
on Friday, 25 July 2003

Tuesday, 26 August 2003, being the latest practicable
date prior to the printing of this prospectus for the
purpose of ascertaining certain information for inclusion

in this prospectus

a party falling within the definition of “licensed
corporation” in the SFO

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange

The Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Modern Orbit Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and holds 450,513,734 Shares,
representing approximately 52.86% of the total issued
share capital of the Company as at the Latest Practicable
Date and one of the Underwriters of the Rights Issue

Shareholder(s) other than the Qualifying Shareholders

provisional allotment letter(s) in respect of the Rights
Issue

The People’s Republic of China which for the purpose of
this prospectus shall exclude Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan -

Shareholder(s) whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on the
Record Date and whose address shown in the register of
members of the Company on that date is in Hong Kong

the date by reference to which entitlements to the Rights
Issue are to be determined, which is Monday, 1 September
2003




DEFINHITONDS

“Rights Issue”

“Rights Issue Documents”

“Rights Share(s)”

“SFO”

“SGM”

“Share(s)”

“Share Options”

“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”

“Underwriters”

E3]

“Underwriting Agreement

“HK$”

“%)’

the proposed issue of the Rights Shares with Bonus
Shares at a price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share on the
terms and conditions described in the Rights Issue
Documents

this prospectus, the PALs and EAFs

not less than 340,946,820 new shares to be allotted and
issued under the Rights Issue

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

the special general meeting- of the Company held at 9:30
a.m. at Crystal Room, 3rd Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen
Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at which ordinary resolutions
for the Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares Issue, Bonus
Shares Issue and the granting of General Mandate were
approved

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company

the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 22
June 1991, 28 June 2001 and 30 May 2002, respectively

holder(s) of Share(s)
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Modern Orbit and Kingsway SW Securities, whose
obligations shall be several (and not joint or joint and
several)

the agreement dated 18 July 2003 entered into between
the Company and the Underwriters in relation to the
underwriting and certain other arrangements in respect
of the Rights Issue

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

per cent.
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WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Executive Directors: Registered office:
Wing Sum LEE (Honorary Chairman) Cedar House
Richard Man Fai LEE 41 Cedar Avenue

(Executive Chairman & Chief Executive Qfficer) Hamilton HM12
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN ‘ Bermuda

Jeff Man Bun LEE
Principal office in Hong Kong:

Non-executive Director: ‘ 10th Floor, Block A

Kam Har YUE Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road

Independent non-executive Directors: Kwai Chung, New Territories

Boon Seng TAN Hong Kong

Raymond Cho Min LEE

1 September 2003
To the Qualifving Shareholders and, for information only, Non-Qualifying Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

RIGHTS ISSUE
OF NOT LESS THAN 340,946,820 RIGHTS SHARES OF HK$0.10 EACH
AT HK$0.10 PER RIGHTS SHARE
ON THE BASIS OF TWO RIGHTS SHARES FOR EVERY FIVE SHARES
HELD ON THE RECORD DATE WITH THE BONUS SHARES ISSUE
ON THE BASIS OF THREE BONUS SHARES
FOR EVERY FULLY PAID RIGHTS SHARE

INTRODUCTION

On 24 July 2003, the Board announced that, subject to the fulfilments of the conditions of
the Rights Issue as mentioned in the section headed “Conditions of the Rights Issue” below, the
- Company will raise approximately HK$34.1 million, before expenses, by way of a rights issue
of not less than 340,946,820 Rights Shares at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per Rights
Share, on the basis of two Rights Shares for every five existing Shares held by a Qualifying
Shareholder on the Record Date, and will issue bonus shares by way of three Bonus Shares for
every fully-paid Rights Share.

—9._-
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On 1 September 2003, resolutions in respect of the Rights Issue with Bonus Shares Issue,
the Bonus Shares Issue and the granting of the General Mandate were approved at the SGM.

Kingsway Capital has been appointed as the financial adviser to the Company and
Kingsway SW Securities has been appointed as one of the Underwriters of the Rights Issue.
Both Kingsway Capital and Kingsway SW Securities are independent third parties not
connected with the directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries or any of their respective associates.

The purpose of this prospectus is to give you further information of the Rights Issue with
the Bonus Share Issue, including information on dealings and transfer of Rights Shares in their
nil-patd form, the procedure for acceptance of provisional allotment of Rights Shares and
application for excess Rights Shares, certain financial information and other information of the

Group.
RIGHTS ISSUE
Issue statistics
Basis of the Rights Issue :  two Rights Shares for every five existing Shares held on

the Record Date, issued with three Bonus Shares for
every fully paid Rights Share

Number of Shares inissue : 852,367,051 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date
Number of Rights Shares :  not less than 340,946,820 Rights Shares
Subscription price for : HKS$0.10 per Rights Share

Rights Shares

Number of Bonus Shares . not less than 1,022,840,460 Shares

Note: As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are outstanding Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate of
171,676,201 Shares. Amongst the Share Option holders, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man Fai
LEE, Ms. Siew Yit HOH, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN,
Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE and Mr. Boon Seng TAN, all of whom are Directors or their associates, in
aggregate, are entitled to subscribe for 94,600,731 Shares pursuant to the exercise of the subscription
rights attaching to the respective Share Options, have given Irrevocable Undertakings to the Company
and the Underwriters not to exercise the subscription rights attaching to their respective Share Options
on or before the Acceptance Date,

If the remaining outstanding Share Options are exercised in full on or before the Record Date, a

further 30,830,188 Rights Shares and a further 92,490,564 Bonus Shares will be issued under the
Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.

-10-
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Qualifying Shareholders

The Company will send together with this prospectus, PALs and EAFs to the Qualifying
Shareholders only.

To qualify for the Rights Issue, a Shareholder must:
. be registered as a member of the Company on the Record Date; and

. have an address in Hong Kong on the register of members of the Company on the
Record Date.

Issue Price for the Rights Shares
The Issue Price of HK$0.10 per Rights Share will be payable in full when a Qualifying

Shareholder accepts the relevant provisional allotment of Rights Shares or applies for excess
Rights Shares or when a transferee of nil-paid Rights Shares applies for the Rights Shares.

—11-




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

Taking into account the Bonus Shares being issued with the fully-paid Rights Shares, the
effective price for each Rights Share is HK$0.025 which represents:

(i)  a discount of about 62.69% to the closing price of HK$0.067 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the Last Trading Day;

(il)  a discount of about 61.77% to the average closing price of HK$0.0654 per Share for
the last 10 trading days up to and including the Last Trading Day;

(iii) a discount of about 39.02% to the theoretical ex-rights price of approximately
HK$0.041 per Share based on the closing price of HK$0.067 per Share on the Last
Trading Day;

(iv) a discount of about 93.83% to the net asset value per share of HK$0.405 (based on
the Company’s audited consolidated net asset value of approximately
HK$345,368,000 as at 31 December 2002);

(v) adiscount of about 41.86% to the closing price of HK$0.043 per Share as quoted
on the Stock Exchange on the Latest Practicable Date;

(vi) a discount of about 30.56% to the average closing price of HK$0.036 per Share for
the last 10 trading days up to and including the Latest Practicable Date; and

(vil) a discount of about 85.29% to the unaudited pro forma adjusted consolidated net
tangible asset value per Share of HK$0.170 immediately after the Rights Issue as
set out in the section headed “Statement of unaudited adjusted pro forma
consolidated net tangible asset value of the Group” in Appendix I to this prospectus.

The Issue Price was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the Company and
the Underwriters. The Directors consider the terms of the Rights Issue to be fair and reasonable
and in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

—12 -
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Basis of provisional.allotment

A Qualifying Shareholder will be provisionally allotted with two Rights Shares for every
five existing Shares held on the Record Date at the subscription price of HK$0.10 per Rights
Share, payable in full on acceptance.

In conjunction with the Rights Issue, the Company proposes to issue Bonus Shares to the
first registered holders of fully-paid Rights Shares on the basis of three Bonus Shares for every
fully paid Rights Share subscribed for. The Rights Issue is not available to Non-Qualifying
Shareholders. :

Status of the Rights Shares and the Bonus Shares

The Rights Shares (when issued and fully paid) and the Bonus Shares (when issued and
credited as fully-paid) will rank pari passu with the then existing Shares in all respects. Holders
of fully-paid Rights Shares and Bonus Shares will be entitled to receive all future dividends
and distributions which are declared, made or paid after the date of allotment and issue of the
Rights Shares and the Bonus Shares.

Share certificates for the Rights Shares and the Bonus Shares

Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions of the Rights Issue, certificates for all fully
paid Rights Shares and Bonus Shares are expected to be posted on or about Tuesday, 23
September 2003 to those who have accepted and (where applicable) applied for, and paid for,
the Rights Shares at their own risk.

Rights of Non-Qualifying Shareholders

The Rights Issue Documents have not been registered or filed under the applicable
securities legislation of any jurisdictions other than Hong Kong and Bermuda. As the Directors
are of the view that the offer of Rights Issue to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders would or
might, in the absence of compliance with registration or other special formalities in such other
jurisdictions, be unlawful or impracticable. Therefore, no Rights Shares will be offered to the
Non-Qualifying Shareholders. The Company will send this prospectus to the Non-Qualifying
Shareholders for their information only and will not send provisional allotment letters or
application forms for excess Rights Shares to the Non-Qualifying Shareholders. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, the Non-Qualifying Shareholders were interested in an aggregate of
21,987 Shares, representing approximately 0.0026% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

— 13-
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Procedure for acceptance and/or transfer of the Rights Shares

Qualifying Shareholders will find enclosed with this prospectus a PAL which entitles
Qualifying Shareholders to take up the number of Rights Shares shown therein. If any
Qualifying shareholder wishes to exercise his rights to take up all the Rights Shares
specified in the PAL, he will need to lodge the PAL in accordance with the instructions
printed thereon, together with a remittance for the full amount payable on acceptance,
with the branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars
Limited, at G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by
not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September 2003. All remittances must be made
by cheques or banker’s cashier orders in Hong Kong dollars. Cheques must be drawn on
an account with, and banker’s cashier orders must be issued by, a registered bank in Hong
Kong and made payable to “WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - Rights Issue
Account” and crossed “Account Payee Only”.

It should be noted that unless the PAL is duly completed, together with the
appropriate remittance, and lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company in
Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited, at G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday, 17
September 2003 whether by the original allottee or any person to whom the rights have
been validly transferred, the relevant provisional allotment and all rights thereunder will
be deemed to have been declined and will be cancelled.

If any Qualifying Shareholder wishes to accept only part of his provisional allotment and/
or to transfer a part of his right to subscribe for the Rights Shares provisionally allotted to him
thereunder, or to transfer his rights to more than one person, the entire PAL must be
surrendered and lodged for cancellation by not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 8 September
2003 at the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited, at
G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong which will cancel
the original PAL and issue new PALs, in the denominations required.

The PAL contains further information regarding the procedures to be followed for
acceptance and/or transfer of the whole or part of your provisional allotment.

All cheques and banker’s cashier orders will be presented for payment following receipt
and all interest earned on such monies will be retained for the benefit of the Company.
Completion and lodgement of a PAL together with a cheque or banker’s cashier order in
payment for the Rights Shares accepted will constitute a warranty by the subscriber that the
cheque or banker’s cashier order will be honoured on first presentation. Without prejudice to its
rights in respect thereof (but subject to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement), the
Company reserves the right to reject any PAL in respect of which the accompanying cheque or
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banker’s cashier order is dishonoured on first presentation and, in any event, the relevant
provisional allotment and all rights thereunder will be deemed to have been declined and will
be cancelled and will be available for application on EAFs.

If the conditions of the Rights Issue as set out in the subsection “Conditions of the Rights
Issue” are not fulfilled, the monies received in respect of applications for Rights Shares will be
returned to the Qualifying Shareholders or such other persons to whom the nil-paid Rights
Shares shall have been validly transferred without interest by means of cheques déspatched n
the ordinary post at the risk of such Qualifying Sharcholders or such other persons on or before
Tuesday, 23 September 2003.

Application for excess Rights Shares

Qualifying Shareholders are entitled to apply for any unsold entitlements of the Non-
Qualifying Shareholders and any Rights Shares provisionally allotted but not accepted or
otherwise subscribed for by transferees of nil-paid Rights Shares. The fully-paid Rights Shares
issued pursuant to excess applications will also be issued with Bonus Shares on the basis of 3
Bonus Shares for every fully-paid Rights Share.

Applications can be made by completing the EAFs and lodging the same with a separate
remittance for the excess Rights Shares being applied for. The Directors will allocate the
excess Rights Shares at their discretion, but on a fair and reasonable basis, and will give
preference to topping-up odd lots to whole board lots.

If any Qualifying Shareholder wishes to apply for any Rights Shares in addition to
his provisional allotment under the Rights Issue, he must complete and sign the enclosed
EAF as indicated therein and lodge it, together with a separate remittance for the amount
payable on application in respect of the excess Rights Shares applied for, with the branch
share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong, Standard Registrars Limited, at G/F., BEA
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong by not later than 4:00
p.m. on Wednesday, 17 September 2003. All remittances must be made by cheques or
banker’s cashier orders in Hong Kong dollars. Cheques must be drawn on an account
with, and banker’s cashier orders must be issued by, a registered bank in Hong Kong and
made payable to “WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - Excess Application
Account” and crossed “Account Payee Only”.

If no excess Rights Shares are allotted to such Qualifying Shareholders, it is expected that
the amounts tendered on such applications will be refunded to them in full without interest by
means of cheques despatched in the ordinary post at their own risks on or before Tuesday, 23
September 2003. If the numbers of excess Rights Shares allotted to them are less than that
applied for, it is expected that the surplus application monies will be refunded to them without
interest by means of cheques despatched in the ordinary post at their own risks on or before
Tuesday, 23 September 2003.
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All cheques and banker’s cashier orders will be presented for payment following receipt
and all interest earned on such monies will be retained for the benefit of the Company.
Completion and lodgement of an EAF together with a cheque or banker’s cashier order in
payment for the excess Rights Shares applied for will constitute a warranty by the applicant
that the cheque or banker’s cashier order will be honoured on first presentation. Without
prejudice to its rights in respect thereof (but subject to the terms of the Underwriting
Agreement), the Company reserves the right to reject any EAF in respect of which the
accompanying cheque or banker‘s cashier order is dishonoured on first presentation.

An EAF is for use only by the Qualifying Shareholders to whom it is addressed and is not
transferable. All documents, including cheques, will be sent by ordinary post at the risk of the
persons entitled thereto to their registered addresses.

If the conditions of the Rights Issue as set out in the subsection “Conditions of the Rights
Issue” are not fulfilled, the monies received in respect of applications for excess Rights Shares
will be returned to the applicantsin full without interest by means of cheques despatched in the
ordinary post at the risk of such applicants on or before Tuesday, 23 September 2003.

Fractions of Rights Shares

Fractional entitlements to the Rights Shares will not be issued but will be aggregated and
sold for the benefit of the Company.

Listings and dealings

The Company will apply to the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange for the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares {in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms)
and the Bonus Shares.

No part of the share capital of the Company is listed or dealt in on any stock exchange
other than the Stock Exchange and no application is being made or is currently proposed or
sought for the Shares to be listed or dealt in on any other stock exchange.

Subject to the granting of listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares (in both
their nil-paid and fully-paid forms) and the Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchange, and subject
to compliance with the stock admission requirements of HKSCC, the Rights Shares (in both
their nil-paid and fully-paid forms) and the Bonus Shares will be accepted as eligible securities
by HKSCC for deposit, clearance and settlement in CCASS with effect from the commencement
dates of dealings in the Rights Shares (in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms) and the
Bonus Shares on the Stock Exchange or such other dates as determined by HKSCC. Settlement
of transactions between participants of the Stock Exchange on any trading day is required to
take place in CCASS on the second trading day thereafter. All activities under CCASS are
subject to the General Rules of CCASS and CCASS Operational Procedures in effect from time
to time.
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Dealings in the Rights Shares (in both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms} and the Bonus
Shares, registered in the branch register of members of the Company in Hong Kong, will be
subject tothe payment of stamp duty in Hong Kong.

For the purpose of trading on the Stock Exchange, a board lot for the Rights Shares (in
both their nil-paid and fully-paid forms) and for the Bonus Shares will be 2,000 Shares, which
is the same as the board lot size for the existing Shares trading on the Stock Exchange.

The first day of dealings in the Rights Shares in their fully-patd form is expected to be on
Thursday, 25 September 2003.

UNDERWRITING ARRANGEMENT
Underwriting Agreement
Date : 18 July 2003

Underwriters : (1) Modern Orbit
(2) Kingsway SW Securities

No. of Rights Shares
underwritten : not less than 143,503,116 Rights Shares

Commission : 2.5% of the total Issue Price of the Rights Shares underwritten
by the Underwriters

Underwriting Fee : an additional lump sum in the amount of HK$325,000 payable
to Kingsway SW Securities

~ The Underwriters have fully underwritten alf of the Rights Shares to be issued under the
Rights Issue on a several basis not less than 143,503,116 Rights Shares in aggregate, other than
the 197,443,704 Rights Shares which pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertakings are to be taken
up by the Controlling Shareholders and their associates and Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, an
executive Director. Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, Modern Orbit and Kingsway SW
Securities will underwrite on a several basis in the proportion of 65.16% and 34.84% of the
total unsubscribed Rights Shares, respectively. Therefore, on the basis of the abovementioned
proportion, each of Modern Orbit and Kingsway SW Securities Limited will underwrite not
less than 93,506,630 Rights Shares and 49,996,486 Rights Shares severally.
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Irrevocable Undertakings

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Controlling Shareholders together with their
respective associates are interested in 493,427,762 Shares, representing approximately 57.89%
of the issued share capital of the Company and have irrevocably undertaken to the Company
and the Underwriters to take up their provisional entitlements under the Rights Issue for an
aggregate of 197,371,104 Rights Shares. Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, an executive Director,
is interested in 181,500 Shares, representing approximately 0.02% of the issued share capital of
the Company has irrevocably undertaken to the Company and the Underwriters to take up his
provisional allotment of 72,600 Rights Shares.

The Directors and their associates, who in aggregate hold 94,600,731 Share Options, have
irrevocably undertaken not to exercise the subscription rights attaching to the Share Options
pursuant to the Irrevocable Undertakings on or before the latest time for acceptance and
payment of the Rights Shares under the Rights Issue.

Termination of the Underwriting Agreement

The Underwriters may terminate their obligations set out in the Underwriting Agreement
by notice in writing given by Kingsway SW Securities (for itself and on behalf of the other
Underwriters) to the Company at any time if, prior to 5:00 p.m. on the third Business Day after
the date on which the latest time for acceptance of the Rights Shares falls, which is expected to
be Monday, 22 September 2003, there shalil develop, occur, exist or come into effect:

(a) any new law or regulation or any change in existing laws or regulations or any
change in the interpretation or application thereof by any court or other competent
authority in Hong Kong or any other place in which any member of the Group

conducts or carries on business; or

(b) any change in, or any event or series of events resulting or likely to result in any
change in, local, national or international financial, political, military, industrial,
economic, currency or (whether or not sui generis with any of the foregoing) market

conditions; or

(c) any change in the conditions of local, national or international securities markets
(including but without limitation, the imposition of any moratorium, suspension or
material restriction on trading in securities generally on the Stock Exchange due to
exceptional financial circumstances or otherwise),

‘which:

(1) has or will have a material adverse effect on the Company or the Group or the Rights
Issue; or
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(2) has or will have a material adverse effect on the success of the Rights Issue or the
level of Rights Shares taken up; or

(3) makes it inadvisable or inexpedient for the Company to proceed with the Rights
Tssue.

Save for all reasonable costs, charges and expenses which may be incurred in connection
with the Rights Issue, upon the giving of notice of termination, all obligations of the
Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement shall cease and no party shall have any claim
against any other parties in respect of any matter or thing arising out of or in connection with
the Underwriting Agreement. If the Underwriters exercise such right, the Rights Issue will not
proceed.

Conditions of the Rights Issue

The Rights Issue is conditional upon, amongst other things, each of the following
conditions being fulfilled:

1. the passing at the SGM of the resolutions to be proposed for the approval by the
Shareholders, by way of an ordinary resolution, of the Rights Issue with the Bonus
Shares Issue;

2. the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting, or agreeing to grant, the
listing of, and permission to deal in, the Rights Shares, in their nil-paid and fully-
paid forms, and granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Bonus Shares
by not later than the first Business Day after the posting date of this prospectus;

3. the registration of all relevant documents in relation to the Rights Issue by the
Company with the Registrar of Companies in Hong Kong, and the filing of the same
with the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda, on or prior to the posting date of this
prospectus;

4. compliance of the Irrevocable Undertakings by Modern Orbit, Fisherman Enterprises
Inc. and the Directors and their respective associates; and

5. the obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement becoming

unconditional and the Underwriting Agreement not being terminated in accordance
with its terms or otherwise.
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WARNING OF THE RISKS OF DEALING IN SHARES AND RIGHTS SHARES

It should be noted that the Underwriting Agreement contains provisions granting the
Underwriters the right to terminate its obligations on the occurrence of certain force
majeure events. Please refer to the paragraph headed “Termination of the Underwriting
Agreement” for further details.

Dealings in the Rights Shares in their nil-paid form are expected to take place from
Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to Thursday, 11 September 2003 (both dates inclusive). If the
conditions of the Rights Issue are not fulfilled, the Rights Issue will not proceed.

Any Shareholders or other persons contemplating selling or purchasing Shares and/or
Rights Shares in their nil-paid form during the period in which they may be traded on the Stock
Exchange, which is expected to be from Wednesday, 3 September 2003 to Thursday, 11
September 2003 (both dates inclusive) who are in any doubt about their position are
recommended to consult their professional advisers. Any Shareholders or other persons dealing
in Shares up to the date on which all the conditions to which the Rights Issue is subject are
fulfilied and any persons dealing in the nil-paid Rights Shares during the period in which they
may be traded on the Stock Exchange will accordingly bear the risk that the Rights Issue may
not become unconditional or may not proceed.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in the import, marketing and distribution of air-
conditioning and refrigeration products, audio-visual equipment, car audio and electronic
products, motor vehicles and car accessories and other electronic and electrical products.

For the year ended 31 December 2002, the Group recorded a loss from operations of
approximately HK$9.06 million compared to a loss from operations of approximately
HK$76.48 million for the year 2001. The significant decrease in the amount of loss from
operations of approximately HK$67.42 million was mainly attributable to: (a) improvement in
cost control subsequent to the reorganisation of Group’s operating units which led to a
reduction of administrative expenses from approximately HK$140.18 million to approximately
HK$97.18 million; (b} no impairment loss was recognised in respect of intangible assets for the
financial year ended 31 December 2002; and (c) decrease in the amount of write-down resulted
from the revaluation of investment properties and other properties in 2002.

The cars and car accessories and air-conditioning marketing franchise business were the
major source of revenue for the Group and constituted approximately 68.8% of the Group’s
total sales in 2002. Turnover for most of the core businesses of the Group have remained stable
compared to the financial year 2001 except for the direct marketing business. Sales of the
Group’s chain of retail outlets “Mega Warehouse Outlets” jumped by approximately 84.3%, due
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to the opening of additional “Mega Warehouse Outlets” during the year of 2002. However, sales
by the motor group decreased by approximately 11.8% under the difficult market conditions in
the Hong Kong market.

The Group recorded an audited net profit attributable to Shareholders of approximately
HK$6.01 million compared to a net loss attributable to Shareholders of approximately
HK$99.51 million for the year 2001. This was mainly attributable to the exceptional profits
derived from the disposal or liquidation of subsidiaries of the Company in Singapore and
Malaysia (approximately HK$27.7 million) and an associate of the Group in PRC (approximately
HK$10.9 million), amounting to a total of approximately HK$38.6 million.

In 2002, the Group undertook a capital reorganisation to eliminate all the accumulated
losses, and a rights issue with a bonus issue mainly to raise fund for repayment of part of the
short-term indebtedness of the Group. Upon completion of the exercise, the financial position
of the Group has improved and its gearing ratio decreased from approximately 107.4% as at 31
December 2001 to approximately 61.9% as at 31 December 2002.

The details of the fund raising exercises undertaken by the Group during the two financial
years ended 31 December 2002 are set out below:’

(1) in January 2001, the Company raised approximately HK$500,000 by way of a private
placement of 5,000,000 Shares at HK$0.10 each, the proceeds were used as the
general working capital of the Group. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 17 January 2001; and

(ii) in early 2002, the Company raised approximately HK$49.3 million by way of a rights
issue. The net proceeds of approximately HK$46.8 million was used:

—  asto approximately HK$15 million to repay the amounts due to a subsidiary of
the Company; '

—  as to approximately HK$20 million to repay the bank loans;
— as to approximately HK$10 million to develop the Group’s franchise and
distribution business, specifically in the motor car business and air-conditioning

marketing franchises; and

—  as to remaining of approximately HK$1.8 million as additional working capital
of the Group.

For details, please refer to the announcement, circular and prospectus of the Company
dated 1 February 2002, 20 February 2002 and 15 March 2002, respectively.
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The Directors confirm that the fund raised from the previous fund raising exercises as
stated above have been fully utilised and applied in the manner as stated as the intended use of

proceeds in the various announcements.

The Group will continue to focus on the development of its air-conditioning and electrical
appliance marketing franchises business; direct marketing business; and motor car and

accessories distribution business.

The Directors believe that the air-conditioning products market will continue to be very
competitive, and they are of the view that the Hong Kong market will remain weak in 2003.
Although the Directors anticipate the PRC market to show a growth in demand, over-supply in
the PRC will exert downward pressure on prices and therefore profit margins. The Directors
believe that the accession of the PRC to the World Trade Organisation will offer more
favourable trading conditions for foreign enterprise including gradual reduction of import
tariffs and increased market and business opportunities. The Group will focus on the
commercial products sector of the PRC which provides higher margins due to the relatively
lesser competition because of the limited product ranges available from domestic produced
products.

The Group has actively engaged in the re-development of its direct marketing business by
opening six Mega Warehouse Outlets in different districts in Hong Xong in 2002 and has
successfully positioned itself as a significant retail chain stores operation with a total of nine
stores in Hong Kong. To differentiate the merchandising mix of Mega Warehouse from other
retail chain stores, it had successfully established a new merchandising channel to import audio
and video products directly from the PRC which were all sold at competitive prices. In 2003,
the Group will continue to expand its retail network; consolidate certain retail locations; offer a
wider range of product categories in order to maintain the growth and competitive edge against
other consumer electronic and electrical retail shops.

The Group is the sole distributor of the premier brand sports cars “Ferrari” and “Maserati”
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC. The Directors anticipate that the demand for luxury sports
cars in the PRC will continue to increase and plan to establish sales and service centres in key
strategic cities in the PRC including Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Dalian. The
Directors believe that the motor cars and accessories, distribution and servicing business will
generate significant revenue to the Group in the future.
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REASONS FOR THE RIGHTS ISSUE AND USE OF PROCEEDS

In view of the current market conditions; the current tight liquidity position of the Group
and the significant amount intended to be raised; the Directors consider that the Rights Issue
provides an opportunity for the Group to raise funds to improve its financial position and
capability to develop its franchise and distribution businesses. The proceeds of the Rights Issue
will also enhance the working capital and the net asset position of the Company as a whole and
therefore improve the financial gearing of the Group.

The estimated net proceeds of the Rights Issue (net of expenses and assuming none of the
outstanding Share Options is exercised on or before the Record Date) are approximately
HK$32.0 million. The Directors intend to apply such proceeds as follows:

. as to approximately HK$15.1 million to repay the outstanding amounts of a loan
advanced from a Director;

«  as to approximately HK$4.6 million to repay part of the outstanding amounts of a
loan advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a company wholly owned by a
Director;

*  as to approximately HKS35.0 million to repay part of the bank overdrafts of the
Group; and '

. as to approximately HK$7.3 million to provide additional working capital to the
Group.

To the extent that the net proceeds of the Rights Issue are not immediately used for the
above purposes, it is the present intention of the Directors that the net proceeds of the Rights
Issue will be placed on short-term deposit.

As at 30 June 2003, the outstanding balance of a loan advanced from Fisherman
Enterprises Inc. amounted to approximately HK$5.1 million which is unsecured. The term of
the loan advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc. commenced from 23 November 2001, and
has been fully utilised as the general working capital of the Group. Interest at the rate of
approximately 6% per annum (1% above the best lending rate) was charged for the loan

advanced from Fisherman Enterprises Inc.

As at 30 June 2003, the outstanding balance of a loan advanced from a Director amounted
to approximately HK$15.1 million. On 7 November 2002, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with a Director. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the Director agreed to make
available to the Company a term loan facility of up to HK$15 million for use as general
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working capital. The loan was drawn down in three tranches of HK$5 million, HK$7 million
and HKS$3 million, respectively in November 2002, December 2002 and January 2003. The loan
is unsecured and bears interest at 10% per annum, repayable in three instalments on or before
31 July 2003, 31 August 2003 and 30 September 2003, respectively. Full amount of the loan
was drawn down by the Company before 15 January 2003 and has been fully utilised as the
general working capital of the Group.

The Directors consider the repayment of the loans advanced from a Director and
Fisherman Enterprises Inc. and part of the bank overdrafts for an aggregate of approximately
HK$24.7 million could improve its financial gearing from approximately 61.9% before the
Rights Issue to approximately 50.6% immediately after the Rights Issue (based on the audited
financial information as at 31 December 2002) and the annual savings on interest expenses of
approximately HK$2.4 million would provide the Group with additional workiﬁg capital.

The Directors have considered a number of alternatives to raise funds for the Group, such
as the placing of new Shares and bank borrowings. In view of the unfavourable market
conditions, the recent economic climate and the higher gearing ratio that would result from
bank borrowings, the Directors consider that it is more prudent to finance the Group’s long
term growth with long term funding, preferably in the form of equity. In addition, raising funds
by way of a rights issue is preferred as it enables the Group to obtain additional resources
through capital contribution by existing Shareholders rather than private placement of new
Shares which would result in a dilution of existing Shareholders’ interests in the Company. As
the Rights Issue allows all Shareholders to maintain their respective pro-rata holdings in the
Company, the Directors consider that it is in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders
as a whole, to raise capital through the Rights Issue.

ODD-LOT SHAREHOLDERS AND ODD-LOT FACILITY ARRANGEMENT

Any Rights Shares to which Non-Qualifying Shareholders would otherwise have been
entitled and any Rights Shares arising from the aggregation of fractional entitlements to the
Rights Shares which, in each case, are not sold in the manner described in this prospectus and
any Rights Shares provisionally allotted and not accepted by the latest time for payment for and
acceptance of Rights Shares will be made available as excess Rights Shares for application by
the Qualifying Sharcholders. Preference will be given to those applications for excess Rights
Shares for the purposes of “topping-up” odd lots of Shares into board lots. The purpose of this
arrangement is to provide a mechanism whereby the Qualifying Shareholders can round up
their odd-lot holdings to whole board lots of multiples of 2,000 Shares.
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In order to alleviate the difficulties arising from the existence (if any) of odd lots of the
Shares as a result of the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue, the Company has agreed to
procure South China Securities Limited to stand in the market to provide matching services on
a best effort basis for the holders of odd lots of the Shares during the period from Thursday, 25
September 2003 to Friday, 24 October 2003 (both dates inclusive). Holders of odd lots of the
Shares who wish to dispose of the odd lots of Shares or to top up to board lots of 2,000 Shares,
may contact Mr. Francis Wu and Mr. Victor Chan of South China Securities Limited at 28/F,
Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Central, Hong Kong at telephone number (852) 2845
6636 during the period from Thursday, 25 September 2003 to Friday, 24 October 2003 (both
dates inclusive).

Shareholders should note that successful matching of sale and purchase of odd lots of
Shares traded on the Stock Exchange is not guaranteed.

ADJUSTMENTS TO THE EXERCISE PRICES OF THE SHARE OPTIONS
According to the respective terms of the Share Options, the exercise prices which

remained outstanding as at the Latest Practicable Date will be adjusted, upon the Rights Issue
with the Bonus Share Issue becoming unconditional, as follows:

Options

Adjusted exercise

Exercise price per price per Adjusted

Exercisable period Share before the Rights Share after the

Issue and the Bonus Rights Issue and the

Shares Issue Bonus Shares Issue

(HKS) (HKS)

28 August 1997 — 31 August 2003 1.4416 0.8854

19 February 1998 — 12 March 2004 0.5951 0.3655

24 July 1998 - 23 July 2004 0.2847 0.1749

[ February 2000 — 2{ March 2006 0.3786 0.2325

18 March 2000 - 22 March 2006 .0.8828 0.5422

5 November 2000 — 4 November 2006 0.3822 0.2347

6 March 2001 - 14 March 2007 0.2705 0.1661

29 June 2001 - 29 June 2007 0.2705 0.1661

14 September 2001 — 18 September 2007 0.2705 0.1661

30 September 2001 — 30 September 2007 0.2705 0.1661

23 December 2001 — 22 December 2007 0.2705 0.1661
4 June 2002 — 3 June 2008 0.1309 0.0804 (0.10*)
24 September 2002 — 23 September 2008 0.0909 0.0558 (0.10%)
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* The adjusted exercise prices of the Share Options are HK$0.0804 and HK$0.0558, respectively. As it is
not legally permissible to issue new Shares at below the nominal value of HK$0.10, the exercise prices
will be adjusted to HK$0.10, being the nominal value of a Share, upon the Rights Issue with the Bonus
Shares Issue becoming unconditional.

The computation of the above adjustments was in accordance with the respective terms of
the Share Options and found to be mathematically accurate by the auditors of the Company.

FURTHER INFORMATION

Your attention 1s drawn to the information set out in the appendices to this prospectus.

Yours faithfully,
By Order of the Board
WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
Richard Man Fai LEE
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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1. THREE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Set out below is a summary of the audited consolidated profit and loss accounts for each
of the three years ended 31 December 2002 and the audited consolidated balance sheets as
at 31 December 2000, 31 December 2001 and 31 December 2002 as extracted from the
Group’s audited reports of the Company for the relevant years.

Results
For the year ended 31 December
2002 2001 2000
HKS$°000 HKS$'000 HK3°000
Turnover 572,393 565,845 386,866
Cost of sales {432,458) (425,712) (280,861)
Gross profit 139,935 140,133 106,005
Other operating revenue 14,497 14,737 18,142
Distribution costs (60,569) (49,527) (54,583)
Investment income 388 149 5,543
Administrative expenses (97,182) (140,175) (115,138)
Deficit on revaluation of investment properties (130) (11,189) (8,412)
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of intangible assets - (20,008) -
Write-down of properties held
for sale to net realisable value (6,000) (10,600) -
Loss from operations (9,061) (76,480) (48,443)
Finance costs (10,481) (16,923) (18,195)
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill - (3,459) -
Net gain (loss) on disposal or liquidation
of subsidiaries 27,719 2,569 (282)
Gain on disposal of an associate 10,892 - -
Provision against account receivable - - (22,632)
Write-back of provision for amounts due
from associates - - 5,632
Share of results of associates (11,550) (4,005) 3,356
Profit (loss) before taxation 7,519 (98,298) (80,564)
Taxation (1,522) (1,689) (3,141)
Profit (loss) after taxation 5,997 (99,987) (83,705)
Minority interests 12 479 (1,750)
Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders 6,009 {99,508) (85,455)
Dividends Nil Nil Nil
Earnings (loss) per share — Basic 0.99 cents (7.07 cents) (6.08 cents)
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Assets and Liabilities

Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Investment securities

Finance lease receivable —
due after one year

Current assets

Inventories
Properties held for sale,
at net realisable value
Trade and other receivables
Finance lease receivable —
due within one year
Amounts due from associates
Amounts due from related parties
Amount due from a shareholder
of an associate
Taxation recoverable
Other investments
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bills payable

Amounts due to associates

Amounts due to related companies

Taxation payable

Obligations under finance leases —
due within one year

Borrowings — due within one year

Net current assets (liabilities)

As at 31 December

2002 2001 2000
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
131,793 131,923 135,516
186,360 188,749 252,891
- - 21,547
115,533 190,076 179,427
702 1,447 1,842

- - 355
434,388 512,195 591,578
96,440 85,869 57,188
88,462 94,462 105,062
59,293 59,268 75,791
~ 355 335

319 924 21,534
2,330 2,097 -

- - 1,000

1,282 - -
73 184 36
14,382 13,500 19,832
262,581 256,659 280,778
75,332 103,039 87,942
42,673 32,114 45,655
- - 80

2,840 2,775 2,482

- 706 190

92 132 139
74,296 242 676 231,540
195,233 381,442 368,028
67,348 (124,783) (87,250)
501,736 387,412 504,328
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2002 2001 2000
HK$000 HK3'000 HKS$000
Capital and reserves
Share capital 77,488 140,887 140,507
Reserves 267,880 152,967 244,324
345,368 293,854 384,831
Minority interests 579 591 (3,791) [
Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases —
due after one year 300 417 583
Borrowings — due after one year 153,950 86,515 118,646
Loans advanced from minority
shareholders 1,522 1,522 4,046
Other loan - 4,500 -
Deferred taxation 17 13 13
155,789 92,967 123,288
501,736 387,412 504,328
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2. AUDITED ACCOUNTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

Set out below are the auditors’ report and the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2002 together with relevant notes, which are extracted
from 2002 annual report of the Company. Reference to the page numbers in the auditors’
report and the audited financial statements of the Group is to the page numbers of 2002
annual report of the Company.

&2 BI=BROBEENT

Certified Public Accountants SBTRTEEP ISR

26/F, Wing On Centre RIDN)26i2

LLL(ch;(rngught Road Central Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu

To the Shareholders of WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 35 to 105 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which
give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
statements and to report our opinion to you.

- Basis of opinien

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit inchides examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors
in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and of the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.
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We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the

presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at December 31, 2002 and of the profit and cash flows
of the Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

March 27, 2003, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
For the year ended December 31, 2002

2002 2001
Notes HKS$°000 HK§'000
Turnover 4&5 572,393 565,845
Cost of sales (432,458) (425,712)
Gross profit 139,935 140,133
Other operating revenue _ 6 14,497 14,737
Distribution costs (60,569) (49,527)
Investment income 7 388 149
Administrative expenses » (97,182) (140,175)
Deficit on revaluation of investment properties (130) (11,189)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
intangible assets - (20,008)
Write-down of properties held for sale to net
realisable value (6,000) (10,600)
Loss from operations 8 (9,061) (76,480)
Finance costs 9 (10,481) (16,923)
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill ) - (3,459)
Net gain on disposal or liquidation
of subsidiaries 10 27,719 2,569
Gain on disposal of an associate 10,892 —
Share of results of associates (11,550) (4,005)
Profit (loss) before taxation 7,519 (98,298)
Taxation 13 (1,522) (1,689)
Profit (loss) after taxation 5,997 (99,987)
Minority interests 12 479
Profit (loss) attributable to shareholders 6,009 (99,508)
Earnings (loss) per share — Basic 14 0.99 cents (60.20 cents)

The accompanying notes on pages 42 to 105 form an integral part of these financial
Statements. '
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Balance Sheets b
At December 31, 2002 o

The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001 i
Notes HKS$'000 HK3’000 HKS$'000 HK§000 =
Non-current assets
Investment properties 15 131,793 131,923 - -
Property, plant and equipment 16 186,360 188,749 1,451 2,039
Investments in subsidiaries 17 - - 293,504 293,504
Interests in associates 18 115,533 190,076 - -
Investment securities 19 702 1,447 - -
434,388 512,195 294,955 295,543
Current assets
Inventories 20 96,440 85,869 - -
Properties held for sale, at net
realisable value 88,462 94,462 - -
Trade and other receivables 21 59,293 59,268 3,800 1,572
Finance lease receivable 22 - 355 - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 72,536 50,320
Amounts due from associates 319 924 - 48
Amounts due from related parties 23 2,330 2,097 - 1,159
Taxation recoverable 1,282 - - -
Other investments 24 73 184 36 36
Bank balances and cash 14,382 13,500 109 94
262,581 256,659 76,481 53,229
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 75,332 103,039 6,781 3,935
Bills payable 42,673 32,114 - -
Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 7,638 59,110
Amounts due to related companies 2,840 2,775 119 79
Taxation payable - 706 - -
Obligations under finance leases
— due within one year 28 92 132 10 24
Borrowings — due within one year 29 74,296 242 676 12,000 -
195,233 381,442 26,548 63,148
Net current assets (labilities) 67,348 (124,783) 49,933 (9,919)
501,736 387,412 344,888 285,624
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The Group - The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000  HK§'000  HK$000

Capital and reserves
Share capital 26 77,488 140,887 77,488 140,887
Reserves 27 267,880 152,967 267,400 144,727

345,368 293,854 344,888 285,614

Minority interests 579 591 - -

Non-current liabilities
Obligations under finance leases

— due after one year 28 300 417 - 10
Borrowings — due after one year 29 153,950 86,515 - -
Loans advanced from

minority shareholders 30 1,522 1,522 - —
Other loan 31 - 4,500 - -
Deferred taxation 32 17 13 - -

155,789 92,967 - 10

501,736 387,412 344,888 285,624

The accompanying notes on pages 42 to 105 form an integral part of these financial
statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended December 31, 2002

The Group

At January 1, 200

Issue of shates upon private placing

Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares

Arising upon repurchase of own shares

Exchange difference arising on
translation of financial statements
of overseas operations ot recognised
i profit and loss account

Realised on disposal of subsidiaries

Premium on repurchase of own shares

Loss attributable to sharcholders

At December 31, 2001 and January 1, 2002
Capital reorgamsation on March 15, 2002
Rights issue of shares on Aprit 1, 2002
Bonus issue of shares on April 11, 2002
Capital reorganisation on September 18, 2002
Bonus issue of shares on September 24, 2002
Exchange difference arising on translation

of financial statements of verseas operations

not recognised in profit and loss account
Realised on liquidation of subsidiaries
Profit attributable to sharcholders

At December 31, 2002

Retained
Capital profit
Share Share redemption  Exchange  Capital Other (accumulated
capital  preminm reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses) Total
HEKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  AKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
{note 27)

140507 7259% 796 (6,082) 1,434 - TRl 33!
500 - - - - - - 500
(120) - - - - - - (120)

- - 120 - - - - 120
- - - 8,391 - - - 8,391
- - - {251) - - - {251
- - - - - - (109) (109)
- - - - - - (99,508)  (99,508)

140,887 725,993 916 2,038 1,434 - (5T44) 2938

(139478) (343542) - - - - 48300 -
1409 4750 - - - - - 43

408 (4200) - - - - - -
- (4,07) - - - B 94414 -
70,444 - - - - (1044) - -
- - - (1,340 - - - (1,340)
- - - (L032)  (14%) - - (2468)
- - - - - - 6,009 6,009
77488 - 916 (314) - 261269 8,009 345368
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Included in the above is the Group’s share of post-acquisition accumulated losses of
associates, as follows:

HK$°000
At January 1, 2001 (6,880)
Reclassification upon acquisition of subsidiaries 18,300
Loss attributable to shareholders (4,315)
At December 31, 2001 and January 1, 2002 7,105
Loss attributable to shareholders (12,501)
At December 31, 2002 (5,396)
Capital
Share Share redemption Contributed Accumulated
capital  premium reserve surplus losses Total
HKS'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

The Company

At January 1, 2001 140,507 725,993 796 210255 (703,475) 374,076
Issug of shares upon private placing 500 - - - - 500
Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares {1203 - - - - (120)
Arising upon repurchase of own shares - - 120 - - 120
Premium on repurchase of own shares - - - - {109) {109)
Loss attributable to shareholders - - - - (88,853)  (88,853)
At December 31, 2001 and January 1,2002 140,387 725,993 916 210,255 (792,437) 285,614
Capital reorganisation on March 15,2002 (139,478)  (343,542) - - 483,020 -
Rights issue of shares on April 11, 2002 1,409 47,902 - - - 49,311
Bonus issue of shares on Aprit 11, 2002 4,226 {4,226) - - - -
Capital reorganisation on September 18, 2002 - (426,127) - 334,713 94,414 -
Bonus issue of shares on September 24, 2002 70,444 - - (70,444) - -
Profit attributable to shareholders - - - - 9,963 9,963
At December 31, 2002 77,488 - 916 471,524 (205,040) 344,888
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended December 31, 2002

2002 2001
HKS$'000 HK3'000
Operating activities
Profit (loss) before taxation 7,519 (98,298)
Adjustments for:
Share of results of associates 11,550 4,005
Dividend income from listed equity securities - (1)
Dividend income from unlisted equity shares (267) -
Finance lease interest income 20) 49)
Interest income (121) (148)
Interest expenses 10,079 16,518
Finance lease charges 24 47
Amortisation of intangible assets - 1,539
Deficit on revaluation of investment properties 130 11,189
Depreciation 8,623 15,019
Write-down of properties held for sale to net realisable value 6,000 10,600
Unrealised holding loss of other investments 111 R
Gain on disposal of an associate (10,892) -
Net gain on disposal or liquidation of subsidiaries (27,719) (2,569)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (432) 7,852
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill - 3,459
Impairment loss recognised in respect of intangible assets - 20,008
Impairment loss recognised in respect of investment securities - 338
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 4,585 (10,491)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (10,619 8,081
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (7,083) 11,137
Decrease (increase) in amounts due from associates 605 (157)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due from related parties (233) 1,839
Decrease in trade and other payables (8,439) (8,792)
Increase (decrease) in bills payable 11,297 (13,541)
Increase in amounts due to associates - 706
Increase in amounts due to related companies 65 454
Cash used in operations (9,822) (10,764)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (2,324) (1,040)
Overseas tax paid (70) (131)
(2,394) (1,171)
Net cash used in operating activities (12,216) (11,935)
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Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Repayment from lessee under finance leases
Dividend received from listed-equity securities
Dividend received from unlistéd equity shares
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries
(net of cash and cash equivalents disposed of)
Interest received
Finance lease interest received
Purchase of subsidiartes (net of cash and cash
equivalents acquired)
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiaries
Purchase of listed equity securities
Repayment from a shareholder of an associate
Repayment of advances by associates

Net cash (used in) generated from investing activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares

New loans advanced from Directors

~ New bank loans

Repayment of loans advanced from Directors

Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of other loan

Repayment of loan advanced from related companies -
Interest paid

Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Finance lease charges paid

Repayment of loan advanced from a supplier
New loan advanced from a minority shareholder
New loans advanced from related companies
Repurchase of own shares

Net cash generated from (used in)
financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at January 1

Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31

2002
Notes HK3'000

(6,645)
875
355

207

33 160
79
20

34 -

35,593

18,488

(16,693)

(185)
1,610

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

Being:
Bank balances and cash
Bank overdrafts

14,382
(12,772)

1,610

2001
HK$'000

(3,954)
32,979
335
]

(1,167)
140
49

2,305

(76)

(148)
1,000
7,581

39,045

500
9,000
88,763
(10,278)
(134,223)
4)
(9,764)
(253)
(33)
(706)
747
11,166

(109)

(45,194)

(18,084)
1,041
350

(16,693)

13,500

(30,193)
(16,693)

The accompanying notes on pages 42 to 105 form an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2002

1. General information

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).

The Group is engaged in the import, marketing and distribution of air-conditioning products,
audio-visual and electrical products and cars and car accessories.

2. Adoption of statements of standard accounting practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a number of new and revised
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAP”’s) issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, which has resulted in the adoption of the following new and revised accounting
policies. The adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has resulted in a change in the format
of presentation of the cash flow statement and the statement of changes in equity. However, it
has had no material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 Foreign Currency Transltation have eliminated the choice of
transfating the profit and loss account of overseas subsidiaries at the closing rate for the
period. They are now required to be translated at an average rate. This change in accounting
policy has not had any material effect on the results for the current or prior accounting
periods.

Cash flow statements
In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised) “Cash flow statements”. Under

SSAP 15 (Revised), cash flows are classified under three headings - operating, investing and
financing, rather than the previous five headings. Interest and dividends, which were

previously presented under a separate headings, are classified as investing/financing cash
flows. Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as operating activities, unless
they can be separately identified with investing or financing activities.

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34 Employee Benefits, which introduces
measurement rules for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans. Because the
Group’s participates only in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of
SSAP 34 has not had any material impact on the financial statements.
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3.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
for the revaluation of certain properties and investment in securities, and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The principal accounting policies
adopted are set out as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries made up to December 31 each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated profit and loss account from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less any
identified impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The carrying amount of such investments
1s reduced to recognise any identified impairment loss in the value of individual investments.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an
associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to January 1, 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged to the profit and loss account at the time
of disposal of the relevant subsidiary or associate or at such time as the goodwill is
determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions after January 1, 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a
straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life. Goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate is included within the carrying amount of the associate. Goodwill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the balance sheet.
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Revenue recognition

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has passed.

Maintenance service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant leases.

Commission income is recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Finance lease interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of
the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at
the date of acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance
sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss account
over the terms of the relevant leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases.
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Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in such currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet
date. Profits and losses arising on exchange are included in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s overseas operations are translated at
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
classified as equity and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such translation
differences are recognised as income or expenses in the period in which the operation is
disposed of.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement schemes are charged as an expense as they fall
due.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as adjusted for items which are
non-assessable or disallowed. Timing differences arise from the recognition for tax purposes
of certain items of income and expense in a different accounting year from that in which they
are recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect of timing differences, computed
under the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial statements to the
extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Deprecation is provided so as to write off the cost of items or valuation of property, plant and
equipment, over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Land held under medium-term lease Over the unexpired term of lease
Buildings on land held under medium-term lease 2.5-5%

Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-20%

Machinery and tools 20-33 Y. %

Motor vehicles 20-25%
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Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the terms of the relevant leases.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the profit and loss account.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are held for their investment potential,
any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value based on independent professional
valuations at the balance sheet date. Any revaluation increase or decrease arising on the
revaluation of investment properties is credited or charged to the investment property
revaluation reserve unless the balance on this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, in
which case the excess of the decrease over the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve is charged to the profit and loss account. Where a decrease has previously been
charged to the profit and loss account and a revaluation increase subsequently arises, this
increase in credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of the decrease previously
charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the balance on the investment property revaluation
reserve attributable to that property disposed of is transferred to the profit and loss account.

No depreciation is provided on investment properties which are held on leases with an
unexpired term of more than 20 years.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method.

Investments in securities

Investments in securities are recognised on a trade date basis and are initially measured at
cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment securities
and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long-term strategic purpose,
are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any impairment loss that is
other than temporary.
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Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses included in net
profit or loss for the year.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately, unless the relevant assets is carried at a revalued
amount under another SSAP, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that other SSAP.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carry}ng amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant assets is carried at a revalued
amount under another SSAP, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under another SSAP.

4. Turnover

2002 2001
HK3'000 HKE'000

Sales of goods to customers, less returns,
discounts and allowance 537,342 530,619
Maintenance service income 35,051 35,226
572,393 565,845
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5.  Business and geographical segments

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into five operating divisions: air-
conditioning products, audio-visual and other electrical products, cars and car accessories,
direct marketing and property investment. These divisions are the basis on which the Group

reports its primary segment information.
Principal activities are as follows:

Air-conditioning products

Audio-visual and other electrical products

Cars and car accessories

Direct marketing

Property investment
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Retailing of consumer electronic products
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held for sales
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Segment information about these businesses is presented below.

2002
Audio-visual
Air-  and other
conditioning  electrical Cars and car Direct  Property
produets products  accessories  marketing  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
Turnover
External sales 178,873 115,509 214710 63,301 - - - 572,393
Inter-segment
sales 3,597 12,410 - - - - (16,007) -
Total turnover 182,470v 127,919 214,710 63,301 - - (16,007) 572,393

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Result
Segment result 10,701 2,453 270 (6,127) (5,129) - {390) 1,238

Unallocated

corporate

expenses {10,299}
Loss from

operations ‘ (9,061)
Finance costs {10,481)
Net gain on

disposal or

liquidation of

subsidiaries - 271,719 - - - - - 27,719
Gain on disposal

of an associate 10,392 - - - - - - 10,892
Share of results

of associates 3,836 {15,469) - - - 83 - (11,550}
Profit before

taxation 7,519
Taxation (1,522)
Profit after

taxation 5,997
Minority interests 12
Profit attributable

to shareholders 6,009
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2002
Audio-visua
Air-  and other i
conditioning  electrical Cars and car Direct Property
products products  accessories  marketing  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HKS'000  HKS$'000  AKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKE'00G  HKS'000  HKS'000
Consolidated

balance sheet

Assets
Segment assets 60,181 39,161 57,854 10,724 224 416 - - 392,336
Interests in '

associates - 115,533 - - - - - 115,533
Unallocated

corporate

assets 189,100
Consolidated

total assets 696,969

.- Liabilities

Segment liabilities 44,398 19,439 35473 6,156 6,620 - - 112,086
Unallocated

corporate

Tiabilities 238,936
Consolidated total

liabilities ‘ 351,022
Other information
Capital additions 133 396 3,034 280 95 2,107 - 6,645
Depreciation and

amortisation 308 23 1,335 82 - 6,670 - 8,623
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2001
Audio-visual
Air-  and other
conditioning electrical Cars and car Direct Property
products products  accessories  marketing  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HK$000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK3'000 HKS'000
Turnover
External sales 176,059 112,067 43378 34,341 - - - 565,845
Inter-segment
sales 7,230 4871 - 326 - - (12,427} -
Total turnover 183,289 116,938 243378 34,667 - - (12,427 565,845
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
Result
Segment result 10,813 (29,588) 5,162 2,177 (9,955) 49 (389) (26,085)
Unallocated
corporate
expenses (50,395)
Loss from
operations (76,480)
Finance costs (16,923)
* Impairment loss
recognised in
respect of
goodwill - - {2,789) (670) - - - (3,459)
Net gain (loss) on
disposal or
liquidation
of subsidiaries - 3419 124 - - (974) - 2,569
Share of results of
associates 812 (4,984) - - - 167 - (4,005)
Loss before
taxation {98,298}
Taxation (1,689)
Loss after taxation {99,987)
Minority interests 479
Loss attributable
to shareholders (99,508)
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2001
Audio-visual
Air-  and other
conditioning  electrical Cars and car Direct Property
products products  accessories  marketing  investment Others Eliminations Consolidated
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Consolidated

balance sheet

Assets
Segment assets 47,689 37,374 58,631 8,868 228,985 - - 381,547
Interests in

associates 48610 141,466 - - - - - 190,076
Unallocated

corporate

assets ' 167,231
Consolidated total assets 768 854

~ Liabilities

Segment liabilities 39,899 13,911 36,825 8,728 3871 - - 103,241
Unallocated

corporate

liabilities 371,168
Consolidated

total hiabilities 474,409
Other information
Capital additions 153 1,052 15,198 146 - 1,469 (130) 17,888
Depreciation and

amortisation 490 5,344 909 48 - 9,767 - 16,558
Impairment fosses

recognised in

respect of

intangible assets - 20,008 - - - - - 20,008
Impairment losses

recognised in

respect of

goodwill - - 2,789 670 - - - 3459
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Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, The People’s
Republic of China (other than Hong Kong and Macau) (the “PRC”) and Macau. The
following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective
of the origin of the goods/services:

Sales revenue by Contribution to
geographical market operating results
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$§’000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000 HK3°000
Hong Kong 433,155 437,386 (2,984) (11,603)
Singapore 54,105 40,315 917 247
Malaysia 18,423 15,978 1,163 (2,434
PRC 34,087 28,267 (13,533) (28,220)
Macau 30,440 31,726 1,137 1,386
Others 2,183 12,173 41 (198)
572,393 565,845 (13,259)  (40,822)
Other operating revenue 14,497 14,737
Unallocated corporate expenses (10,299) (50,395)
Loss from operations (9,061) (76,480)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and additions to
property, plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are
located:
Additions to
Carrying amount property, plant
of segment assets and equipment
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Hong Kong 410,339 414,033 6,022 17,468
Singapore 22,519 20,824 134 30
Malaysia 7,212 6,727 271 28
PRC 256,160 326,229 218 355
Macau 739 1,041 - 7
696,969 768,854 6,645 17,888
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6.  Other operating revenue

2002 2001
HK3'000 HK$°000
Rental income 11,615 11,834
Commission income . 2,862 2,854
Finance lease interest income 20 49
14,497 14,737
7. Investment income
2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS$°000
Interest income from bank deposits 42 136
Interest income from trade and other receivables 79 12
Dividend income from listed equity securities ~ : 1
Dividend income from unlisted equity shares 267 -
388 149
8.  Loss from operations
2002 2001
HK$’000 HK3°000
Loss from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Amortisation of intangible assets included in
gdministrative expenses - 1,539
Auditors’ remuneration 896 936
Depreciation of:
Owned assets _ 8,441 14,753
Assets held under finance leases 182 266
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
investment securities - 338
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 7,852
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments 65,927 79,237
Unrealised holding loss of other investments 111 -
Write-down of inventories to their net realisable value 578 3,036
Write-down of properties held for sale to
net realisable value 6,000 10,600
and crediting:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 432 ' -
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9, Finance costs

Interest on:
Bank loans, trust receipts and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years
Bank loans wholly repayable after five years
Other loans wholly repayable within five years
Other loans wholly repayable after five years

Finance lease charges
Bank charges

10. Net gain on disposal or liquidation of subsidiaries

Gain upon disposal of subsidiaries
Gain (loss) upon liquidation of subsidiaries

11. Directors’ and employees’ emoluments

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Fees:
Executive Directors
Non-executive Directors

Other emoluments:
Salaries and other benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

_5_

2002 2001
HKS$'000 HKS$°000
5,099 6,434

- 2,699

712 5,286
4,268 2,099
10,079 16,518
24 47

378 358
10,481 16,923
2002 2001
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
- 3,543

27,719 (974)
27,719 2,569
2002 2001
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
170 153

170 153
6,529 7,986

35 33

6,564 8,019
6,734 8,172
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Fees paid to non-executive Directors include HK$140,000 (2001: HK$123,000) paid to
independent non-executive Directors.

The Directors’ emoluments were within the following bands:

2002 2001
Number of Number of
Directors Directors

HKS
Nil - 1,000,000 . 6 4
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 - 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 - 2
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 -

3,000,001 - 3,500,000 1 1

(b) Employees’ emoluments

During the year, the five highest paid individuals included three Directors (2001 : four
Directors), details of whose emoluments are set out in note 11(a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals were as follows:

2002 2001

HK$000 HK$§'000

Salaries and other benefits 2,591 2,125
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 24 176
2,615 2,301

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid individuals fell within the following

bands:
2002 2001
Number of Number of
employees employees
HKS§
Nil - 1,000,000 1 -
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 ~

2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 1
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12.

13.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme for all qualifying
employees of its Hong Kong subsidiaries. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The retirement benefit cost charged
to the profit and loss account during the year amounted to HK$1,891,000 (2001:
HK$2,623,000), which represents contributions payable to the fund by the Group at the rates
specified in the MPF Ordinance.

For subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong, the contribution payable to the defined
contribution schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes at the
relevant jurisdiction. The contributions made by subsidiaries other than in Hong Kong during
the year amounted to HK$791,000 (2001: HK$883,000). ‘

Taxation
2002 2001
HK$'000 HK$'000
The charge comprises:
Tax for the year:
Hong Kong Profits Tax 400 1,224
Overseas income tax 167 155
567 1,379
Deferred taxation (note 32) 4 -
Taxation attributable to the Company and
its subsidiaries ' 571 1,379
Share of taxation attributable to associates 951 310
1,522 1,689

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% of the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Overseas taxation is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred taxation, recognised and unrecognised in the financial statements, are
set out in note 32.
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14.

15.

Earnings (loss) per share

The calculation of the basic earnings (loss) per share is based on the profit attributable to
shareholders of HK$6,009,000 (2001: a loss of HK$99,508,000) and on the weighted average
number of 609,574,769 (2001: 165,359,210) ordinary shares in issue during the year. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic earnings (loss) per share
has been adjusted for the bonus issue, share consolidation and rights issue during the year.

No diluted earnings (loss) per share has been presented because the exercise price of the
Company’s outstanding share options was higher than the average market price for share for

both years.

Investment properties

Investment
properties
Investment outside Hong
properties in Hong Kong held
Kong held under under medium—
medium-term leases term leases Total
HK3°000 HK§'000 HKS$000
The Group
At January 1, 2002 87,783 44,140 - 131,923
‘Deficit on revaluation - (130 (130)
At December 31, 2002 87,783 44,010 131,793

During the year, the Group entered into a sales and purchase agreement to dispose of certain
of its investment properties situated outside Hong Kong at an agreed amount of approximately
HK$2,203,000. The disposal has not yet been completed at the balance sheet date. In the

opinion of the Directors, these investment properties were carried at their realisable value,

which approximate to their open market value at the balance sheet date. The remaining
investment properties of the Group were revalued at December 31, 2002 by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, independent professional valuers, on an open market value basis. The net
deficit arising on revaluation amounting to HK$130,000 (2001: HK$11,189,000) has been
charged to the profit and loss account.

The investment properties of the Group are rented out or available for rent under operating
leases.
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16. Property, plant and equipment

Land and
buildings in Hong Furniture,
Kong held under Leasehold fixtures and  Machinery Motor
The Group medium-term leases improvements  equipment and tools vehicles Total

HK$°000 HE$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HK§'000

Cost or valuation-

At Janvary 1, 2002 210,486 18,957 49,006 8,051 9,304 295,804
Exchange difference - 3 ) 11 93 178
Additions - 1,031 1,929 476 3,209 6,645
Liquidation of subsidiaries - - {235) (146) (382) (763)
Disposals - - (288) (156) {3,478} (3,922)
Reclassification - - (461) 461 - -
At December 31, 2002 210,486 19,991 50,022 8,697 8,746 297,942
Representing:
At cost 198,426 19,991 50,022 8,697 8,746 265,882
At 1996 valuation 10,640 - - - - 10,640
At 1999 valuation 1,420 - - - - 1,420
210,486 19,991 50,022 8,697 8,746 297,942

Accumulated depreciation

At January 1, 2002 27,643 17,716 46,270 7,298 8,128 107,055

Exchange difference - 1 68 10 67 146

Charge for the year 4,674 688 1,745 517 999 8,623

Liquidation of subsidiaries - - (235) (146) (382) (763)
Eliminated upon disposals - - (207) (157) (3,115) (3,479)
Reclassification - - (381) 381 - -

At December 31, 2002 . 32,317 18,405 47,260 7,903 5,697 111,582

Net book value

At December 31, 2002 178,169 1,586 2,762 794 3,049 186,360

At December 31, 2001 182,343 1,241 2,136 753 1,176 188,749

The net book value of the Group’s furniture, fixtures and equipment includes an amount of
HK$328,000 (2001 : HK$486,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.
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If the land and buildings which are stated at valuation had not been revalued, they would have
been included in the financial statements at historical cost less accumulated depreciation of
HK$11,459,000 (2001: HKS$11,751,000).

The Group has pledged land and buildings having a net book value of approximately
HK$3,607,000 to secure loans advanced from a supplier to the Group.

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor

The Company improvements equipment vehicles Total

HKS$’000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Cost
At January 1, 2002 6,606 21,531 2,385 30,522
Additions - 148 680 828
At December 31, 2002 6,606 21,679 3,065 31,350
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2002 6,263 20,600 1,620 28,483
Charge for the year ) 188 815 413 1,416
At December 31, 2002 6,451 21,415 2,033 29,899
Net book value
At December 31, 2002 155 264 1,032 1,451

At December 31, 2001 343 931 765 2,039

The net book value of the Company’s furniture, fixtures and equipment included an amount
of HKS$Nil (2001: HK$24,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

17. Investments in subsidiaries

The Company

2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 293,504 293,504

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 are shown in
note 42.
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- 18.  Interests in associates

The Group
2002 2001
HK3'000 HKS$°000
Share of net assets 115,533 133,622
Amounts due from associates - 56,454
115,533 190,076

Particulars of the Group’s principal associate at December 31, 2002 are shown in note 43.

The following details have been extracted from the audited financial statements of the
Group’s associate:

Jin Ling Electrical
Company Limited

2002 ‘ 2001 .
HKS$°000 HKS$'000
Operating results
Turnover 458,801 401,099
Depreciation A 17,556 17,595
Loss before taxation (23,266) (8,344)
Loss before taxation attributable to the Group (11,633) (4,172)
Financial position
Non-current assets 222,840 383,259
Current assets 351,409 312,876
Current liabilities (323,103) (293,906)
Non-current liabilities (20,135) (134,986)
Shareholders’ funds 231,011 267,243
Shareholders’ funds attributable to the Group 7 115,506 133,622
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19. Investment securities

The Group
2002 2001
HK3°000 HK3°000
Unlisted equity shares, at cost 75 75
Club debentures, at cost less impairment loss 627 1,372
702 1,447

In the opinion of the Directors, investment securities are worth at least their carrying values.

20. Inventories

The Group
2002 2001
HK3°000 HK3'000
Finished goods 84,234 74,693
Spare parts 12,206 11,176
96,440 85,869

Included above are finished goods of HK$15,692,000 (2001: HK$22,225,000) and spare parts
of HK$2,684,000 (2001: HK$380,000), which are carried at net realisable value.

21. Trade and other receivables
The Group

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days to its customers. The aged
analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2002 2001

HK$'000 HK3°000

Within 30 days 18,608 20,403
Over 30 days 9,503 11,131
Over 60 days 1,289 498
Over 90 days 2,108 2,236
Over 1 year 1,370 753
Total trade receivables 32,878 35,021
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 26,415 24,247
59,293 59,268
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22,

Finance lease receivable

The Group

Amount receivable under
finance lease:

Within one year
Less: unearned finance
income

Present value of
minimum lease
payments receivable

Analysed as:

Current finance lease
receivable (recoverable
within one year)

Minimum
lease payments

Present value
of minimum
lease payments

2002 2001 2002 2001
HKS$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000
- 376 - 355

- 21 - N/A

- 355 - 355

- 355

The Group entered into finance leasing arrangements for certain of its equipment. The terms
of finance lease entered into were five years. The interest rate inherent in the lease was fixed
at the contract date for the lease terms. The interest rate on finance lease receivable at
December 31, 2001 was 6% per annum. The finance lease arrangements were completed

during the year.
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23.  Amounts due from related parties

Details of the amounts due from related parties are as follows:

The Group The Company
Maximum Maximum
Balance Balance amount Balance Balance amount
at at  onistanding at at  outstanding

Name of related party 3122002 1.1.2002 during the year 3122002 . 112002 doring the year
HKS000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000

Mr. Herbert ADAMCZYK (note (1)) 208 - 208 - - -
Panasa (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

(note (2)) 248 - 248 - ~ -
Best-& Original Production Limited )

{note (2)) - 2015 2015 - 1,134 113
B & O Web Studio Limited (note (2)) - h 82 - 25 ol

2,330 2,097 - 1,159

Notes:

(1)  The amount is unsecured, bears interest at the best lending rate offered by the Hong Kong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and has no fixed terms of repayment.

Mr. Herbert ADAMCZYK is a Director of the Company’s subsidiaries.
(2)  The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The relatéd companies are controlled by Directors of the Company.

24, Other investments

The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK3°'000 HK$°000 HK3'000 HKS$°000
Listed equity securities 73 184 36 36

The securities are listed on the Stock Exchange and are carried at market value.

—61—




APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE GROUP

25. Trade and other payables
The Group

At the balance sheet date, the aged analysis of trade payables is as follows:

2002 2001

HK$'000 HK$°000

Within 30 days 5,474 6,598
Over 30 days 2,630 1,218
Over 60 days 2,621 1,278
Over 90 days 4,167 1,044
Over 1 year 1,569 25,749
Total trade payables 16,461 35,887
Customers’ deposits, accruals and other payables 58,871 67,152
75,332 103,039

26. Share capital

The Group and the Company
Number of shares Nominal value
HK3'000
Authorised:
At January 1, 2001 and January 1, 2002 of
HK$0.10 each 3,500,000,000 350,000
Cancellation of HK$0.099 of the paid up capital
of each of 1,408,871,178 issued shares — (139,478)
Share consolidation of ten reduced issued shares
into one share of HK$0.01 each (1,267,984,061) -
Subdivision of one unissued share into ten shares
of HK$0.01 each 18,820,159,398 -
Share consolidation of ten issued shares into one
share of HK$0.10 each (18,946,957,804) -
Increase of authorised share capital 1,394,782,467 139,478
At December 31, 2002 of HK$0.10 each 3,500,000,000 350,000
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The Group and the Company
Number of shares Nominal value
HK$ 000
Issued and fully paid:
At January 1, 2001 of HK$0.10 each 1,405,071,178 140,507
Issues of shares upon private placing 5,000,000 500
Cancellation upon repurchase of own shares (1,200,000) (120)
At January 1, 2002 of HK$0.10 each 1,408,871,178 140,887
Cancellation of HK$0.099 of the paid up capital
of each of 1,408,871,178 issued shares - (139,478)
Share consolidation of ten reduced issued shares
into one share of HK$0.01 each (1,267,984,061) -
Issue of shares upon rights issue 140,887,117 1,409
Issue of shares upon bonus share issue 422,661,351 4,226
Share consolidation of ten issued shares into one
share of HK$0.10 each (633,992,027) -
Issue of shares upon bonus share issue 704,435,580 70,444
At December 31, 2002 of HK$0.10 each 774,879,138 77,488

(1) Pursuant to resolutions passed on the special general meeting (“SGM”) held on March 15,
2002, the authorised share capital of the Company was reduced from HK$350,000,000
divided into 3,500,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each to HK$210,521,753.37 divided into
21,052,175,337 shares of HK$0.01 each, upon completion of the capital reorganisation which
involved: (i) the existing paid up capital and nominal value of each of the issued share of each
of the issued share of the Company reduced from HK$0.10 to HK$0.001 each by the
cancellation of HK$0.099 of the paid up capital for each issued share of the Company
(“Reduced Share”); (ii) each authorised but unissued share of the Company subdivided into
ten shares of HK$0.01 each; (iii) every issued ten Reduced Shares consolidated into one
issued share; (iv) the credit of approximately HK$139,478,000 arising from the cancellation
of HK$0.099 of the paid up capital of each issued share of the Company transferred to the
contributed surplus account and fully utilised to eliminate part of the accumulated losses of
the Company; and (v) an amount of approximately HK$343,542,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company transferred to the contributed surplus account and
applied to eliminate the balance of the accumulated losses of the Company.

(2) Pursuant to another resolution passed on the same SGM held on March 15, 2002, a rights
issue of not less than 140,887,117 shares of HK$0.01 each at HK$0.35 per share on the basis
of one rights share for every rights share held on the record date with the bonus share issue
on the basis of three bonus shares for every rights share taken up payable in full on
acceptance.
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(3) Pursuant to resolutions passed on the SGM held on September 18, 2002, (i) an amount of

4

27.

approximately HK$426,127,000 standing to the credit of the share premium account of the
Company transferred to the contributed surplus account; (ii) an amount of approximately
HK$94,414,000 standing to the credit of the contributed surplus account of the Company
applied to eliminate the balance of the accumulated losses of the Company; (iii) every ten
issued and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each consolidated into one issued share at HK$0.10
each; and (iv) increase the authorised share capital of the Company from HK$210,521,753.37
to HK$350,000,000.

Pursuant to another resolution passed on the same SGM held on September 18, 2002, ten
bonus shares were issued for every consolidated share. 704,435,580 bonus shares were issued
and were credited as fully paid by using the credit in the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

Reserves

The other reserve of the Group of HK$261,269,000 (2001: Nil) represents the non-
distributable reserve transferred from the share premium account pursuant to the capital

reorganisation on September 18, 2002. Details of the capital reorganisation are set out in note
26.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of
the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

{a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its
liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium accounts.

In the opinion of Directors, as at December 31, 2002, the Company’s reserve available for

distribution consisted of contributed surplus of HK$266,484,000, net of accumulated loss of
HK$205,040,000 (2001: Nil).
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28.

Obligations under finance leases

The Group

Amounts payable under
finance leases:

Within one year
In the second to fifth year

inclusive
Over five years

Less: future finance charges

Present value of lease
obligations

Analysed as:
Amounts due within one
year shown under

current liabilities

Amounts due after one year

Present value

Minimum of minimum

lease payments lease payments
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$ 000 HK3$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
110 165 92 132
354 483 300 367
- 60 - 50
464 708 392 549
(72) (159) N/A N/A
392 549 392 549
92 132
300 417
392 549
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Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2002 2001 2002 2001

HKZ$°000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK§’000
The Company

Amounts payable under
finance leases:

Within one year 14 33 10 24

In the second to fifth
year inclusive - 14 - 10
14 47 10 34

Less: future finance
charges ¢)) (13) N/A N/A

Present value of lease
obligations 10 34 10 34

Analysed as:

Amounts due within one year

shown under current liabilities 10 24
Amounts due after one year - 10
10 34

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment under finance
leases. The average lease term is six years. For the year ended December 31, 2002, the
average effective borrowing rate was approximately 6% (2001: 7%) per annum. Interest rates
are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge over the
leased assets.

— 66—




APPENDIX I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION RELATING TO THE GROUP

29.

Borrowings

Bank loans and overdrafts
Secured
Unsecured

Unsecured loans advanced
from Directors (note -a)

Unsecured loans advanced
from related companies
(note b)

Secured loan advanced
from a supplier (note c)

Unsecured loan advanced
from a supplier (hote c)

The maturity of the above
loans is as follows:

Within one year

More than one year,
but not exceeding
two years .

More than two years,
but not exceeding
five years

More than five years

Less: Amounts due
within one year
shown under
current liabilities

Amounts due after
one year

The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK3°000 HKS$'000
75,214 88,167 - -
1,837 7,477 - _
77,051 95,644 - -
15,725 14,932 12,000 -
4,755 15,232 ~ -
130,715 - ~ -
- 203,383 ~ -
228,246 329,191 12,000 -
74,296 242,676 12,000 -
10,924 21,044 - ~
6,779 39,354 - ~
136,247 26,117 - -
228,246 329,191 12,000 -
(74,296) (242,676) (12,000) -
153,950 86,515 - -
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30.

31.

32.

The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 . 2001
HK3°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
At January 1 13 13 - -
‘Charge for the year (note 13) 4 - - -
At December 31 17 13 - —

Notes:

a, The loans advanced from a Director are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
HK$12,000,000 (2001: HK$Nil) of the balance bears interest at 10% (2001: Nil) per annum. The
remaining balance is non-interest bearing.

The loans advanced from Directors as at December 31, 2001 were unsécured, bore interest at
4.5% per annum and have no fixed terms of repayment.

b. The loans advanced from related companies are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.
HKS$4,475,000 of the balance (2001: HK$9,000,000) bears interest at 1% above the best lending
rate. The remaining balance is non-interest bearing. '

HK$4,632,000 of the balance at December 31, 2001 was unsecured and bore interest at the best x .
lending rate offered by the Development Bank of Singapore. It was fully released upon the :
liquidation of a subsidiary.

The related companies are controlled by certain Directors of the Company.

c. The loan advanced from a supplier is secured by properties of the Group, bears interest at 2.5%
per annum and is repayable semi-annually by ten instalments commencing from June 30, 2012.

The balance of loan advanced from a supplier as at December 31, 2001 was unsecured, bore
interest at 3%-3.3% per annum and was repayable on demand.

Loans advanced from minority shareholders

The loans are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
minority shareholders have agreed not to demand repayment of the loans in the next twelve
months from the balance sheet date and, accordingly, the amounts have been classified as
non-current liability.

Other loan

The loan was unsecured and non-interest bearing. It was fully repaid during the year.

Deferred taxation
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At the balance sheet date, the major components of the deferred taxation liabilities (assets),

recognised and unrecognised, are as follows:

Recognised
2002 2001
HK3°000 HK3000
The Group
Excess of tax allowances over
accounting depreciation
in respect of property,
plant and equipment 4 -
Taxation losses - -
Other timing differences . 13 13

Unrecognised
2002 2001
HK3°000 HKS$000
199 198
(148,591) (151,228)
(241) (825)

17 13

(148,633) (151,855)

The Company
Excess of tax allowances

over accounting

depreciation in

respect of property,

plant and equipment - -
Taxation losses ) - -

69 121
(14,135) (11,948)
- - (14,066) (11,827)

A deferred taxation asset has not been recognised in the financial statements in respect of tax
losses available to offset future profits as it is not certain that the tax losses will be utilised in

the foreseeable future.
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The amount of unrecognised deferred taxation charge (credit) for the year is as follows:

The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HKS$’000 HK$000 HK3’000 HKS$'000
Tax effect of timing
differences because of:
Excess (shortfall) of tax
allowances over accounting
depreciation in respect
of property, plant and ‘
equipment ' 1 437 (52) 106
Taxation losses utilised
(arising) 2,637 7,148 (2,187) (1,754)
Other timing differences 584 (778) - -
3,222 6,807 (2,239) (1,648)

Deferred taxation has not been recognised on thé revaluation increase or decrease arising on
the revaluation of leasehold land and buildings and investment properties because profits or
losses arising on the disposal of these assets would not be subject to taxation. Accordingly,
the revaluation increase or decrease arising on revaluation does not constitute a timing
difference.
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33. Disposal of subsidiaries

Summary of the effects of the disposal of subsidiaries are as follows:

2002 2001
HK$°000 HK$'000
Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment - 3,826
Investment securities 160 -
Inventories -~ 747
Trade and other receivables - 3,924
Bank balances and cash - 1,167
Trade and other payables - (10,963)
" Obligations under finance leases - (202)
Minority interests - 441)
160 (1,942)
Exchange reserve realised on disposal ~ 251
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ 3,543
160 1,350
Satisfied by:
Trade and other receivables - 1,350
Cash 160 -
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on disposal:
Cash consideration 160 -~
Bank balances and cash disposed of - (1,167)
160 (1,167)

The subsidiaries disposed of for both years did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
cash flows, turnover and operating results.
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34. Purchase of subsidiaries

2002 2001
HK3°000 HK3'000
Net assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment - 1,428
Inventories - 37,509
Trade and other receivables - 16,456
Bank balances and cash - 2,305
Trade and other payables - (57,493)
Taxation - (350)
Minority interests - 6,746
Loans from minority sharcholders - (3,096)
Other loan - (4,500)
- (995)
Transfer from interests in associates - 18,186
- 17,191
Satisfied by:
Assignment of account receivable ' - 17,191
Net cash inflow in connection with the acquisition
of subsidiaries:
Bank balances and cash acquired - 2,305
The subsidiaries acquired during 2001 had contributed to HK$4,489,000 to the Group’s net

operating cash flows, paid HK$1,302,000 in respect of the net returns on investments and
servicing of finance, paid HK$589,000 in respect of taxation, utilised HK$1,577,000 for
investing activities and raised HK$3,211,000 in respect of financing activities of that year.

The subsidiaries acquired during 2001 had contributed HK$243,378,000 to the Group’s
turnover, and HK$6,122,000 to the Group’s profit from operations of that year.

—72-




AFFLINDIA 1

FINANCUIAL INFURNMATIUN RELALTING 11U 1HE GRUUP

33.

36.

Liquidation of subsidiaries

A summary of the effects of liquidation of subsidiaries is as follows:

2002 2001
HKS$'000 HK3'000

Net assets written off:
Investment securities : 529 -
Inventories 48 -
Trade and other receivables 6,269 974
Trade and other payables (25,041) -
Bills payable ' (738) -
Taxation payable (168) -
Obligations under finance leases ‘ (81) -
Borrowings (6,071) -
(25,253) 974
Exchange reserve released on liquidation (1,032) -
Capital reserve released on liquidation (1,434) -
974

(Gain) loss upon liquidation (27,719)

The effects on the cash flows and results of the Group upon the liquidation of the subsidiaries

during the year are insignificant.

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group has settled part of the loan advanced from a supplier of
HK$71,837,000 by applying the proceeds from disposal of the Group’s entire equity interest

in its associate.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Group purchased property, plant and
equipment by means of finance leases. The addition cost of property, plant and equipment

amounted to HK$320,000.
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37.

38.

Related party transactions

In addition to the balances with related parties disclosed under notes 23, 29 and 30 above,
during the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties:

2002 2001

HK$000 HK3°000

Interest expenses paid to a Director 295 733

Interest expenses paid to a related company 417 -

Interest income received from a related party 74 -

Management and agency fee paid to a related company 3,359 3,531

Sales of goods to a related company 950 -
Maintenance service income received from a

related company 454 - -

The interest expenses paid to a Director were agreed between the relevant parties. The interest
rates ranged from 4.5% to 10% per annum.

The interest expense paid to a related company and the interest income received from a
related party were determined by the Directors on the basis of estimated market rate.

The pricing of transactions regarding management and agency fees and goods sold to a
related company were determined by the Directors on the basis of estimated market value.

Operating lease arrangements

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned, net of outgoings of HK$4,472,000 (2001: HK$3,722,000)
during the year was HK$7,143,000 (2001: HK$8,112,000). The property held has committed

tenants for the next two years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments which fall due:

2002 , 2001

HK3’000 HK$°000

Within one year 10,316 8,765
In the second to fifth year inclusive 3,733 4,189
14,049 12,954
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39.

The Group as lessee

2002 2001
HK§000 HK§000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognised in the profit and loss account for the year 9,396 16,986

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments under non-cancellable operating
lIeases, which fall due as follows:

2002 2001

HK3'000 HK$'000

Within one year 6,422 6,641
In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,160 2,914
8,582 9,555

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office
premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are fixed for an
average of one year.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases (2001: Nil).

Contingent liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had the following outstanding
contingent liabilities which are not provided for in the financial statements in respect of:

The Group The Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$’000 HK3'000 HKE'000 HK$'000
Guarantees given for
banking and other
facilities made available
to subsidiaries - - 158,822 222,423
Other guarantees - 2,141 3,120 5,097
- 2,141 161,942 227,520
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40. Pledge of assets

41.

At the balance sheet date, certain of the Group’s land and buildings, investment properties
and properties held for sale with an aggregate net book value of HK$349,952,000 (2001:
HK$355,227,000) and all assets of a subsidiary of HK$12,617,000 (2001: HK$9,096,000)
have been pledged to secure facilities granted by banks and a supplier to the Group.

Share option schemes
1991 Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on June 22, 1991 (1991 Scheme”) for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to Directors and eligible employees and expired on
June 21, 2001. The Directors may, at their discretion, grant options to all eligible employees,
including executive Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 1991
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any
point in time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of the maximum aggregate number of shares of the
Company for the time being issued and issuable under the 1991 Scheme.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1
per grant. Options are exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month from the
date of acceptance of options.

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of
a price being not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and the nominal value of a share of the Company.

2001 Scheme

Another share option scheme (2001 Scheme”) was subsequently adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on June 28, 2001 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
Directors and eligible employees, and was terminated on May 30, 2002 pursuant to a
resolution passed on that date.

Under the 2001 Scheme, the Directors may grant options to any full-time employees,
including executive and non-executive Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2001
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at any
point in time. The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
individual is not permitted to exceed 25% of the maximum aggregate number of shares of the
Company for the time being issued and issuable under the 2001 Scheme.
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Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1
per grant. Options are exercisable within a period of 6 years commencing one month from the
date of acceptance of options.

The subscription price is determined by the Directors, and will not be less than the higher of
a price being not less than 80% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant and the nominal
value of a share of the Company.

Upon termination of the 2001 Scheme, no further options will be granted but in all other
respects, the provisions of the 2001 Scheme shall remain in force and all granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance therewith.

2002 Scheme

On August 23, 2001, the Stock Exchange has announced amendments to Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, which has come into effect on September 1, 2001. In compliance with the
amendments to the Listing Rules and the announcement of the Stock Exchange, the Company
adopted a new share option scheme (“2002 Scheme”) and terminated the 2001 Scheme on
May 30, 2002 pursuant to a resolution passed on that date. The purpose of the 2002 Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to participants for their contribution to the Group and
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any companies in which the Group holds any equity
interest. The 2002 Scheme will expire on the 10th anniversary of date of adoption.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company may at their discretion grant
options to the following participants of the Company, its subsidiaries and any companies in

which the Group holds any equity interest, to subscribe for shares in the Company:

1. eligible employees, including Directors; or

suppliers or customers; or

3. any person or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support; or

4. shareholders; or

5. employees, partners or Directors of any business partners, joint venture partners,

financial advisers and legal advisers.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or
any of their respective associates must be approved by the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company (excluding any Independent Non-executive Director who is the
grantee). '

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the 2002
Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. Subject to the above rule, the total number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the adoption date
of the 2002 Scheme without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
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The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any participant in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to a
substantial shareholder, or an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or any of
their respective associates under the 2002 Scheme and any other schemes in any one year in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital or with a value, based on the closing
price of the shares of the Company at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$S million must
be approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days of the date of grant upon payment of HK$1
per each grant of options. The exercise period of the share options granted under the 2002
Scheme shall be determined by the Board of Directors when such options are granted,
provided that such period shall not end later than 6 years from the date of grant. The
subscription price is determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the higher of the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, or the
average closing price of the shares for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant, or the nominal value of a share of the Company.

Capital Reorganisation appreved on March 15, 2002

Pursuant to resolutions passed on the SGM held on March 15, 2002, a capital reorganisation
(“Reorganisation I”), which involves capital reductions, share subdivision and share
consolidation, the rights issue with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for every
rights share taken up payable in full on acceptance, was approved.

Details of the Reorganisation I and the rights issue with bonus issue are set out in the
Company’s circular and prospectus dated February 20, 2002 and March 15, 2002 respectively.

Capital Reorganisation approved on September 18, 2002

Pursuant to resolutions passed on the SGM held on September 18, 2002, another capital
reorganisation {“Reorganisation 11”), which involves the reduction of the share premium
account, the cancellation of the accumulated losses, the share consolidation and the bonus
issue to shareholders on the basis of ten bonus shares for every one consolidated share, was
approved. ‘

Details of the Reorganisation II and bonus issue are set out in the Company’s circular dated
August 23, 2002.

At December 31, 2002, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the 1991 Scheme, 2001 Scheme and 2002 Scheme were
47,984,001, 61,331,127 and 46,795,981 (2001: 101,770,400, 111,700,000 and nil respectively),
representing 6.2%, 7.9% and 6.0% (2001: 7.2%, 7.9% and nil respectively) of the issued
share capital of the Company at that date respectively.
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The following table discloses details of the Company’s share options held by employees
(including Directors) and movements in such holdings during the year:

Lapsed R Laped  Out
furisg Grantedon allocstion  doring standing &
Scbeme Ouistanding st~ Grantedon  the  Ouitdiogat  Seplember durmgibe the Decombr
fpe Dateolgrant Iooarg 000 Joned 000 perind  JonelO N2 ML perind  period 3000 Euencsable perind Exerist prite
Bele  Aft Bele  Affer B Al M
At Ajwstment Adjsiment Adtrent® Adwoent Adjomens Adimentd
e B
B May 13, 19% 113840 5659000 - 5580 - - - - - - el M0 18
e 30, 2002
W iy 006000 15,000,000 - SO0 14500000 1595154 - - SN G S 15 BN B N
September 16,2003
B by 9098 DM 41900 - 1B T 438 - - D0 ANSHS RenayldIS-02M0 OO D6
March 12, 2004
M eeld 10 L6 S0 - S 1 1 - - S S 7 S S I O 1)
ufy 3,200
50 Dooember2, 199 ISHBQ00 7804000 - BIH0 14050 8164 - - MN8N Ry lN0- LMD 0B 6S
March 21, 2006
B0 Fehmary 11200 B0000 4165000 SO 1R R SR - - S AT Mah IR0 0N 10 gl
Meeh 21, 106
B Seomber8 2000 3000008 LSO000 - - Lo 1gnies - - - 006 Noeobr M- OMO 045 L4
November 4, 2008
B9 Janary 18,2000 46000 23000 - L0000 1m0 M - - - 04 Mu6201- MO 0ED 0B
March 14, 2007
B Myl 200 A0 200 == Lo 152030 - - SO el - 0NO OB 0
Jne 9, 207
M A 10200 10000000 S3000000 - - Sh000000 58305830 - - - SSIEN0 Sepember A0 QLD O 005
Sepember 18,2007
W At 8,200 4700000 2350000 - L0 s 241534 - - - MM Splmberd0 MO0 GHOE 0N 0
September 0, 2007
M Newemda 2,00 10000 S0 S - Slog ssnass - - - 008 Deembr Ol LIER0NM 0
Derenber 2, 2000 '
M heed 20 - - 1 - DM 800881 - - 08I Jmed HD- SO R
Juse 3, 208
W September 1, 02 - - - - - - 165800 - - 6328000 September 24, 201 - - S
Segtember 13, 2008
Grand Tt IBATOH0 0673200 10150000 7394700 126, 530500 139219418 19,0800 - RIS

# The number of Share Options granted under 1991 and 2001 Schemes and their respective
subscription prices have been adjusted for the Capital Reorganisation and the Rights Issue with
the Bonus Share Issue taken place in March and April 2002 respectively.

@  The number of Share Options granted under 1991, 2001 and 2002 Schemes and their respective
subscription prices have been adjusted for the Capital Reorganisation and the Bonus Share Issue
taken place in September 2002.
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Outstanding at Granted during  Lapsed durisg  Outstanding at

Scheme type ~ Date of grant January 1, 2001 the year the year December 31, 2001 Exercisable period  Exercise price

HES
1991 May 13, 199 11,556,000 - 137600 11,318,460 June 13, 1996 - June 30, 2002 0.9460
1% July 28,1997 30,060,000 - - 30,000,000 August 28, 1997 - September 10, 2003 0.3330
1% Januéry 19,193 ©OBSIB00 - 204,000 §.314,000 February 19, 1998 - March 12, 2004 0.2200
1991 June 10, 1998 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 Tuly 24,1998 - July 23, 2004 01053
1991 December 21, 1999 15,408,000 - 60,000 15,348,000 February 1, 2000 - March 21, 2006 0.1400
1991 Febroary 11, 2000 9,490,000 - 1,160,000 §,330,000 March 18, 2000 - March 21, 2006 03264
1991 September 8, 2000 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000 November $, 2000 - November 4, 2006 0.1413
191 Jamuary 18, 2001 - 460000 23,700,000 v 460,000 March 6, 2001 - ME.erh 14,2007 0.1000
1991 May 28, 2001 - 24000000 - 24,000,000 June 26, 2001 - June 29,2007 01000
21001 August 10, 2001 - 106,000,000 - 106,000,000 September 14, 2601 - September 18, 2007 0.1000
2001 August 29, 2008 - 4,700,000 - 4700000 September 30, 2001 - September 30, 2007 0.1000
2001 November 23, 2001 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 December 23, 2001 - December 22,.2007 0.1000
Grand Total: BIILN00 159860000 - 25361600 213470400
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Details of the share options held by the Directors included in the above table are as follows:

Scheme
fype

puth

a0

m

1

(rand Tota:

* %

Lapsed e Lo Oofe
Guring Grantedon aflocation  during standing af
Outstanding sl Gramtedon ~ the  Outstundingat  Seplember doriogthe  the Devembur
Dateof grant ooy LMY Jooed 200 perod  une 30,2000 WML period  period 3L Exerciabl pernd Erencise price
Bebe M Belie  Alla Blw A Al
Adjustoent Adjustment Adjustment Afjsmentd Austoest Aduwinent Aduineatd
IR I
My 13, 19% 610000 3080000 - Ji0on hoel3, 106 0540 2098
Jing 16,2002
Jaly 28,1997 2100006¢ 13 300008 - I uga o - - MBI hewRIW- 0 15 1S
' Augast 3, 200
oy 19,0008 G000 3050000 A AT S LN Ry 009 000 6T B
Februry 21, 004
e 10,199 10000 00000 - s SIS hyMI%E- o 0Nm 0 B
July 8, 204
December 0, 1999 3. 500000¢ 750000 §I50p0r T4 - T4 Fhoapb M- 0MI0 088 0488
Febuary 10, 2006
Febroay 11,2000 7000000 350060 - 35 38 - <380 MedBII- 0N 1B M
Maeh 21, 206
onwary 18, 2001 1000 B0 0o 140 - - W0 HwhS M- 00 0EB 0
ek 5, 2007
May 28, 000 240000 140000 - 100000 1300300 (LR - 0 heD M- QR O 6l
June 29, 2007
Rugast W00 600000 3000000 - SO0 8308830 (OB NN R 40 LHDD O 0RD (BB
Septembe 18,2007
August B, 2001 Laagaer s oo oo s - N Sptoba ) NOT- G EB 4B
September 19, 207
e 4,202 S LI - 44000 M - AW w0 N
Juoe 3, 208
Sepender 24, 202 - - - IR0 (AN - SIH0000 September 4, 002- 110
Sepember 5, 3008
LS80 95000000 4400000 3060000 L T0ME 100000 A0 CEMLENS) - Sa000gne

Share Options granted to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE’s spouse were included.

Mr. Barry John BUTTIFANT was an executive Director of the Company and resigned on
November 7, 2002. '

The share options granted to him before his resignation were therefore reallocated to Share

Options granted to “Continuous Contract Employees”.

The number of Share Options granted under 1991 and 2001 Schemes and their respective
subscription prices have been adjusted for the Capital Reorganisation and the Rights Issue with

the Bonus Share Issue taken place in March and April 2002 respectively.

The number of Share Options granted under 1991, 2001 and 2002 Schemes and their respective
subscription prices have been adjusted for the Capital Reorganisation and the Bonus Share Issue

taken place in September 2002.
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Outstanding at Granted during  Lapsed during ~ Qutstanding at

Stheme type  Dhte of grant Jamary 1, 2001 the year the year December 31, 2001 Exercisable period  Exercise price

HKS
1991 May 13, 1996 6,120,000 - - 6,120,000 Jun 13, 1996 - Jone 16, 2002 0.9460
(%1 July 28, 1997 17,000,000¢ - - 27,800,008% August 28, 1997 - August 30, 2003 13330
1991 Faauary 19,1998 6,100,000% - - 6,100,000*  February 19, 1998 - February 21, 2004 0.2200
191 Juze 10, 1998 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 July 24, 1998 - July 23, 2004 0.1053
1994 December 21, 1999 13,500,000 C - - 13,500,000+ February 6, 2000 - February 10, 2006 {.1400
1991 Februzry 11, 2000 7,000,000 - - 7,000,000 March 18, 2000 - Merch 21, 2006 03264
1991 January 18, 200i - 23,960,000t 23,700,000* 260,000 March 6, 2001 - March 5, 2007 0.1000
1991 May 28, 2001 - 24000000 - 24,000,000 June 29, 2001 - June 29, 2007 0.1600
001 August 10, 2001 - 106,000,000 - 106,000,000 September 14, 2001 - September 13, 2007 0.1000
2001 August 29, 2001 - 1,000,000¢ - 1,000,000%  September 30, 2001 - September 29, 2007 0.1000
Grand Total: 60720000 154960000 13700000 194,980,000

* Share Options granted to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE’s spouse were included.

Total consideration received during the year from employees (including Directors) for taking
up the options granted is amounted to HK$37 (2001: HK$30).

No charge is recognised in the income statement in respect of the value of options granted in
the year (2001: Nil).
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42. Principal subsidiaries
Percentage Issued and
‘ of equity fully paid
Place of interest  share capital
incorporation/ attributable  or registered
Name of subsidiary operation to the Group capital  Principal activities
Direct subsidiary
Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1) British Virgin 100.0 30,000 shares  Investment holding
Limited Islands of US$0.01
each
Indirect subsidiaries
Auto Italia Limited Hong Kong 86.0 10,000 shares  Trading of cars and
of HK$10 related accessories
each and provision of car
repairing services
Bodyworld British Virgin 100.0 I share of  Trading brand holding
International Islands USS$1 each
(B.VIL) Ltd.
Cliven Pte Ltd Singapore 100.0 10 ordinary  Investment holding
shares of
S$1 each
Corich Enterprises British Virgin 100.0 100 sharesof  Investment holding
Inc. Islands US$1 each .
East Wood Offshore British Virgin 100.0 1 share of  Property investment
Ltd. Islands/PRC USS$1 each
Eight Wonders British Virgin 100.0 1 share of  Property investment
Company Ltd. Istands/PRC US$1 each
Elbright Limited Hong Kong 100.0 2 shares of  Property leasing agent
HKS$1 each
Ever Rising Investments ~ Hong Kong 100.0 2 shares of  Property investment
Limited HKS$1 each
Excellent Top Ltd. British Virgin 100.0 180,000  Trading brand holding
Islands/PRC shares of
USS$1 each
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Name of subsidiary
Indirect subsidiaries

Flying Colours
Company Ltd.

Full Moon Overseas
Limited

Haverest Moon
Holdings Ltd.

Italian Motors (Sales &
Service) Limited

Jacobean Co. Ltd.

Locomotion Enterprises
Ltd.
Macau Wo Kee Hong

Import & Export
Limited

Maiden Pink Limited

Martview Limited

Mega Warchouse
Company Limited

Place of
incorporation/
operation

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Istands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

Macau

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

100.0

100.0

100.0

86.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
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Issued and
fully paid
share capital
or registered
capital

1 share of
US$1 each

1 share of
USS$1 each

| share of
US$1 each

60,000 shares

of HK$10
each

1 share of

US$1 each

1 share of
US$1 each

MOP10,000

1 share of
US$1 each

2 shares of
HKS$! each

2 shares of
HKS$1 each

Principal activities

Property investment
Property investment
Property investment

Trading of cars and
related accessories
and provision of car
repairing services

Property investment
Property investment

Trading of audio-visual
equipment, air-conditioning
and refrigeration products
and providing repairs and
maintenance services for
air-conditioning equipment
and electronic appliances

Property investment

Property holding

Trading brand holding
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Name of subsidiary
Indirect subsidiaries

Mega Warehouse
(Hong Kong) Limited

Metro Global Limited

Midtown Company
Ltd.

Most Advance
International Ltd.

New Castle
Development Ltd.

Number One
Enterprises Ltd.

Rising Sun
Development Ltd.

Riverlily Enterprises
Ld.

Rogers International
Limited

Shinwa Engineering
Company, Limited

Place of

incorporation/

eperation

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

British Virgin
Islands/PRC

Bahamas-

Hong Kong

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0

100.0
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issued and
fully paid
share capital
or registered
capital

1,000,000 shares
of HK$1 each

2 rion voting
deferred shares
of HK$1 each
and 1,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

1 share of
US$1 each

1 share of
USS1 each

1 share of
USS$I each

1 share of
US$1 each

1 share of
USS$1 each

1 share of
- US$! each

2 shares of
USS$1 each

5,000,000
non-voting
deferred
shares of
HKS$1 each
and 2 ordinary
shares of
HK$! each

Principal activities

Warehouse stores operation

Investment holding

. Property investment

Investment holding

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Property investment

Trading brand holding

Investment holding
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Percentage Issued and
of equity fully paid
Place of interest - share capital
incorporation/ attributable - or registered
Name of subsidiary operation to the Group capital  Principal activities
Indirect subsidiaries
Sincere Overseas Ltd. British Virgin 100.0 1 share of  Property investment
Islands/PRC US$1 each
Skyline Trading Ltd. British Virgin 100.0 1 share of  Property investment
Islands/PRC US$! each
Stoneycroft Estates Hong Kong 100.0 20,000,000  Property investment
Limited non-voting
deferred
shares of
HK$1 each
and 1,000

ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

Technorient Limited Hong Kong 86.0 261,687 shares  Investment holding
of HK$100
each
Waterfront Company British Virgin 100.0 I share of  Property investment
Ltd. Islands/PRC US$1 each
Wo Kee Hong Singapore 100.0 4,500,000  Distribution of home audio
Distribution Pte Ltd ordinary shares and car audio equipment
of 881 each and accessories
Wo Kee Hong Electronics  Malaysia 100.0 1,000,000  Distribution of audio-visual
Sdn. Bhd. ordinary shares equipment
of M$1 each
Wo Kee Hong Finance Hong Kong 100.0 2 shares of  Finance and money lending
Limited : HKS$1 each
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Name of subsidiary
Indirect subsidiaries

Wo Kee Hong Limited

Wo Kee Hong
Professional
Air Conditioning
Pte Ltd

Wo Kee Hong Trading
Sdn. Bhd.
(Formerly known as
Wo Kee Hong
Professional
Air Conditioning
Sdn. Bhd.)

Wo Kee Joyful Limited

Wo Kee Services
Limited

REMEMTAER

BR AT

Percentage
of equity
interest
attributable
to the Group

Place of
incorporation/
operation

Hong Kong

Singapore

Malaysia

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

PRC

~87—

Issued and
fully paid
share capital
or registered
capital

100.0 10,000 non-
voting
deferred
shares of
HK$1,000
each and 2
ordinary
shares of
HK$1,000

each

93.5 5,000,000
shares of
S$1 each

100.0 4,200,000
ordinary shares

of M$1 each

100.0° 2,000,000 shares
of HK$1 each

100.0 2 non-voting
deferred
shares of
HKS$100 each
and 19,998
ordinary
shares of
HK$100 each

100.0 RMBL,000,000

Principal activities

Investment holding and
distribution of audio-visual
equipment, car audio and
electronic products, air-
conditioning and
refrigeration products,
electrical appliances and
electronic components

Distribution of air-
conditioning products

Distribution and installation
of air-conditioning
products

Company secretarial service

Provision of warehousing,
delivery, repairs and
maintenance services

Distribution of
air-conditioning,
electrical and electronic
products
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The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally affect the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, resuit in
particulars of excessive length.

43. Principal associate

The following is the principal associate as at 31 December 2002:

Percentage Issued and
of equity fully paid
Place of interest share capital
Name of incorporation/  attributable or registered
- company operation to the Group capital  Principal activities
Jin Ling Electrical PRC 50.0 RMB263,500,000 Manufacturing and
Company Limited trading of washing

machines

The above table lists the associate of the Group which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affects the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

3. STATEMENT OF UNAUDITED ADJUSTED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED NET
TANGIBLE ASSET VALUE OF THE GROUP

The following is a statement of the unaudited adjusted pro forma consolidated net tangible
asset value of the Group after taking into account of the Rights Issue. It is based on the
audited net tangible asset value of the Group as at 31 December 2002:

HKS§’ 000

Audited consolidated net tangible assets of the Group

as at 31 December 2002 - 345,368
Add: Estimated net proceeds from the Rights Issue : 32,000
Pro forma consolidated net tangible assets immediately after

the Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue 377,368
Anudited consolidated net tangible asset value per Share

immediately prior to the completion of the Rights Issue and

the Bonus Shares Issue based on 852,367,051 Shares in issue HK$0.405
Pro forma consolidated net téngible asset value per Share

immediately following the completion of the Rights Issue and

the Bonus Shares Issue based on 2,216,154,331 Shares in

issue upon completion HK3$0.170
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4. INDEBTEDNESS

At the close of business on 30 June 2003, being the latest practicable date for ascertaining

the information contained herein prior to the printing of this prospectus, the Group had
outstanding bank borrowings of approxi.mately HK$101 million (of which HK$90 miilion
was secured by fixed charges on certain of the Group’s assets, including properties, bank
deposits and stocks, and a fixed and floating charge on all assets of a subsidiary). In
addition, the Group had outstanding at that date unsecured loans from a director of
approximately HK$18.7 million, unsecured loan from related company of approximately
HK$4.5 million, secured loan from a supplier of approximately HK$130.6 million and
unsecured loans from minority shareholders of HKS$1.5 million.

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, and apart from intra-group liabilities,
the Group did not have outstanding at the close of business on 30 June 2003 any loan
capital issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or. other
similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or acceptable credits, debentures,
mortgages, charges, hire purchases commitments, guarantees or other material contingent
liabilities. '

5. WORKING CAPITAL

The Directors are of the opinion that, after taking into account the existing banking
facilities, internal resources and the expected net proceeds of the Rights Issue of
approximately HK$32.0 million, the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its

present requirements in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.

- 89—




APPENDIX I GENERAL INFORMATION

1. RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

This prospectus includes particulars given in compliance with the Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this
prospectus and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their
knowledge and belief, there are no other facts not contained in this prospectus, the omission of
which would make any statement herein misleading.

2. SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised and issued share capital of the Company following completion of the
Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares will be as follows:

Authorised.: ' HKS

3,500,000,000 Shares as at the Latest Practicable Date 350,000,000.00

Shares issued and to be issued as fully-paid or credited:

852,367,051  Shares in i1ssue as at the Latest Practicable Date 85,236,705.10

340,946,820 Shares to be issued under the 4 34,094,682.00
Rights Issue (Note)

1,022,840,460 Shares to be issued under the 102,284,046.00
‘Bonus Shares Issue (Note)

2,216,154,331  Shares in issue immediately 221,615,433.10
following the completion of the

Rights Issue with the Bonus Shares
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Note:  As at the Latest Practicable Date, there are outstanding Share Options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 171,676,201 Shares. Amongst the Share Options holders, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man
Fai LEE, Ms. Siew Yit HOH, Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Sammy Chi Chung
SUEN, Mr. Raymond Cho Min LEE and Mr. Boon Seng TAN, all of whom are Directors, or their
associates, in aggregate, are entitled to subscribe for 94,600,731 Shares, have given Irrevocable
Undertakings to the Company and the Underwriters not to exercise the subscription rights attaching
to their respective Share Options on or before the Acceptance Date.

If the remaining outstanding Share Options are exercised in full on or before the Record Date, a
further 30,830,188 Rights Shares and a further 92,490,564 Bonus Shares will be issued under the
Rights Issue and the Bonus Shares Issue.

3. PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Name ' Address
Wing Sum LEE (Honorary Chairman) Flat A1, 17th Floor

Villa Monte Rosa
41A Stubbs Road

Hong Kong
Richard Man Fai LEE 2nd Floor, 1C Shiu Fai Terrace
(Executive Chairman, Stubbs Road
Chief Executive Officer) Hong Kong
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN Flat C-5, 8 Seymour Road
Hong Kong .
Jeff Man Bun LEE Flat A1, 17th Floor
Villa Monte Rosa
41A Stubbs Road
Hong Kong
Non-executive Director
Name Address
Kam Har YUE : Flat A1, 17th Floor

Villa Monte Rosa
41A Stubbs Road
Hong Kong
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Name Address
Boon Seng TAN 25B, Po Garden
9 Brewin Path
Hong Kong
Raymond Cho Min LEE ‘ House F, 102 Repulse Bay Road

Repulse Bay
Hong Kong

The qualifications and experience of the Directors are set out below:
Executive Directors

Wing Sum LEE, aged 76, is the founder and the honorary chairman of the Company.
He has 58 years’ experience in the distribution of consumer products. He has been
mmvolved in the marketing and strategic planning of the Group since its inception. He is a
director of the Radio Association of Hong Kong, and an honorary chairman of the Hong
Kong and Kowloon Electrical Appliances Merchants Association Limited.

Richard Man Fai LEE, BSB, MBA, aged 46, the executive chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company, is the son of Mr. Wing Sum LEE and Ms. Kam Har
YUE. He has 23 years’ experience in marketing consumer products. He has a bachelor’s
degree and a master’s degree in business administration from the University of Minnesota.
He was also elected and had served for two consecutive terms as the chairman of the
Radio Association of Hong Kong, the trade association of audio visual business in Hong
Kong. He has been with the Group for 19 years.

Sammy Chi Chung SUEN, MBA, aged 56, is a director of Appliances Business
Group of Wo Kee Hong Limited and director of Technorient Limited. He has 31 years’
experience in general management, sales and marketing of cars, electrical appliances and

air-conditioning products. He has been with the Group for about 7 years.

Jeff Man Bun LEE, BSc, MSc, University of Michigan, MSc, Standford University,
aged 44, is a Director of the Company and was appointed in January 2002. He is the son
of Mr. Wing Sum LEE and Ms. Kam Har YUE and the younger brother of Mr. Richard
Man Fai LEE. He is responsible for the strategic planning and the development of new
projects of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he was a system software specialist of

Research and Development Department of the Apple Computer International Limited for
5 years. He had been actively involved in the Group’s business from 1991 to 1997 prior to
his current appointment.
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Non-executive Director

Kam Har YUE, aged 70, is the wife of Mr. Wing Sum LEE and was involved in the
policy making of the Group from 1962 to December 1989. She has been a non-executive
Director of the Company since then. She has over 28 years’ experience in trading and
distribution of consumer products.

Independent non-executive Directors

Boon Seng TAN, M.A., Cambridge University, aged 47, Mr. TAN has been an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since April 1999 and he is the
chairman and managing director of Lee Hing Development Limited. He is also the
executive director of IGB Corporation Berhad, a listed company in Malaysia and is a
director of South China Holdings Limited, South China Brokerage Company Limited,
South China Industries Limited and Star Cruises Limited, all listed on The Stock
Ekchange of Hong Kong Limited. He also holds directorships in many other companies.

Raymond Cho Min LEE, Ed.M, Harvard University, aged 47, is the chairman and
managing director of HY & HT Lee Bros. & Co., Ltd. He is also the chairman of the U.S.-
based East West Enterprises Co. Ltd. and the Oasis Development Enterprises Group of
real estate development and investment companies. In addition, he is the founder and
director of the East West Institute of International Studies at Gordon College (USA) and
over the years has served on the boards of various community and charitable organisations.

Senior Management

Herbert ADAMCZYK, aged 62, is the managing director of Technorient Limited. He
has 38 years’ experience in the automotive trade in Hong Kong. He has a motor
engineering background and has been with the Technorient Group, which is a subsidiary
of our Group, for 20 years. |

Barry John BUTTIFANT, aged 58, the adviser to the Board of Directors of the
Company. He has over 30 years’ experience in corporate and financial management. Has
lived in Hong Kong for over 24 years and prior to joining the Company, he was the
managing director of IDT International Limited for over 8 years and earlier worked for
Sime Darby Hong Kong Limited and Polly Peck Group for more than 11 years in the
capacity of finance director and managing director during the period. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Giordano International Limited, Daiwa Associate
Holdings Limited and China Merchants DiChain (Asia) Limited, Mr. Buttifant is a fellow
member of the Association. of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Chartered Management
Institute, the Hong Kong Management Association and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.
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Philip Chun Wing CHAN, FCCA, AHKSA, aged 42, is the finance manager of the
Group. He has 17 years’ financial and accounting experience in both trading and
manufacturing sectors. He has been with the Group for about 6 years.

Powell Kwok Chuen CHEUNG, MBA, aged 39, is the general manager of the AV
division of Wo Kee Hong Limited and Hong Kong Wo Kee Advertising Company Limited.
He is also the general manager of Mega Warehouse (Hong Kong) Limited. He has 14
years’ sales and marketing experience in both industrial and consumer products. He has
been with the Group for 11 years.

Kwang Liang CHIA, BSBA (Hons), aged 42, is a director of Wo Kee Hong
Distribution Pte Ltd; and an assistant general manager of the companies in Singapore.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked in KPMG Peat Marwick as an Auditor for 5 years
and a multi-national company for 3 years. He is also an officer in the Singapore Arm
Forces. He has been with the Group for 9 years.

Siew Yit HOH, aged 37, a director of Wo Kee Hong Community Services Limited, is
the wife of Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE. She has 14 years of experience in service industry
and 11 years of experience in community public relations. She has been with the Group
for 11 years.

Eddie Hung Wai LEUNG, aged 54, is the general sales manager of Car Electronics
Sales Division of the Group. He has 30 years’ sales experience in electronic products. He
has been with the Group for 30 years.

Ruby Wai Ying TANG, BBA, aged 38, is the senior manager of Human Resources
and Administration Department of the Group and the senior marketing manager of Wo
Kee Hong Limited. She has 15 years’ sales and marketing experience in both business-to-
business and business-to-consumer environment in Hong Kong and China markets. She
has also been actively involved in business development, administration and operations.
She graduated from the Hong Kong Baptist University with a bachelor of business
administration degree (major in office management) and is also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing. She has been with the Group for 11 years.

Chi Choi TONG, aged 50, is the sales manager of the Group. He has over 25 years’

sales and marketing experience in the audio field and considerable marketing experience
in PRC. He has been with the Group for 30 years.
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Johnson Ka Chiu WOO, aged 55, is the general sales manager of Appliance Business
Group of Wo Kee Hong Limited and a director of Jin Ling Electrical Company Limited.
He has worked in a multinational air-conditioning engineering firm for years and has 33
years’ experience in the sales management of air-conditioning products in multinational \ P
firms. He is now responsible for the development and promotion in the China market. He -
has been with the Group for 4 years.

Steven Tung Lim YAU, aged 53, is the director and general manager of Appliance
Business Group (Commercial Systems) of Wo Kee Hong Limited. He has over 33 years’
experience in the marketing of consumer electrical products and commercial air-
conditioning products. He holds a diploma in Marketing and International Business and a
diploma in China Marketing by the faculty of business administration, the Chinese
University of Hong Kong and is also a member of the American Society of Heating,
Refrigerating and Air-conditioning Engineers, Inc. He has been with the Group for 33
years.

Tony Yu Cheung YAU, aged 50, is the general sales manager of Appliance Business
Group of Wo Kee Hong Limited. He has 25 years’ experience in business management,
advertising planning, sales and marketing. He has been with the Group for 10 years.

Alex Wai Leung YIP, aged 42, is the director of Italian Motors (Sales & Service)
Limited. He has 17 years’ sales and marketing experience in consumer products. He holds
an honour diploma of Business Management (major in marketing) from the Hong Kong
Baptist University. He has been with the Group for 10 years.
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4. CORPORATE INFORMATION AND PARTIES INVOLVED

Registered office . Cedar House
41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

Principal office in Heong Kong 10th Floor, Block A
Wo Kee Hong Building
585-609 Castle Peak Road
Kwai Chung, New Territories
Hong Kong

Authorised representatives Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN
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Auditors Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
26th Floor, Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Financial adviser to the Company Kingsway Capital Limited
5th Floor
Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central
Hong Kong

Underwriters Kingsway SW Securities Limited
Sth Floor
Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central
Hong Kong

Modern Orbit Limited
P- O. Box 3340

Road Town, Tortola
British Virgin Islands

Legal adviser to the Company Morrison & Foerster
and the Rights Issue 21/F., Entertainment Building
as to Hong Kong Law 30 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong »
Legal adviser to the Company: Appleby Spurling & Kempe
as to Bermuda Law 5511, The Center A
99 Queen’s Road Central
Central
Hong Kong
Hong Kong branch share registrar Standard Registrars Limited

G/F., BEA Harbour View Centre
56 Gloucester Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Principal bankers The Bank of East Asia, Limited
10 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited
232 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited
28 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

5. DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

(a) As at the Latest Practicable Date, the interests and short positions of each Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of SFO) or are
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange are as follows:

(i) Beneficial interest and short position in Shares as at the Latest Practicable

Date:
Number of Shares
Personal Family Corporate
Name of Director Interests Interests Interests Others Total
Richard Man Fai LEE 12,909,380 2,591,820 450,513,734 - 466,014,934
(Note 1) {Note 2)
Jeff Man Bun LEE 1,815,000 ) - 456,074,192 - 457889,192
) (Notes 2 & 3)
Kam Har YUE 20,037,370 - 450,513,734 - 470,551,104
(Note 2)
Sammy Chi Chung SUEN 181,500 - - - 181,500
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Notes:

1. The 2,591,820 Shares are owned by Ms. Siew Yit HOH, the spouse of Mr. Richard Man Fai
LEE.

2. The 450,513,734 Shares are held by Modern Orbit, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower
Inc. as trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are
held by a discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE’s family members including Ms.
Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries.
The remaining 1% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by Skylink International
Asset Corporation, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms,
Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr, Jeff Man Bun LEE.

3. Out of the 456,074,192 Shares, 5,560,458 Shares are held by Fisherman Enterprises Inc., a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Mr. Jeff Man Bun
LEE.

4, All interests in the Shares are long positions. None of the Directors held any short position
in the Shares.

(ii) Beneficial interests and short positions in underlying shares of equity
derivatives of the Company as at the Latest Practicable Date:

Date of Number of Subscription
option Shares in Exercise price per
Name of Director granted the options period Share
HK3
Wing Sum LEE 28 July 1997 7,563,255 31 August 1997- 1.4416
30 August 2003
19 January 1998 1,815,181 22 February 1998- 0.5951
‘ 21 February 2004
21 December 1999 3,932,892 [ February 2000~ 0.3786
10 February 2006
11 February 2000 1,815,181 21 March 2000~ 0.8828
20 March 2006
10 August 2001 2,171,117 16 September 2001~ 0.2705
15 September 2007
24 September 2002 246,400 24 September 2002- 0.1000*

23 September 2008
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Date of Number of - Subscription
option Shares in Exercise price per
Name of Director granted the options period Share
HKS
Richard Man Fai LEE 28 July 1997 8,168,315% 28 August 1997~ 1.4416
' 27 August 2003
19 January 1998 1,875,686* 19 February 1998- 0.5951
18 February 2004
10 June 1998 605,060 24 July 1998- 0.2847
23 July 2004
21 December 1999 4,053,904* 7 February 2000~ 0.3786
6 February 2006
11 February 2000 2117711 18 March 2000- 0.8828
17 March 2006
28 May 2001 2,420,242 29 Jure 2001- 0.2705
: 28 June 2007
10 August 2001 2,171,117 16 September 2001- 0.2705
15 September 2007
29 August 2001 302,529* 30 September 2001~ 0.2705
29 September 2007
24 September 2002 8,522,800 24 September 2002- 0.10007
23 September 2008

* Share Options granted to the spouse of Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE were included in the
interests of Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE
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Date of Number of Subscription

option Shares in Exercise price per

Name of Director granted the options period Share

' HKS

Jeff Man Bun LEE 4 June 2002 1,210,121 4 June 2002- 0.1309
' 3 June 2008

24 September 2002 550,000 24 September 2002- 0.1000°7
23 September 2008

Sammy 28 July 1997 605,060 31 August 1997- 1.4416
Chi Chung SUEN 30 August 2003

’ 21 December 1999 181,517 6 February 2000~ 0.3786
5 February 2006

11 February 2000 302,529 22 March 2000- 0.8828
21 March 2006

18 January 2001 157315 6 March 2001- 0.2705
5 March 2007

10 August 2001 605,060 19 September 2601~ 0.2705
18 September 2007

4 June 2002 2,420,242 4 June 2002- 0.1309
3 June 2008

24 September 2002 770,000 24 September 2002- 0.10007
23 September 2008

Kam Har YUE 29 August 2001 302,539 30 September 2001- 0.2705
29 September 2007

Raymond 4 June 2002 847,084 4 June 2002- 0.1309
Cho Min LEE 3 June 2008

24 September 2002 4,400 24 September 2002- 0.1000¢
23 September 2008

Boon Seng TAN 4 June 2002 847,084 4 June 2002- 0.1309
3 June 2008

24 September 2002 4,400 24 September 2002- 0.1000%
23 September 2008

The exercise price of these Share Options have been adjusted to HK$0.10, being the
nominal value of a Share as it is not legally permissible to issue new Shares at below the
nominal value of HK$0.10.
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(iii) Beneficial interest and short position in shares in associated corporations
as at the Latest Practicable Date:

Number of shares Class and/or
Name of associated or equity interests description of
Name of Director corporation  held or interested in shares/interests
Wing Sum LEE Stoneycroft Estates Limited 15,750,000 non-voting
deferred shares
Wo Kee Hong Limited 8,500 non-voting
deferred shares
Wo Kee Services Limited - non-voting
deferred shares
Kam Har YUE Wo Kee Hong Limited 400 non-voting
' deferred shares
Shinwa Engineering 3,850,000 non-voting
Company, Limited deferred shares
Stoneycroft Estates Limited 340,000 non-voting
deferred shares
Forward International 34,335 non-voting
Corporation, Limited deferred shares

Save as disclosed herein, as at the Latest Practicable Date, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or held any short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation(s) (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred
to therein, or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

None of the Directors has any direct or indirect interest in any assets which had been
acquired or disposed of by or leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired, disposed of by or
leased to any member of the Group since 31 December 2002 (being the date to which the latest
published audited accounts of the Company were made up).

There is no contract or arrangement subsisting at the date of this prospectus in which any

of the Directors is materially interested and which is significant in relation to the business of
the Group taken as a whole.
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6. PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST OR SHORT POSITION WHICH IS
DISCLOSEABLE UNDER DIVISIONS 2 AND 3 OF PART XV OF THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the Latest Practicable Date, so far as is known to the
Directors (1) no other person had, or was deemed or taken to have an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO; and (ii) no other person (excluding any member of the Group) was, directly or indirectly,

interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
" vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the Group or has any

option in respect of such capital:

Approximate % of the

Company Number of total issued Shares as at the
Name Shares Latest Practicable Date
Modern Orbit 450,513,734 52.86%

Note: The 450,513,734 Shares are held by Modern Orbit, which is wholly owned by Cyber Tower Inc. as
trustee of The WS Lee Unit Trust. 99% of the units of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Wing Sum LEE’s family members including Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr.
Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff Man Bun LEE are the beneficiaries. The remaining 1% of the units
of The WS Lee Unit Trust are held by Skylink International Asset Corporation, a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and owned by Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE and Mr. Jeff
Man Bun LEE.

7. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

In the two years immediately preceding the date of this prospectus, the following
contracts, not being contracts entered into in the ordinary course of business, were entered into
by the Company or its subsidiaries and are or may be material:

(a) an agreement dated 21 September 2001 entered into between ebuystore (B.V.I.)
Limited (“ebuystore BVI”) as purchaser and Racer Profits Limited (“Racer Profits”)
as vendor for the acquisition of 45% interest in Mega Warehouse (B.V.I.) Limited
(“Mega”) for a consideration of HK$351;

(b) a deed of assignment dated 21 September 2001 entered into between Racer Profits

and ebuystore BVI in respect of the assignment of a shareholder’s loan due and
owing from Mega to Racer Profits in the sum of HK$4,045,739 for a consideration
of HK$1.00;
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(c)

(d)

(©

()

(2

(M)

M

0

an agreement dated 21 September 2001 entered into between ebuystore BVI as
purchaser and Rich Destiny Holdings Limited as vendor for the acquisition of 25%
interest in ebuystore.com Limited for a consideration of HK$195;

a deed of assignment dated 21 September 2001 entered into between Mr. Richard
Man Fai LEE and ebuystore BVI in respect of the assignment of a director’s loan due
and owing from ebuystore.com (H.K.) Limited to Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE in the
sum of HK$777,650 for a consideration of HK$1.00;

an agreement dated 9 November 2001 entered into between the Company and
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries (“MHI”) relating to the settlement of the entire amount
due from the Group to MHI,;

a deed of assignment dated 18 December 2001 entered into between Wo Kee Hong
(Singapore) Pte Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company as assignor and
Erokisir Auto Services Pte Ltd. as assignee, relating to the assignment of a property
located at the Republic of Singapore for a consideration of S$7 million;

an agreement dated 31 December 2001 entered into between Wo Kee Hong (B.V.1.)
Limited as vendor and Mr. Wing Sum LEE as purchaser for the sale of the entire
issued share capital of Golden City Equities Limited for a consideration of
HK$1,300,000;

an underwriting agreement dated 30 January 2002 entered into amongst the
Company, Mr. Wing Sum LEE, Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE, Ms. Kam Har YUE, Mr.
Jeff Man Bun LEE, Fisherman Enterprises Inc. and Unit Cosmo International
Limited and Kingsway SW Securities as underwriter in respect of a rights issue with
bonus shares issue;

a deed of settlement dated 28 June 2002 entered into amongst MHI, Wo Kee Hong
Limited (“WKHL”), Stoneycroft Estates Limited (“Stoneycroft”), Metro Global
Limited and Ever Rising Investments Limited (“Ever Rising”) in relation to the
settlement of a debt in the amount of US$26,247,346.27 (equivalent to approximately
HK$204,829,040.82) due from WKHL to MHI in respect of goods provided by MHI
to WKHL;

a deed of charge dated 28 June 2002 entered into amongst Stoneycroft as charger,
MHI as the chargee and the Company in respect of car parking spaces and Block A
on 2nd Floor of Wo Kee Hong Building located at No. 585-609 Castle Peak Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong;

-103 -




APPENDIX II GENERAL INFORMATION

(k) a deed of charge dated 28 June 2002 entered into amongst Ever Rising as charger,
MHI as the chargee and the Company in respect of Block B on 2nd Floor of Wo Kee
Hong Building located at No. 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong; ’

(1) aloan agreement dated 28 June 2002 entered into among MH! as iender, WKHL as
borrower and the Company as guarantor in respect of a loan for the principal amount
of US$17,039,689.38 (equivalent to approximately HK3$133 million);

(m) a land use right transfer agreement dated 17 April 2003 entered into between
Dongguan Changxing Refrigeration Equipment Co. Ltd. as transferor, Zhong‘shan
City Tongfeng County Real Estate Development Company Limited as transferee and
Mr. Zhu Xin Kwai as gnarantor to the transferee in relation to three pieces of land
with a total area of 48.33 mu located at Zhongshan City Dong Feng Town for a
consideration of RMB5,800,452;

{n) a sale and purchase agreement dated 27 June 2003 entered into between Italian
Motors (Sales & Service) Limited (“IMSS”) as vendor and Auto Italia Limited
(“Auto Italia”) as purchaser, both of which are subsidiaries of the Company relating
to the sale of the business of IMSS to Auto Italia as part of a group reorganisation

exercise; and
(0) the Underwriting Agreement.
8. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Review of operation and prospects” in the
letter-from the Board in this prospectus, as at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors are not
aware of any material adverse change in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31
December 2002, being the date to which the latest published audited accounts of the Group

were made up.
9. LITIGATION

As at the Latest Practicable Date, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened by or against the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

10. SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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11. DOCUMENTS DELIVERED TO THE REGISTRARS OF COMPANIES

A copy of this prospectus, together with copies of the PAL and the EAF, has been
fegistered with the Companies Registry in Hong Kong as required by Section 342C of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been filed with the
Registrar of Companies in Bermuda pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

12. CONSENT OF EXPERT

The following are the qualifications of the expert which has given its opinion or advice
which is contained in this prospectus:

Name Qualifications
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu has given and has not withdrawn its written consent to the issue
of this prospectus with the inclusion of its report dated 27 March 2003 in respect of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2002 and references to its name in the form and context in which it appears.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu do not have any shareholding in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or any right (whether legally enforceable or not) to subscribe for or to nominate
persons to subscribe for securities in any member to the Group.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu do not have any interest direct or indirect, in any assets which
have been, since 31 December 2002 (being the date to which the latest published audited
financial statements of the Company were made up), acquired or disposed of by or leased to
any member of the Group, or are proposed to be acquired or disposed of by or leased to any
member of the Group.

13. MISCELLANEOUS

1.  The registered office of the Company is at Cedar House, 41 Cedar Avenue, Hamilton
HM 12, Bermuda.

2.  The principal office of the Company in Hong Kong is at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo
Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

3. The company secretary of the Company is Ms. Phyllis NG, who is an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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4.  The branch share registrar of the Company in Hong Kong is Standard Registrars
Limited, at G/F, BEA Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

5. The expenses in connection with the Rights Issue and Bonus Shares Issue, including
the financial advisory fee, underwriting commission, printing, registration, translation,
legal and accounting charges, are estimated to amount to approximately HK$2.1

million and will be payable by the Company.

6. The English text of this prospectus shall prevail over the Chinese text in the case of
inconsistency.

14. DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection at the principal office of
the Company in Hong Kong, at 10th Floor, Block A, Wo Kee Hong Building, 585-609 Castle
Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong during normal business hours on any

weekday (public holidays excepted) up to and including 18 September 2003:

(i) the annual reports of the Company for the two financial years ended 31 December
2001 and 2002;

(i1) the interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2002;
(i11) the memorandum of association and the bye-laws of the Company;

(iv) the material contracts referred to in paragraph 7 of this Appendix;

(v) the circular addrgssed to the shareholders dated 14 August 2002;

(vi) the letter from Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu dated 1 September 2003 in relation to the
adjustments to the exercise prices of the Share Options; and

(vii) the Rights Issue Documents.
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et Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Lumted

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited lzabzlzty)

- Mlnutes of a M.é'etinv of the Directors of the Company held at 10/F., Block B, Wo Kee
Hong Bu11d1ng, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong on
- 30 June 2003 - - = :

1 . Chairmam - -

Presegt: Mr Richard Man Fa1 LEE _
'Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN J/&“‘»

M. Jeff Man Bun LEE

Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE took the chair of the Meeting.
2. Quorum
The necessary quorum for the Meeting was present.

3. Lapse of Share Options

It was noted that Pursuant to the Clause 7(b) of the 1991 Share Option Scheme
adopted by the Company on 22 June 1991 (the “Scheme™), the Options should lapse
automatically on the expiry of the period of three months following the date the
Grantee ceased to be the employee of the Company or its relevant Subsidiaries.

It was reported that the employees listed on the Attachment had ceased to be the
employees of the Company or its relevant Subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003.

It was resolved that the Options granted to the empioyees listed on the Attachment
be lapsed pursuant to Clause 7(b) of the Schemes

4, Termination

There being no further business, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed.

Chairman




o of emp

loy

Issue)

AU YEUNG Ching Shan- 12-Dec-01 4,340
HO Chee Wai 12-Dec-01 4,840
CHIN Hee Loy - 31-] an—OB 36,302
Total no. of sha{e options lapsed (aﬁ_er gdjusted fq;.Bqnus 45,982




82-3990
Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited

(fncorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
Minutes of an Executive Board Meeting of the Company held at 10/F., Block B, Wo Kee

Hong Building, 585-609 Castle Peak Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong on
30 August 2003 o ' ‘

Present: Mr. Richard Man Fai LEE W

Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN

Mr Jeff Man BunLEE 7|

1. Chairman /

Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN took the chair of the Meeting.

2. Quorum
The necessary quorum for the Meeting was present.

3. Expiry of Share Options

It was noted that Pursuant to the Clause 7(a) of the 1991 Share Option Scheme
adopted by the Company on 22 June 1991 (the “Scheme”), the Options should lapse
automatically on the expiry of the Option Period.

It was reported and confirmed that the Options listed on the Appendik lapsed as at
the respective expiry dates.

4. Termination

There being no further businesg, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed.

Chairman




i
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Appendix

Share Options should be lapsed due to the expiry of the option period

HOH Siew Yit 27-Aug-03 605,060
LEE Man Fai Richard 27-Aug-03 7,563,255
LEE Wing Sum 30-Aug-03 7,563,255
|SUEN Chi Chung Sammy 30-Aug-03 605,060
TOH Shung Chee 29-Aug-03 1,210,121

Total no. of share options lapsed

17,546,751
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Wo Kee Hong (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Minutes of the Special General Meeting of the Company held at Crystal Room, 3" Floor,
Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wah Street, Tsuen Wan, New Temitories, Hong Kong on 1 September
2003 at 9:30 am. -

Present: As per attached attendance sheets

1. Chairman
Mr. Sammy Chi Chung SUEN took the chair of the Meeting.
:} 2. Quorum
" The necessary quorum for the Meeting was present.

3. Rights Issue, Bonus Share Issue, General Mandate to Issue Shares

1. It was proposed by Ms. Mei Ling TANG, seconded by Ms. Suk Yee TAM and
resolved that the following resolution was duly passed as ordinary resolution of
the Company:- :

“THAT, conditional upon the passing of Resolution Number 2 as set out in the
notice convening this meeting (of which this Resolution forms part), the
allotment and issue by way of a rights 1ssue of not less than 340,946,820 sharés
(the “Rights Shares”) of HKS$ 0.10 each in the capital of the Company
(“Shares”) and not more than 371,777,008 Rights Shares with not less than
1,022,840,460 Shares and not more than 1,115,331,024 Shares credited as fully
paid (the “Bonus Shares”) to be issued to the first registered holders of the
Rights Shares to shareholders of the Company whose addresses are in Hong
Kong as shown on the register of members of the Company as at 1 September
2003 (the “Qualifying Shareholders”) (i) on the basis of two Rights Shares for
every five Shares then held by the Qualifying Shareholders with three Bonus
Shares for every Rights Share; and (i1) on and subject to the terms and
conditions set out in a rights issue prospectus, the provisional allotment letter
and the excess application forms for the Rights Shares, all of which are to be
dated 1 September 2003 (together the “Rights Issue Documents”) (the

“Proposed Rights Issue”) and to be sent to the Qualifying Shareholders, with
the Proposed Rights Issue fully underwritten on a several basis in the proportion
of 34.84% and 65.16% by Kingsway SW Securities Limited and Modern Orbit
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, respectively pursuant to an

underwriting agreement dated 18 July 2003 (the “Underwriting Agreement”),
the terms and conditions of the Proposed Rights Issue and the Underwriting
Agreement having been set out in a circular dated 14 August 2003 (the

“Circular”) of which the notice convening this meeting forms part and copies




of the Rights issue Documents, the Underwriting Agreement and the Circular
having been submitted to the meeting marked “A” and signed by the Chairman
of this meeting for the purpose of identification, be and is hereby approved and
the entering into of the Underwniting Agreement by the Company be and is
hereby confirmed and ratified and the directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to issue and allot such Rights Shares and Bonus Shares on
and subject to the terms and conditions set out in the Rights Issue Documents.”

2. It was proposed by Ms. Lai Hing POON, seconded by Ms. Wai Ying TANG and
resolved that the following resolution was duly passed as ordinary resolution of
the Company:-

“THAT, conditional upon the passing of Resolution Number 1 set out in the
notice convening this meeting (of which this Resolution forms part), the
directors of the Company be and are hereby authorized to apply an amount of
not more than HK$ 111,533,102.40 standing in the credit of the contributed
surplus account tc credit the Bonus Shares to be allotted and issued pursuant te
the Proposed Rights Issue as fully paid up Shares in the capital of the
Company.”

3. It was proposed by Ms. Wai Ha YEUNG, seconded by Ms. Suk Yee TAM and
resolved that the following resolution was duly passed as ordinary resolution of
the Company:-

“THAT:-

(i) subject to paragraph (iil}) below, the exercise by the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all the
powers of the Company to allot, issue or otherwise deal with any unissued
shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and/ or options which may require the exercise of such powers
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved,

(ii) the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in addition to any other
authorization given to the Directors and shall authorise the directors of the
Company during the Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements
and/ or options which may require the exercise of such power after the end
of the Relevant Peniod,

(iii) the aggregate nominal amount of unissued shares in the capital of the
Company which may be allotted, 1ssued or otherwise dealt with by the
directors of the Company during the Relevant Period pursuant to paragraph
(1) above, otherwise than pursuant to a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined)
or the exercise of subscription rights attaching to any warrants issued by the
Company, shall not exceed the aggregate of 20% of the aggregate nominal
amount of shares in the capital of the Company in issue as enlarged by the
Rights Shares (as the term is defined in Resolution Number 1 as set out in
the notice convening this meeting (of which this Resolution forms part))
and the Bonus Shares (as the term is defined in Resolution Number 1 as set

~out in the notice convening this meeting,(of which this Resolution forms
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part)) to be allotted and issued pursuant to the Proposed Rights Issue (as the
term is defined in Resolution Number 1 as set out in the notice convening
this meeting (of which this Resolution forms part)) or the aggregate nominal
value of the share capital of the Company in issue on the date of the passing
of this Resolution Number 3 in the event the Proposed Rights Issue lapsed,;

(iv) for the purpose of this Resolution:-

(a) “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this
Resolution until whichever is the earliest of'-

(1) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the
Company;

(2) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required by law or the bye- laws of the
Company to be held; and -

(3) the revocation or variation of the authority given under this
resolution by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting; and

(b) “Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the capital of the Company open
for a period fixed by the directors of the Company to holders of shares in the
capital of the Company whose names appear on the Register of Members on
a fixed record date in proportion to their holdings of shares(subject to such
exclusions or other arrangements as the directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard
to any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the requirements of any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory outside
Hong Kong).”

4. Termination

There being no further business, the Chairman declared the Meeting closed.

Chairman of the Meeting
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BR%MNAKE
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3" Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m. -

R EEZENA-BER LT AR EST O REEEFREBE SN REEIEKEERT

_ Attendance Register i & & i
(Directors & Company Secretary & F & 2 S # H)

Name of Director Signature

cx | £
Wing Sum LEE - - absent -
Richard Man Fai LEE - absent -

Sammy Chi Chung SUEN ' %//—\

Jeff Man Bun LEE : 7.

Kam Har YUE.
Boon Seng TAN B ;bsent B
Raymond Cho Min LEE | ' - absent -
Company Secretary
L EREE

~EEmA
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AR (EE) BB A S

BEERAE |
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m.

R_ER=ZFNAA—BEH LA AR+ REEEFAEEEEMIRRRE/EIRKABEET

Attendance Register & & fit

(Shareholders B& 3X) ' ’
5% HEEKE EREMTAE. : EREH® . BR
No. ~ Name of Attendance Please indicate if you are: Registered Signature
' Shareholdings ‘ »

- J& % Z A Shareholder (S)

- B R E Representative of
corporate shareholder (CR)

- BRBZE & N Proxy of a shareholder (P)

0 (CRYR ), BEBARRZ
R EC

If (CR) or (P), please state name of
the shareholder you represent.

-t

| |Chairman P |ChanKwok Chi Joachim 27,852 )(L\

2 |Chairman P |Chan Wai Man 968 K
=
3 |Chairman P |Chau Yeung Kui 726 ﬁ,\
. » L
£ | 4 |chaimmen | P |Cheung Chi Ming 1210/ /A
5 |Chairman P |ChinHeeLoy = 140 %’\
/
6 |Chairman P |HKSCC Nominees Ltd 43,217,323 /
<
7 |Chairman ' P  |Hsiung Liang Wei 30,250 ﬁ / /
8 |Chairman ~|P |Hui ChiPing 4,840| E& \ //\_’
- =
9 IChairman P Hui Pak Fung 968 \ :
10 |Chairman P |Interlegend Int'l Ent Ltd 23,722,567 /
(g

*{E ™ 5




MESTEE RR L A

BRENKE
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
" Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m. :

RI-FZEZENA—E (E%ﬁ—)h?ﬁ;ﬁ:-“Z+%{E&§’%ﬁﬁ§?§§§%3%m%@J?E‘3#§7J< e BE 1T

Attendance Register i 75 &
(Shareholders B 3X)

% % HEE YA EEEETA. BEEE 5%
No. Name of Attendance Please indicate if you are: - ‘Registered Signature
Shareholdings
- - B2 ] & A Sharehoider (S)
- A SRR R Representative of
corporate shareholder (CR)
- B3 ZE R A Proxy of a shareholder (P)
i1 (CR) & @), BEBHREZ |
R L
If (CR) or (P), please state name of
the shareholder you represent.
11 |Chairman [P |Ip Yim Fun Grace 242 W
12 {Chairman P Kwong Ka Wai 1,210 \
13 |Chairman P Lai Sau Waj 2,420 /
14 |Chairman } P |Lai Wing Yee Winnie 1,210 / M '
15 |Chairman P {Lam Sui Kwong . 968 L A
/
16 |Chairman P |LoXam Wing 2,420 ’
17 |Chairman P Lowe Kai Hot 200 \\
. \‘
18 |Chairman P |Lui Kow 48,400 |
‘19 |Chairman - - ~--- - [P |LuiLuk : S T726) \
20 |Chairman P |PangKwokOn | 18,150 /

* {5 15 B
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BREMNKAE
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m.

RIEE=ZFAA-BES ) LFARS T REERFFAEEEEMRWRBEEIEKBEET.

Attendance Register H FE &
(Shareholders & 3X)

ekl HEEWE HEEEET S BREREY 5%
No. Name of Attendance Please indicate if you are: Registered Signature
Shareholdings

- B2 ® & A Shareholder (S) _

- 7> Bl IR 3R Representative of -

corporate shareholder (CR)

- REZE IR A Proxy of a shareholder (P)

B0 (CR) & (P), BEBFREZ

AR s e

If (CR) or (P), please state name of

the shareholder you represent.
21 |Chairman P |Poon Chun Chung 726 N
22 |Chairman P |{Pun Chiu Chau 871 \
23 |Chairman P Sham Ngan Wah 2,178 {
24 |Chairman P |Tsoi Kwok Lai 968 J
25 |Chairman P |Yeung Ho Shun 726 ( %
26 |Chairman - P |Yip Ah Ping _ 1,210 / j %
27 {Chairman ‘ P |{YuChoi Lin ' - 968 \
28 |Chairman P |YuHonKi 512,846 \
29 |Chairman P |YuHonLing 359,176 )
30 |Chairman P |YuHon Nin 417,425 )

“{E & A




MEfT(EE BFR O

R R B OKE
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m. ~

REFEZFAA-REAHLFARZ T 7 REEENAEBEZEIRENEEIRRZBRT.

Attendance Register & & 2 it

(Shareholders BAR)
% 3 HEEYE SEEEBETA . BERE BE T
No. . Name of Attendance Please indicate if you are: Registered Signature
» Shareholdings
- 18 ® & A Shareholder (S)
- 2 B AU& Representative of
corporate shareholder (CR)
- B R EE A Proxy of a shareholder @)
i1 (CR) 2 (P), SEEEHFREZ
BRER
If {CR) or (P), please state name of
the shareholder you represent.
31 |Chairman P |Yue Kam Har 20,037,370 1
’ | !
32 |Chairman P Lee Man Fai 12,909,380 ( : /
“ Fisherman Emeprises | | N~
33 |Jeff Man Bun LEE CR || Snerman Bnterprises 5,560,458 A/ e
2| 34 |reff Man Bun LEE CR |Modern Orbit Ltd 450,513,734 j | / .
EI eéﬁ'”{ MaA /D é\/ﬁ‘/ SEK yL/E'/\/ ST o7 74\{‘._2/ ""’i' .
= | ) A \ 4
B | b K\ \K
- \
el ‘ A
7 LY 2> ‘
72} N <rvLL part a2
A N
3¢ G ,;Q N Vo, x0T .
Zj YQM’\A v\[«v—ﬁk 3/5‘7’4} %_1/
A 4 b0 W \

Lo Qyeny {doﬁ\ﬂ \v““
I (R

et

WO KEE HONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED e —



ME TG HE 8RS

BRmR kg

SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3" Floor Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Temtones Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m.

RIEEZENAR-B(ES ) LFAR ST REEBN A EETEMIRMREEIBKEBEET.

Attendance Register & & &

(Shareholders IR %)

% R EEEETR. BRI 5%
No. Name of Attendance Please indicate if you are: Registered Signature
, Shareholdings
. - R ® & A Shareholder (S) :
__} - 2B JEE R K Representative of
corporate shareholder (CR)
- I8 EIR A Proxy of a shareholder ®)
In(CR)Z P), BHEBHARRZ
A& 3 o &
If (CR) or (P), please state name of
the shareholder you represent. »
: .
/ /&7
Z‘Il / //WM M /,,:m7 Eﬁ,@ﬂ/\_‘ 5 _ 8 /\TLOO // g/\ .
| 7 | 7
Zf-Z (7/4@«1 L—u»\/(Cn(_ij— S — —}:7D¢v /%\'
l/\/\)\ Mo+ Sl\qw\ S B QXLILD g\
ermé Tak & S * 24 NN/
4 77 WE B sk Ky S - (2 oo )Z%QZ "
. /L
Ll | MGk V/uj/) S - W @
5 %n s | - sl
4 & | e T
3& W Ve oo
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A WO-KEEHONG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED —— - o
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BExR&ERHKE
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

" Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m. '

RIEE=ZFARA-RBEE ) LF B =TI BREFEFRAZEETEM R EEIEKRBELET.

Attendance Register ! & 2

(GUESTS % %)
Name of Guest Name of Corporate Representative | Signature
" E A O RBADEE % %
Cynthia Wong ' ‘Standard Registrars Limited
C&@ﬁ- baw Kingsway Capital Limited //74%/1/\/’

| J@ &~ S Quam Capital Limited {«/X\/

s o U, Ll |
— Y Ju CH 5«/@4 @
T //Q s (( o4 é;: A /

. : | P ‘ ' A
gwy{-c} ln X X}\mvv(b v L HWé(M - MQ’
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SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m.

RIEZ=FAA-HES ) LFARZT 0 RETEFAZEEEARERBEEERKEEST .

Attendance Register i3 & & fit
(GUESTS % &)

Name of Guest Name of Corporate Representative Signature
KE YU RELTDEE B
7
Mg ey [ h~z

Shin fomg

gt 4

. - .

Delr e

Qg CM/L@\/(L_
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BEF R KE
SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Held at Crystal Room, 3™ Floor, Panda Hotel, 3 Tsuen Wan Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong on
Monday, 1 September 2003 at 9:30 a.m. ‘

WoEE=ZERA—BEE ) LFARS T BEFRF AT B EMERTDE R KEEERT |

Press Register ;08 &t
Name of Press Name of Company. , Signature
E N A o~ E AR = &

(.\ ( H ‘
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